
Wednesday, June 20, 2018
1:30 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

NVTA Conference Room

NVTA Board of Directors

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on the NVTA website at https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx at least 72 hours 

prior to the meeting and will be available for public inspection, on and after at the time of such 

distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the NVTA Board of Directors, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, 

California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., except for 

NVTA Holidays.  Materials distributed to the present members of the Board at the meeting will be 

available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of the NVTA Board or 

staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person.  Availability of materials related to 

agenda items for public inspection does not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure 

under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Members of the public may speak to the Board on any item at the time the Board is considering the 

item. Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and then 

present the slip to the Board Secretary.  Also, members of the public are invited to address the Board 

on any issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment.  Speakers are limited to three minutes.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a disability .  

Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Karrie Sanderlin, 

NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the 

time of the meeting.

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NVTA website https://legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Agenda - Final



June 20, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Public Comment

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’,  Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7. Executive Director's Update

8. Caltrans' Update

Note:  Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1 - 9.5)

9.1 Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2018 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 9-13)

Board action will approve the meeting minutes of May 16, 2018.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

9.2 Resolution No. 18-14 Approving the Lifeline Transportation 

Program Cycle 5 Project Funds for Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 and 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2017-18 for the Imola Avenue Park and Ride 

Improvement Project (Shaveta Sharma) (Pages 14-30)

Board action will approve Resolution No. 18-14 approving the project 

submitted for Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5 funding .

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 2 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/13/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=73b9dbdd-4fc5-42b3-a721-d1dcca1ecb34.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=27cf3cc0-8e74-4301-8096-78cad20026f2.pdf


June 20, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.3 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-Evaluation Plan 

(Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 31-106)

Board action will review and approve the Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) Self-Evaluation Plan.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.4 Resolution No. 18-15 Authorizing the Submittal of the 

Countywide Coordinated Claim to the Metropolitan 

Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Allocation of Fiscal 

Year 2018-19 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) 

Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants in Napa County 

and Adopting the FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 (3-Year Cycle) 

TDA-3 Program of Projects (Diana Meehan) (Pages 107-114)

Board action will adopt Resolution No. 18-15 requesting the FY 

2018-19 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) allocation 

for Pedestrian/Bicycle project funds in the amount of $296,099 to the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as part of the annual 

Countywide Claim and adopt the FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 

Three-Year program of projects.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.5 Resolution No. 18-16 Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Execute Agreements with the California Department of 

Transportation for the Imola Avenue Complete Streets Corridor 

Improvement Plan (Diana Meehan) (Pages 115-118) 

 

Board action will approve Resolution No. 18-16 authorizing agreements 

with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for the Imola 

Avenue Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Plan.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/13/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2b6d8031-8243-4a19-841d-497424261e53.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=68c13931-a279-44c6-912e-6eda1c343e4f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5a847235-04f1-44a2-9470-f79f69776def.pdf


June 20, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year (FY) 

2018-19 (Karrie Sanderlin) (pages 119-120)

Board action will appoint three Board members to nominate a Chair 

and Vice Chair for FY 2018-19.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.2 Amendment No. 11 to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

(NVTA) Joint Powers Agreement (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 

121-148)

Board action will approve the proposed revisions to the NVTA Joint 

Powers Agreement (JPA) and direct staff to circulate it to its member 

jurisdictions for approval by their respective councils.

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.3 Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings Services and Moody’s Investor 

Services Assigns Credit Ratings to the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 149-172)

Information only.  The Board will receive an overview of the credit 

rating assignments from Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings Services 

and Moody’s Investor Services.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReortAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/13/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5da20738-1a1d-4a54-af75-526c2acdbad8.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=28a9d56f-7fb7-4c7c-bd6c-a73e5377d069.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0074335a-5ee6-4136-bdf8-a72a1af31fa0.pdf


June 20, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Third Quarter Fiscal 

Year (FY) 2017-18 Financials, Budget Adjustment and 5-Year 

Forecast (Justin Paniagua) (Pages 173-178)

Information only.  The Board will receive the agency's financial 

performance compared to budget for the third quarter period and 

5-year forecast model.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.5 Vine Transit Performance Data Update (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 

179-184)

Information only.  The Board will receive the quarterly performance 

report.

Recommendation:

2:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.6 Federal and State Legislative Updates and State Bill Matrix (Kate 

Miller) (Pages 185-199)

The Board will receive the monthly Federal and State Legislative 

updates, and approve board position recommendations for bills on the 

State Bill Matrix. 

Recommendation:

3:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.  CLOSED SESSION

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/13/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f303cefa-df37-4e28-9fa2-dd9ae5b1c172.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c058155e-10da-4ccf-ba56-34ce806a7fa1.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e99be93-9925-45c6-b59e-192a6332bf37.pdf


June 20, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

11.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 

LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 

54956.9(d)(2) (Late Claim of Martha Carter)

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 

54956.9(d)(2) (Claim of City of Vallejo)

3:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

11.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government 

Code Section 54957(B)(1))

Title: Executive Director

3:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

13.1 Approval of Next Meeting Date of July 18, 2018 and Adjournment 

4:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely accessible 

to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa Ca by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 

June 15, 2018.

____________________________________

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/13/2018

Karalyn Sanderlin (e-sign) June 13, 2018



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 11/17 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 

ATP Active Transportation Program 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 

CAP Climate Action Plan  

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  

COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  

FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program 

HTF Highway Trust Fund  

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  

PMS Pavement Management System  

7



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 11/17 

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  

RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNCI Solano Napa Commuter Information 

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  

TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

8



625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

Napa Valley Transportation 

Authority
Meeting Minutes

NVTA Board of Directors

1:30 PM NVTA Conference RoomWednesday, May 16, 2018

1. Call to Order

Vice Chair Canning called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited at the preceding Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 

Agency (NVTA-TA) meeting.

3. Roll Call

Leon Garcia

Alan Galbraith

James Barnes

Chris Canning

Jill Techel

Paul Dohring

Mark Joseph

John F. Dunbar

Doris Gentry

Kerri Dorman

Fran Rosenberg

Alfredo Pedroza

Belia Ramos

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by BARNES, SECONDED by GALBRAITH to APPROVE adoption of the agenda.  

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gentry, and Dorman20 - 

Absent: Pedroza, and Ramos4 - 

5. Public Comment

None

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) Update

MTC Commissioners' Update

In Commissioner Pedroza's absence, Kate Miller, NVTA Executive Director, reported on recent 

MTC activities.

Page 1Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2018

9

June 20, 2019
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1

Continued From: New
Action Requested: APPROVE



May 16, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

7. Executive Director's Update

Kate Miller, Executive Director

• Announced that NVTA was awarded a Caltrans Sustainable Communities Planning grant in the

amount of $250,000 for improvements on Imola Avenue.  The City of Napa, the County of Napa,

and NVTA have been working together along with Caltrans to evaluate complete streets

improvements between Skyline Park on the east side to Foster Road on the west side.

• Reported that on Bike to Work Day NVTA hosted an energizer station at the foot of the Vine

Trail on Soscol Avenue at Vallejo Street.  This year, 790 adults and children participated in Napa

County, including  supervisors Alfredo Pedroza, Brad Wagenknecht, and Ryan Gregory.

• Announced that with support from the Napa Valley Vintners and BottleRock, NVTA will once

again provide free rides on the Vine from Friday through Sunday of BottleRock weekend (May

25-27).

• Reported the meeting handout packet included a fact sheet (handout #3) showing all of the

Bay Area projects that will be funded this year with Senate Bill 1 funding, including critical local

roads projects in Napa County.

8. Caltrans' Update

Ahmad Rahimi, Caltrans, provided an update on the status of various projects located in the 

county.

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1 - 9.5)

Motion MOVED by DOHRING, SECONDED by BARNES to APPROVE adoption of the agenda.  

Motion carried by the following vote:"

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gentry, and Dorman20 - 

Absent: Pedroza, and Ramos4 - 

9.1 Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2018 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 8-13)

Draft MinutesAttachments:

Board action approved the meeting minutes of April 18, 2018.

9.2 Resolution No. 18-13 Adopting the Napa Valley Transportation Authority's (NVTA's) 

Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years 2018-19 and 2019-20 (Justin Paniagua) (Pages 14-31)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Board action approved Resolution No. 18-13 adopting NVTA's biennial budget for FY's 2018-19 

and 2019-20.

9.3 Notice of Completion for the Soscol Gateway Transit Center Board Room Audiovisual 

Improvements (Herb Fredricksen) (Pages 32-35)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Board action authorized the filing of the Notice of Completion with the Recorder-County Clerk for 

the Soscol Gateway Transit Center Board Room Audiovisual Improvements project.

Page 2Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2018

10

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d1a6fa30-c3f1-496e-8d85-9988c585bafc.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7817c7fc-82fe-4e03-b869-97beb97e7666.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e82a4e2e-aaa1-4571-a154-5a9ca45b0c80.pdf


May 16, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

9.4 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Three-Year Projects List for 

Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2019 through 2021 (Diana Meehan) (Pages 36-64)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Board action approved the TFCA Program Manager projects list for FYE 2019 through 2021 

allocating $594,227.

9.5 Membership into the National Joint Powers Alliance (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 65-66)

Staff ReortAttachments:

Board action approved NVTA's membership in the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA).

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility Project 60% Design Update (Rebecca Schenck) 

(Pages 67-81)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Information Only / No Action Taken

Staff provided an update on the 60% design of the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility Project.

Page 3Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2018

11

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d57a20f-23e8-42a1-92f6-76e8980ffa1c.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0f6f7ece-3d4d-4101-a947-d74ecef90dec.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=00d2869e-8be1-43d2-88b2-776695a50420.pdf


May 16, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

10.2 Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 82-108)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Staff reviewed several options for amending the Agency's OPEB benefits and recommended that 

the Board direct staff to seek actuarial evaluation for  Proposed Benefit #3 (Attachment 1, page 

90) for consideration for adoption by the Board at a future date.

Motion MOVED by GENTRY, SECONDED by DORMAN to APPROVE directing staff to seek actuarial 

evaluation for Proposed Benefit #3, as shown below (and Attachment 1, page 90), for 

consideration for adoption by the Board at a future date.

Authority pays % of $500 cap ($750 for dual coverage, i.e employee + spouse) based on Authority 

years of service as shown in the table below with no future increases.

Service        %

   10     50%

   11     55%

   12     60%

   13     65%

   14     70%

   15     75%

   16     80%

   17     85%

   18     90%

   19     95%

   20           100%

PEMCHA minimum ($128 in 2017) for individuals with less that 10 years of Authority service at 

retirement.  Grandfathered retiree will receive no less than his current benefit.

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gentry, and Dorman20 - 

Absent: Pedroza, and Ramos4 - 

10.3 Federal and State Legislative Updates and State Bill Matrix (Kate Miller) (Pages 

109-124)

Staff ReportAttachments:

The Board received the monthly Federal and State Legislative updates and took the following 

action on the recommended proposed legislation included in the State Bill Matrix.

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Support & Seek Amendments on 

AB 2581 (Grayson D).  Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Gentry, and Dorman20 - 

Absent: Pedroza, and Ramos4 - 

Page 4Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2018

12

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=891fb9f5-c8d2-442e-b897-43a4a600d6b4.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8a398fb9-3c11-4536-9c0f-153e1c6ae4df.pdf


May 16, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of June 20, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. and Adjournment

The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, June 20, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.

Vice Chair Canning adjourned the meeting at 2:48 p.m.

____________________________________

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 5Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2018

13



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PCC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Shaveta Sharma, Transportation Program Planner 
(707) 259-8287 / Email: ssharma@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 18-14 Approving the Lifeline Transportation Program 
Cycle 5 Project Funds for Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 and Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2017-18 for the Imola Avenue Park and Ride Improvement 
Project 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Board approve Resolution No. 18-14 
approving the Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5 Project Funds for FY 2016-17 and 
FY 2017-18 for the Imola Park and Ride Improvement Project (Attachment 1) 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

At the June 7, 2018 meeting, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) reviewed and 
recommend that the NVTA Board of Directors approve the Lifeline Transportation 
Program Cycle 5 Program of Projects. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A call for projects was issued April 5, 2018 wherein up to $453,811 in federal and state 
funds were made available to public transit operators, non-profits, and other local 
government agencies through a competitive application and evaluation process.  These 
funds are to be used to address transportation gaps or barriers identified in community-
based transportation plans or other local planning efforts in low income neighborhoods.  

NVTA submitted the only application.  This application is for the Imola Park and Ride 
improvements (Attachment 2) that are identified in the Vine Express Bus Study.  The 
Imola Park and Ride Improvements address one of the four priority categories identified 
in the most recent Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) completed in 2015: 

• Enhance Bus Service – Extend various bus routes and frequencies and capital
amenities throughout the county system

14

mailto:ssharma@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  No   
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) makes funding available to improve 
mobility of low income communities through the Lifeline Program.  The funds are 
distributed to counties on low income population formula and are administered by each 
congestion management agency.  The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
serves as the congestion management agency (CMA) for Napa County.  All interested 
non-profit organizations and public agencies were invited to submit applications for 
funding. 
 
The program is intended to fund projects included in community-based transportation 
plans or other planning efforts, including projects that: (1) are developed through a 
collaborative and inclusive planning process; (2) improve transportation choices; (3) 
address transportation gaps identified in the Community Based Transportation Program 
(CBTP) or other local planning efforts; and (4) focus on transportation needs specific to 
elderly and disabled residents of low income communities. 
 
Specific project examples that were identified in the 2015 Community Based 
Transportation Plan and eligible for Lifeline funds include: 
 

• Napa County Expansion of Class I Bicycle Facilities  
• Install Traffic Calming Devices, Upgrade Sidewalk, Lighting, and Landscaping in 

Downtown St. Helena 
• Widen Sidewalks on Main St. from First St. to Third St. 
• New Bus Shelters and Bus Stop Amenities 

 
Eligible Applicants:   
 
Public agencies, county social service agencies, cities and counties, and non-profit 
organizations are eligible applicants.  However, since State Transit Assistance (STA), and 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 funds are all statutorily restricted to 
eligible public transit agencies, applicants must partner with NVTA to access the 
revenues.  
  

15



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Available Funding: 
The fund sources and estimated amounts are: 
 

Fund Source 
Amount Total 

FY 2017 FY 2018  

FTA Section 5307 Funds $74,438 $75,960 $150,398 

STA $152,057 $151,356 $303,413 

Total $226,495 $227,316 $453,811 

 
Local Matching Fund Requirement: 
The Lifeline Program requires a minimum match of 20% of the total project cost.  Lifeline 
Transportation Program funds may cover a maximum of 80% of the total project cost. 
 
Project Delivery Requirements: 
For projects receiving FY 2017 funds, the project must be complete by August 2021, and 
August 2022 for FY 2018 funds. 
 
Application/Scores: 
Applications were due to NVTA no later than April 20, 2018 by 5:00 p.m.  The evaluation 
staff consists of CMA staff and MTC identified local stakeholders.  NVTA submitted the 
only Lifeline application.  The funds will be used to make improvements on State Route 
29 (SR-29) and Imola Avenue, northbound and southbound on/off ramps to serve Vine 
transit express bus services.   
 
Below is the average score given by the five panel jury on the NVTA’s application: 
 

Applicant 
Name 

Jurisdiction/Location Project Score 

NVTA Imola/SR-29 
Intersection 

Transit improvements to Imola Park 
and Ride facility  

110/125 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments (1) Resolution No. 18-14 

(2) Imola Park and Ride Improvements Lifeline Application 

16



 
 

RESOLUTION No. 18-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY (NVTA) 

APPROVING THE LIFELINE TRANSPORTATION 
PROGRAM CYCLE 5 PROJECT FUNDS FOR FY 2016-17 AND FY 2017-18 
FOR THE IMOLA AVENUE PARK AND RIDE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has established 

a Lifeline Transportation Program to assist in funding projects that (1) are intended to 
result in improved mobility for low-income residents of the nine San Francisco Bay Area 
counties, (2) are developed through a collaborative and inclusive planning process and 
(3) are proposed to address transportation gaps and/or barriers identified through a 
substantive community-based transportation plan or are otherwise based on a 
documented assessment of needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, MTC has adopted principles, pursuant to MTC Resolution No. 4309, 
to guide implementation of the Lifeline Transportation Program for the two year period 
from Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Fiscal Year 2017-18, and has designated the County 
Congestion Management Agency (or another countywide entity) in each of the nine bay 
area counties to help with recommending project selections and project administration; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA has been designated by MTC to assist with the Lifeline 
Transportation Program in Napa County on behalf of MTC; and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA conducted a competitive call for projects for the Lifeline 
Transportation Program in Napa County; and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA submitted a project in response to the competitive call for 
projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, NVTA has confirmed that NVTA’s proposed project, described more 
fully on Attachment A to this Resolution, attached to and incorporated herein as though 
set forth at length, is consistent with the Lifeline Transportation Program goals as set out 
in MTC Resolution No. 4309; and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA, after review, recommends NVTA’s proposed project, 
described more fully on Attachment A to this Resolution, attached to and incorporated 
herein as though set forth at length, be funded in part under the Lifeline Transportation 
Program; and  
  

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

June 20, 2018 

17



Resolution No. 18-14 
Page 2 of 4 

 
WHEREAS, NVTA agrees to meet project delivery and obligation deadlines, 

comply with funding conditions placed on the receipt of funds allocated to the Lifeline 
Transportation Program, provide for the required local matching funds, and satisfy all 
other conditions set forth in MTC Resolution No. 4309; and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA certifies that the project and purpose for which funds are being 
requested is in compliance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.), and with the State Environmental 
Impact Report Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations Section 1500 et seq.) and 
if relevant the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 USC Section 4-1 et seq. and 
the applicable regulations thereunder; and 
 

WHEREAS, there is no legal impediment to NVTA making the funding request; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, there is no pending or threatened litigation which might in any way 
adversely affect the ability of NVTA to deliver the proposed project for which funds are 
being requested; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that NVTA requests that MTC program 
funds available under its Lifeline Transportation Program, in the amounts requested for 
which NVTA is eligible, for the project described in Attachment A of this Resolution; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that staff of NVTA shall forward a copy of this 

Resolution, and such other information as may be required, to MTC, and such other 
agencies as may be appropriate. 
 
Passed and adopted this 20th day of June, 2018. 
 
 
______________________      Ayes 
Peter G. White, NVTA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                Nays: 
 
 
                Absent: 
  

18



Resolution No. 18-14 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 
 

19



Resolution No. 18-14 
Page 4 of 4 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5 Projects 
 

 
 

Project Name Project Description 

Lifeline Transportation Program 
Funding Amounts 

Local 
Match 

Amount 

Total 
Project 

Cost 

STA 5307 
Total Lifeline 

Funding 
  

Imola Park and 
Ride 

Transit improvements to an 
existing Park and Ride at 
SR29/Imola Ave 
 

$226,495 $227,316 $453,811 $3,596,829 $4,050,100 

Total  $226,495 $227,316 $453,811 $3,596,829 $4,050,100 

 

20



ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2

June 20, 2018

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director  

REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Transportation Programs Planner 
(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Americans with Disabilities (ADA) Self-Evaluation Plan 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board review and approve the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-Evaluation Plan (Attachment 1). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Paratransit Coordinating Council reviewed the ADA Self-Evaluation Plan at their May 
3, 2018 meeting and recommend that the NVTA Board approve the plan. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, NVTA is required to complete a Self-
Evaluation of its policies and practices.  This ensures that NVTA does not discriminate 
against people with disabilities that utilize the agency’s programs, services, and activities. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact?  No 

31

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.3 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), signed into law on July 26, 1990, is a 
comprehensive formulation of the rights of people with disabilities.  Title II of the ADA 
regulations prohibits public entities from discriminating against or excluding people from 
programs, services, or activities on the basis of disability.  Title II applies to all entities 
receiving federal financial assistance.   The provisions of Title II fall into four broad areas: 
 

1) Nondiscriminatory employment practices 
2) General nondiscrimination in programs and activities – through reasonable 

modifications in policies practices or procedures 
3) Equally effective communications – through the provision of auxiliary aids and 

services 
4) Program and facility accessibility – through nonstructural or architectural 

modifications 
 

Title II requires public entities to conduct a self-evaluation of policies and practices to 
ensure that entities do not discriminate against people with disabilities through their 
programs, services and activities.  This is the first Self-Evaluation Plan completed by 
NVTA.  
 

ADA Liaison Officer 

As a requirement of receiving federal aid, each local agency shall designate an Americans 
with Disability Act (ADA) Liaison Officer, who coordinates the efforts of the administering 
agency compliance.  The purpose of this requirement is to ensure that when the public 
deals with state and local government agencies, they are easily able to identity a person 
who is familiar with the requirements of the ADA and who can communicate these 
requirements to other individuals in the agency.   
 
NVTA has selected Rebecca Schenck as the authority ADA Compliance Coordinator.  
Only public entities with fifty or more employees are required to designate an ADA 
coordinator, but in order to ensure that Title II nondiscrimination, accessibility and other 
requirements are met, NVTA found it useful to designate an ADA Compliance Coordinator 
even though it has less than 50 employees.  
 

Grievance Procedure 
NVTA is not required to establish a grievance procedure under Federal Law because it 
has less than 50 employees.  Nevertheless, NVTA already has a grievance procedure 
established under its Title VI Plan that was modified to meet the Title II requirement.  The 
procedure is outline in detail in Attachment 1.  
  

32



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.3 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Self-Evaluation 
A comprehensive review of NVTA’s current policies and practices, including 
communication and employment was completed through a self-evaluation.  The self-
evaluation 
 

1) Identifies any policies or practices that do not comply with the Title II requirements; 
and 

2) Modifies policies and practices to bring them in compliance. 
 

The results of the self-evaluation include a list of needed changes to NVTA’s physical 
assets such as the areas surrounding NVTA owned bus shelters and the trailer at the 
Jackson Street Maintenance Yard along with changes to policies and programs. 
Attachment 1 contains all of the results of the Self-Evaluation Plan. 
 
Facility Barrier Removal Modification 

Soscol Gateway 
Transit Center, 625 
Burnell Street Napa, 
CA 94559 

Install power-assisted or automatic door openers at the Board Room 
entrance.  Install signs that have raised letters, Grade II Braille and that 
meet all other requirements for space signage on the exterior doors 
leading to the Board Room and NVTA offices.  Move Burnell Street 
signs at facility entrance “Buses Only” and “No Unauthorized Vehicles” 
to a height greater than 80 inches.  Install a soap dispenser in the Board 
Room public restroom that can be used with one fist. 

Jackson Street 
Mobile Office and 
Transit Yard 

Three questionnaires were completed for this facility 1 Mobile Office, 2) 
Main Entrance and Transit Yard, and 3) Maintenance Bays 

Mobile Office Ramps and Doorways into offices ADA compliant. 

Main Entrance and 
Transit Yard 

Add railings to ramps more than 6 feet long.  Remodel ramp to front 
door so there is a 5-foot landing at every 30-foot horizontal length of 
ramp and so the ramp rise is no more than 30 inches between landings.  
Install a sign reading "Van Accessible" at the van space. Adjust Front 
Door closer so it takes longer than 3 seconds to close.    

Maintenance Bays While there is an obstructions within 18 inch on the pull side of the door 
next to the handle at the maintenance facility, it is a building support 
and cannot be moved. 

Bus Shelter - 3197 
Laurel St. Napa  

Change position of bracket on trash can or install a smaller trash can 
to allow for 36 inch clearance behind the shelter. 

Bus Shelter - 
Jefferson-Vintage 
High 

Change position of bracket on trash can to allow for 36 inch clearance 
behind the shelter. 

Bus Shelter  - 494 
Soscol Avenue 

Replace 5 ft. by 5 ft. and 17 ½ ft. by 9 1/2 ft. concrete pads.  

Bus Shelter - 3694 
Jefferson St. 

Replace 4 ft. by 3 1/2 ft. cracked concrete square.  Replace sidewalk 
since there is a 1 1/2 inch height difference with the curb. 

Bus Shelter - 3238 
Browns Valley 

Replace 5 ft. by 9 ft., 5 ft. by 5 1/2ft and 9 ½ ft. by 5 ft. concrete pads.  
Eliminate curb separation. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 

Attachments: (1) Americans with Disabilities Act Self-Evaluation Plan, 2018 

33



 

Self –Evaluation Page 1 of 73 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

June 20, 2018 

34



 

Self –Evaluation Page 2 of 73 
 

 

Table of Contents 
Chapter 1: Background ....................................................................................................................... 3 

Chapter 2: Designate an ADA Compliance Coordinator ........................................................................ 4 

Chapter 3: Provide Notice of ADA Requirements ................................................................................. 5 

Chapter 4: Establish a Grievance Procedure ........................................................................................ 6 

Chapter 5: Conduct a Self-Evaluation .................................................................................................. 8 

5.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 8 

5.2 General Nondiscrimination Provisions ........................................................................................... 8 

5.3 Program and Facility Accessibility ................................................................................................. 12 

5.4 Summary of Facility Checklist Findings ......................................................................................... 13 

5.5 Remedies to Correct Deficiencies ................................................................................................. 14 

Chapter 6: Implementing Modifications ............................................................................................ 15 

Chapter 7: Develop a Transition Plan ................................................................................................ 16 

Appendix A:  Completed ADA Self Evaluation Questionnaires  ........................................................... 18 

Appendix B:  Napa Valley Transportation Authority ADA Disability Access or Title 24 Accessibility 
Complaint Form ............................................................................................................................... 32 

Appendix C:  Public Meeting Minutes ............................................................................................... 35 

Appendix D:  ADA Coordinator Public Notice .................................................................................... 36 

Appendix E:  Facility Checklist ........................................................................................................... 37 

Appendix F:  Excerpts NVTA Policies and Procedures Manual Chapter 3: Personnel Policies ............... 53 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 

Self –Evaluation Page 3 of 73 
 

 

 

 

Chapter 1: Background 
The American with Disabilities Act (ADA) signed into law on July 26, 1990 is a comprehensive 
formulation of the rights of people with disabilities.  Title II of the ADA regulations prohibits public 
entities from discriminating against or excluding people from programs services or activities on the basis 
of disability.  Title II applies to all entities receiving federal financial assistance.   The provisions of Title II 
fall into four broad areas: 
 

1) Nondiscriminatory employment practices 
2) General nondiscrimination in programs and activities – though reasonable modifications in 

policies practices or procedures 
3) Equally effective communications – through the provision of auxiliary aids and services 
4) Program and facilities accessibility – through nonstructural or architectural modifications 

 
Title II requires public entities to conduct a self-evaluation of policies and practices to assure that 
entities do not discriminate against people with disabilities in their programs, services and activities.  
This document is the first Self-Evaluation Plan completed by NVTA.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

36



Self-Evaluation Page 4 of 73 
 
 

Chapter 2: ADA Compliance Coordinator 
As part of receiving federal aid, each local agency shall designate an Americans with Disability Act (ADA) 
Liaison Officer, who coordinates the efforts of the administering agency to comply with 49 CFR 27.  The 
purpose of this requirement is to ensure that when the public deals with state and local government 
agencies, they are easily able to identity a person who is familiar with the requirements of the ADA and 
who can communicate these requirements to other individuals in the agency. The NVTA has selected 
Rebecca Schenck as the authority ADA Compliance Coordinator and will be providing proper public 
notice. A copy of that public notice is included as Appendix D.  The role of the ADA Compliance 
Coordinator includes: 

1) Coordinating Overall ADA Compliance 
2) Involving People with Disabilities and Interested Parties in the Compliance Process 
3) Conducting the Self-Evaluation 
4) Investigating Grievances 

Only public entities with fifty or more employees are required to designate an ADA coordinator, but in 
order to ensure that Title II nondiscrimination, accessibility and other requirements are met, NVTA 
found it useful to designate an ADA Compliance Coordinator even though it has less than 50 employees.  
 

 

37



Self-Evaluation Page 5 of 73 
 
 

Chapter 3: Noticing ADA Requirements 
All public entities, regardless of size, must provide information to applicants, participants, beneficiaries, 
employees and other interested parties regarding the rights and protections afforded by Title II, 
including information on how the Title II requirements apply to particular programs, services and 
activities.   The notice provided in Appendix D will serve as this notice as well.  This notice will be posted 
at the time of the adoption of the Self Evaluation Plan as well as on an ongoing basis.  Newspaper 
advertisements will be placed within one month of the Plan’s proposed adoption in the Napa Valley 
Register. It will also be read on the radio to fulfill the alternative formats requirements.  It will be posted 
on both the NVTA.ca.gov and the Ridethevine.com websites in perpetuity so that all customers and the 
public at large are made aware of the agency’s ADA policies.  NVTA will also post this notice at the ticket 
office at the Soscol Gateway Transit Center where many customer come to purchase transit passes and 
take public transportation.   

 

38



6 

 

 

Chapter 4: Grievance Procedure 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority is not required to establish a grievance procedure under 
Federal Law because it has less than 50 employees. That being said, NVTA already has a grievance 
procedure established under its Title VI Plan that was modified to meet this requirement.  The new 
grievance procedure is as follows: 
1. Any person who feels that he or she, individually, or as a member of any class of persons, on the 

basis of race, color, national origin, age, sex, disability, religion, or low-income status has been 
excluded from or denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any program or 
activity receiving federal financial assistance through NVTA may file a written complaint with the 
ADA Coordinator.  The complaint form (Appendix B) may be found on the NVTA website by 
clicking the following link: www.nvta.ca.gov or is available in hard copy at NVTA.  A formal 
complaint must be filed within 180 days of the alleged occurrence. 

 
2. In cases where the complainant is unable or incapable of providing a written statement, a verbal 

complaint may be made.  The ADA Compliance Coordinator will interview the complainant and if 
necessary assist the person in converting verbal complaints to writing.  All complaints must, 
however, be signed by the complainant or his/her representative. 

 
3. Complaints shall state, as fully as possible, the facts and circumstances surrounding the alleged 

discrimination. 
 
4. NVTA will provide the complainant or his/her representative and any contractor (respondent) 

with a written acknowledgement that NVTA has received the complaint within five (5) working 
days of receipt. 

 
5. The ADA Compliance Coordinator will appoint one or more staff review officers, as appropriate, 

to evaluate and investigate the complaint. 
 
6. The review officer(s) will determine if the complaint has investigative merit: 

a. It was received within 180 days of the alleged occurrence. 
b. It is does not appear to be frivolous or trivial. 
c. It involves NVTA or NVTA contractors and not another entity. 
d. A complaint against a contractor involves a NVTA Federally Funded contract. 

 
7. The complainant and contractor or other party to the complaint will be notified of the status of 

the complaint within ten (10) days of receipt of the complaint, by registered mail; 
a. That the complaint will not be investigated and the reasons why the complaint does not 

have investigative merit. 
b. That the complaint will be investigated and a request for additional information needed 

to assist the investigator. 
  

8. The complainant or contractor must submit the requested information within 60 working days 
from the date of the original request.  Failure of the complainant to submit additional 
information within the designated timeframe may be considered good cause for a 
determination of no investigative merit.  Failure of the contractor to submit additional 

39



7 

 

 

information within the designated timeframe may be considered good cause for a 
determination of noncompliance under the contract. 

 
9. The review officer(s) and/or contractor must within 15 working days, supply the Executive 

Director with status report of their investigation and/or resolution of the complaint. 
 
10. Within 60 working days of the receipt of the complaint, the ADA Compliance Coordinator will 

prepare a written report for the Executive Director.   
The report shall include: 

a. A narrative description of the incident.  Including persons or entities involved. 
b. A statement of the issues raised by the complainant and the respondent’s reply to each 

of the allegations. 
c. Citations of relevant Federal, State and local laws, NVTA policy etc. 
d. Description of the investigation, including list of the persons contacted and a summary 

of the interviews conducted. 
e. A statement of the investigator’s finding and recommendations for disposition. 

  
11. The investigative report and findings of the complaint will be sent to legal counsel for review. 
 
12. The Executive Director shall, based on the information before him or her and in consult with 

legal counsel, make a determination on the disposition of the complaint.  Determination shall be 
made within ten (10) days from Executive Director’s receipt of the investigator’s report.  
Examples of disposition are as follows: 

a. Complainant is found to have been discriminated against.  NVTA or contractor is 
therefore noncompliant with Title II regulations.  Reasons for the determination will be 
listed.  Remedial actions that NVTA or the contractor must take will be listed.  

b. Complaint is found to be without merit.  Reasons why will be listed. 
  

13. Notice of the Executive Director’s determination will be mailed to the complainant and 
contractor.  Notice shall include information regarding appeal rights of complainant to the NVTA 
Board of Directors and instructions for initiating such an appeal with fifteen (15) calendar days.  
Example of a notice of appeal follows: 

a. NVTA will reconsider this determination, if new facts arise that were not previously 
considered.  

40



8 

 

 

 

Chapter 5: Self-Evaluation Process 

1.1 Introduction 
All public entities, regardless of size, must conduct a self-evaluation.  The self-evaluation is a 
comprehensive review of the NVTA’s current policies and practices, including communication and 
employment.  Through the self-evaluation, NVTA must: 
 

1) Identify any policies or practices that do not comply with the Title II requirements; and 
2) Modify policies and practices to bring them in compliance. 

 
The regulations require that NVTA provide an opportunity for people with disabilities and other 
interested individuals or organizations to review and comment on the self-evaluation.  Therefore, NVTA 
took this self-evaluation plan to its Paratransit Coordinating Council for review and comment at their 
May 3, 2018 meeting.  The Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) serves in an advisory capacity to the 
NVTA Board of Director's on the transportation issues of persons with special needs, including elderly, 
disabled, and those of low income. The PCC membership included nine (9) voting members, 
representing the following categories: 
 
 (1) Consumer/user 60 years of age or older 
 (1) Consumer/user persons with disabilities 
 (1) Social services provider for seniors 
 (2) Social services providers for persons with disabilities 
 (1) Social services provider for persons of limited means. 
 (2) Members of the public residing within an urbanized area 
 (1) Member of the public residing within a nonurbanized area 
 
 Representatives of no more than two separately contracted transportation service providers 
may be included as ex-officio, advisory, non-voting members. Members may represent more than one of 
the above categories. 

1.2 General Nondiscrimination Provisions 
The self-evaluation must include a thorough review of both the formal written policies and the actual 
operating practices of each program, service of activity in relation to the general prohibitions against 
discrimination contained in Title II.  
 
The following page contains the organizational chart of the NVTA.  There are two main departments at 
NVTA 1) Administration, Finance and Policy, and 2) Programs, Projects and Planning. The Directors of 
both of these departments have filled out the ADA Self-Evaluation Plan Questionnaire (See Appendix A).  
Since the Title II regulations also apply to all contractual relationships, and NVTA has a major contractual 
relationship with Transdev Services Inc. to operate its public transit service, this contract will be covered 

41



9 

 

 

under a second questionnaire completed by the Programs, Projects and Planning Director. That 
department oversees the contract with Transdev Services Inc. Note, Transdev Services Inc. is already 
required to comply with Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) in 
its existing contract with NVTA.  

42



Self-Evaluation Page 10 of 73 
 
 

43



Self-Evaluation Page 11 of 73 
 
 

5.3 Program and Facility Accessibility 
The ADA prohibits public entities from denying people with disabilities equal opportunity to participate 
in programs and activities because facilities are inaccessible. This does not mean, however, that all 
buildings must be made fully architecturally accessible.  The requirement is that a public entity operate 
each program so that when viewed in its entirety, the program is readily accessible to and usable by 
people with disabilities. Therefore, NVTA conducted a facility access review. This review identified 
physical obstacles or barriers to the participation of people with disabilities.  The following is a list of the 
facilities owned or leased by NVTA: 
 

1) Soscol Gateway Transit Center, 625 Burnell Street Napa, CA 94559 
2) Yountville Park and Ride Lot 
3) Jackson Street Mobile Office and Transit Yard   
4) Redwood Park N Ride     
5) Bus Shelter -  Coombs St. and Elm St. 
6) Bus Shelter - 3197 Laurel St. Napa  
7) Bus Shelter - Jefferson-Vintage High   
8) Bus Shelter - 575 Third St (Fairgrounds)   
9) Bus Shelter - Napa High - 2475 Jefferson St.   
10) Bus Shelter  - 494 Soscol Avenue   
11) Bus Shelter - 3694 Jefferson St.   
12) Bus Shelter - 1745 Imola Ave   
13) Bus Shelter - East Avenue-Alta Heights Elementary   
14) Bus Shelter - 3238 Browns Valley   
15) Bus Shelter - Soscol Ave and Pueblo St.   

   

NVTA staff using the facilities checklist provided in Appendix E surveyed each of these 15 facilities.   All 
of the bus shelters, items 5 through 15, are included in one checklist.  This review will be completed 
every five years or when NVTA receives complaints.  

1.4 Summary of Facility Checklist Findings 
NVTA plans to address the inaccessible facilities as identified with the Facility Checklist as follows: 
 
Facility Barrier Removal Modification 
Soscol  Gateway Transit 
Center, 625 Burnell 
Street Napa, CA 94559 

Install power-assisted or automatic door openers at the Board Room 
entrance.  Install signs that have raised letters, Grade II Braille and that meet 
all other requirements for space signage on the exterior doors leading to the 
Board Room and NVTA offices. Move Burnell Street signs at facility entrance 
“Buses Only” and “No Unauthorized Vehicles” to a height greater than 80 
inches. Install a soap dispenser in the Board Room public restroom that can be 
used with one fist. 

Yountville Park and 
Ride Lot 

Facility was complete in 2017 and is ADA Compliant 

44



12 

 

 

Jackson Street Mobile 
Office  and Transit Yard 

Three questionnaires were completed for this facility 1 Mobile Office, 2) Main 
Entrance and Transit Yard, and 3) Maintenance Bays 

      Mobile Office Ramps and Doorways into offices ADA compliant. 
      Main Entrance and      
      Transit Yard 

Add railings to ramps more than 6 feet long.  Remodel ramp to front door so 
there is a 5-foot landing at every 30-foot horizontal length of ramp and so the 
ramp rise is no more than 30 inches between landings.  Install a sign reading 
"Van Accessible" at the van space. Adjust Front Door closer so it takes longer 
than 3 seconds to close.    

      Maintenance Bays While there is an obstructions within 18in on the pull side of the door next to 
the handle at the maintenance facility, it is a building support and cannot be 
moved. 

Redwood Park N Ride Facility was complete in 2010 and is ADA Compliant 
Bus  Shelter - Coombs 
St. and Elm St. 

ADA Compliant 

 Bus Shelter - 3197 
Laurel St. Napa  

Change position of bracket on trashcan or install a smaller trashcan to allow 
for 36in clearance behind the shelter. 

Bus Shelter - Jefferson-
Vintage High 

Change position of bracket on trash can to allow for 36in clearance behind the 
shelter. 

Bus Shelter - 575 Third 
St (Fairgrounds) 

ADA Compliant 

Bus Shelter - Napa High 
- 2475 Jefferson St. 

ADA Compliant 

Bus Shelter  - 494 
Soscol Avenue 

Replace 5ft by 5ft and 17 1/2ft by 9 1/2 ft. concrete pads.  

Bus Shelter - 3694 
Jefferson St. 

Replace 4ft by 3 1/2 ft. cracked concrete square.  Replace sidewalk since there 
is a 1 1/2 in height difference with the curb. 

Bus Shelter - 1745 
Imola Ave 

ADA Compliant 

Bus Shelter - East 
Avenue - Alta Heights 
Elementary 

ADA Compliant 

Bus Shelter - 3238 
Browns Valley 

Replace 5ft by 9ft, 5 ft by 5 1/2ft and 9 1/2ft by 5ft concrete pads.  Eliminate 
curb separation. 

Bus Shelter - Soscol Ave 
and Pueblo St. 

ADA Compliant 

 

Note that NVTA purchased property and is designing a new Maintenance Facility to replace the old 
facility at Jackson Street.  The new facility will be ADA Compliant. 
  

45



13 

 

 

1.5 Employment Review 
NVTA Policies and Procedures Manual Chapter 3: Personnel Policies addresses the employment 
regulations covered in Title II of the ADA which prohibits all public entities, regardless of the number of 
employees, from discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in employment. Relevant 
excerpts of Chapter 3 are provided as Appendix F 
 

46



14 

 

 

 

Chapter 6:  Implementing Modifications  
The results of the Self-Evaluation must lead to modifications to policies and practices, development of 
communication capacities as well as program access solutions both nonstructural and structural.  

2.1 Modifying Policies and Practices 
Policies and practices identified as exclusionary or discriminatory need to be modified as soon as 
possible.  The answers to the two ADA Self-Evaluation Plan Questionnaires completed by the Projects, 
Programs and Planning Department and the Administration, Finance and Policy Department are  
organized into general policies and practices and communication access assessment. 

2.1.1 General Policies and Practices 
The questionnaire indicates that the Projects, Program and Planning Department needs to notify all 
contractors of its responsibility for providing contracted services in a nondiscriminatory manner and add 
the required assurances in Title II of the ADA to all contracts.   Therefore, the department will include 
Title II clauses in all future contracts and any contract renewals. 

2.1.2 Communication Access Assessment 
The answers to the questionnaire shed light on the fact that while NVTA does have access to a 
Telecommunication Device for the Deaf (TDD) that staff are not trained to use it.  As a follow-up to this 
plan, the ADA Compliance Coordinator will train NVTA transit staff as well as contractors in the customer 
service office on TDD. NVTA departments comply with all other communication requirements.  

2.2 Future Policies and Practices 
In order to ensure that future policies and practices comply with the nondiscrimination requirements of 
Title II, NVTA will take the following steps: 
 

1) Update its Policies, Practices and Procedures Manual annually 
2) Continue to include nondiscrimination requirements in contracts 
3) Include nondiscrimination requirements in all requests for proposals and requests for 

qualifications  

2.3 Creating Program and Facility Access 
The ADA standard is that the program, when viewed in its entirety, must be readily accessible to and 
usable by people with a disability. With this in mind, NVTA looked for access solutions both 
nonstructural and structural for each program or service identified as inaccessible.  The nonstructural 
solutions include adding Title II assurances in all NVTA contracts as well as training staff on how to use 
the NVTA TDD service.   The structural changes outlined in detail in Section 5.4 include ADA 

47



15 

 

 

improvements to the Soscol Gateway Transit Center, the building of a new Maintenance Facility and 
improvements to several bus shelters owned by NVTA. 

48



16 

 

 

 
Chapter 7: Transition Plan 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority is not required to complete a Transition Plan under Federal 
Law because it has less than 50 employees 

49



17 

 

 

 

Appendix 

Appendix A:  ADA Self Evaluation Questionnaires 

Appendix B:  Napa Valley Transportation Authority ADA 
Disability Access or Title 24 Accessibility Complaint 
Form 

Appendix C:  Public Meeting Minutes 
 

Appendix D:  ADA Coordinator Public Notice 
 

Appendix E:  Facility Checklist 
 

Appendix F: Excerpts NVTA Policies and Procedures 
Manual Chapter 3: Personnel Policies 

 

50



18 

 

 

 

Appendix A:  Completed ADA Self 
Evaluation Questionnaires 
 

SELF-EVALUATION QUESTIONAIRES:  2018 (Napa Valley Transportation Authority) 
 
Department:  Projects, Programs and Planning  
Worksheet Completed by: Danielle Schmitz  
 

SECTION I. GENERAL POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
Description of Department:  Briefly describe the function(s) of the department and the various 
programs, activities or services offered to the public by the department. 
The department is in charge of all transportation planning, programming and project activities for the 
Agency.  The department also oversees the day-to-day operations of the Vine Transit system.  The 
department develops the countywide long-range transportation plan as well as other specific 
transportation plans and studies.  The department oversees the programming of federal, state and 
regional funding for various transportation programs.  The department also oversee countywide 
transportation demand management programs.   
 
List all the facilities or other locations where the departmental programs, activities or services operate 
or are offered on a regular or incidental basis. (Use additional sheets if necessary.) 
 
INTERNAL PROGRAM OPERATIONS 
 
A. Equal Opportunity to Participate and Benefit 
A public entity may not deny a qualified individual with a disability an opportunity to participate in and 
benefit from any program. 
 
A public entity may not afford an opportunity that is not equal to or not as effective as that provided to 
others. 
 
A public entity may not impose eligibility criteria for participation in programs that screen out people 
with disabilities either directly or indirectly, unless such criteria are necessary for the provision of the 
program’s activities. 
 

1. Are there any circumstances in which the participation of a person with a disability in 
departmental programs would be restricted or excluded? 
_____ Yes __X___ No 

51



19 

 

 

If yes, please describe: 
 
 

2. Are any of these exclusions or restrictions necessary to the operation of the programs or to the 
safety of the participants who do not have disabilities? 
_____ Yes __X___ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 
B. Reasonable Program Modification 
Public entities are required to make reasonable modification to policies or practices in order to avoid 
discrimination toward people with disabilities. A modification is not required, however, if it would 
fundamentally alter the nature of the program or activity. 
 

3. Are staff aware that it may be necessary to modify departmental program policies or practices 
to enable people with disabilities to participate in and benefit from the programs? 
___X__ Yes _____ No 

 
 

4. Is the public informed that the department is prepared to make reasonable modifications? 
__X___ Yes _____ No 

 
5. Does the department have a formal or informal process for responding to requests for 

modification? 
__X___ Yes _____ No 

 
6. Does the department have a process for determining whether a policy or practice modification 

would fundamentally alter the nature of the program? 
__ X___ Yes __ ___ No 

 
C. Surcharges and Additional Requirements 
Public entities may not impose extra charges upon people with disabilities to cover the costs of effective 
communication, program modifications, or access features, and may not impose any additional 
requirements or burdens on people with disabilities that they do not require of all other participants in 
the program. 
 

7. Are there any circumstances in which a person with a disability would be asked to pay a fee or 
meet any other requirement not imposed on other departmental program participants? 
_____ Yes ___X__ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 

52



20 

 

 

D. Integrated Settings and Separate Programs 
Promoting integration is a fundamental principle of the ADA and public entities are required to provide 
programs and activities in the most integrated settings appropriate to the needs of people with 
disabilities. 
 
Separate program or activities are permitted only when necessary to ensure equal opportunity. When 
separate programs are provided, qualified people with disabilities still cannot be excluded from 
participating in regular programs if they choose to do so. 
 

8. Does the department provide any separate activities for people with disabilities? 
__ X_ Yes _____ No 
If yes, please describe:  Both our ADA Paratransit service VineGo and our Taxi Script Program are 
options for the disabled.  All people with disabilities have the option of riding our regular Vine 
bus service as well.  

 
 

9. Are there any circumstances in which a person with a disability would be prohibited from 
participating in regular (non-separate) activities because of the provision of separate activities? 
_____ Yes __X___ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 
EXTERNAL RELATIONSHIPS 
 
A. Contracting with External Organizations 
When a public entity contracts with another organization to provide programs and services to the 
entity’s 
constituents, the public entity retains responsibility for ensuring that the contractor provides the services 
and activities in a nondiscriminatory manner consistent with the requirements of Title II of the ADA. 
 
List any contractors who provide services, benefits, or activities on behalf of departmental 
programs (attach a separate sheet, if necessary). 
 
 

10. Has the department notified each contractor of its responsibility for providing contracted 
services in a nondiscriminatory manner and has the department required assurances from 
contractors of their fulfillment of Title II of the ADA nondiscrimination and access requirements? 
__ X __ Yes __ X __ No 
If so please describe both the notification process and the process by which the entity will 
ensure compliance? Yes, so the NVTA contract with TransDev, the operator of the Vine Bus 
Service and ADA Paratransit services, but not other contractors. 
 

53



21 

 

 

B. Procurement Contracts 
In selecting procurement contractors, a public entity may not discriminate on the basis of disability.   
 

11. Are there any circumstances in which a consideration related to disability would influence the 
choice of a procurement contractor? 
_____ Yes __X___ No 
If so, please explain 
 

 

SECTION II. COMMUNICATION ACCESS ASSESSMENT COMMUNICATION ACCESS  
 
A. Visual Communication 
Information that is communicated visually—such as through printed materials or visual displays—must 
be made accessible to people with visual and cognitive disabilities through auxiliary aids and services. 
 
 

12. Do departmental programs involve information that is communicated visually? 
__X___ Yes _____ No 

 
In the chart below, list each type of information that is communicated visually. Consider all aspects of 
departmental programs, including outreach, advertising, public meetings or hearings, and 
communication with the general public, applicants and participants. Examples may include brochures, 
forms, handbooks, agendas, visual displays, etc. 
 

For each type of information, place a check (√) below the auxiliary aids or services currently available to 

people with visual disabilities. Place an "X" below any additional aids or services that may be necessary 
to provide effective communication of the information. (More than one auxiliary aid or service may be 
needed for each.) 
 

           
 Committee/Board 

Reports 
Marketing Materials  Program Forms  

Large Print √ √ √ 

Braille    
Audio Tape    
Readers    
Computers    
Pictorial Signage    
Other    

 

54



22 

 

 

 
 
B. Aural/Oral Communication 
(Note: “Aural” refers to information that is heard; “oral” refers to spoken information.) 
Programs that communicate information aurally to applicants or participants or that require an 
applicant participant to use oral communication must make that information accessible to people having 
hearing or speech disabilities by providing auxiliary aids or services. 
 

13. Do departmental programs involve information that is communicated verbally? 
_____ Yes __X___ No 

  
In the chart below, list each type of information that is communicated aurally/orally. Consider all 
communication involved in all aspects of departmental programs, including outreach, advertising, public 
meetings or hearings, and communication with the general public, applicants and participants. 
 

For each type of information, place a check (√) below the auxiliary aids or services currently available to 

people with hearing or speech disabilities. Place an "X" below any additional aids or services that may be 
necessary to provide effective communication of the information. (More than one auxiliary aid or 
service may be needed for each.) 
 
Type of Information 

 Public Meetings  Type of Information Type of Information 
Sign Language 
Interpreters 

√ (with advance 

notice) 

  

Telecommunication 
Devices for the 
Deaf (TDDs) 

√ (with advance 

notice) 

  

Paper and Pen √   

Real-time 
Captioning 

   

Caption Decoder    
Other    

 
 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. Telephone Communication 
When a public entity communicates with the public by telephone, Title II of the ADA requires that TDDs 
or equally effective means be used to communicate with people who have hearing or speech disabilities. 
Public entities should use TDDs wherever telephone communication is a substantial part of a program’s 

55



23 

 

 

operation. 
 

14. Does the department communicate regularly with the public over the telephone? 
__X___ Yes _____ No 

 
15. Are telephone communications ever lengthy, complex, or technical? 
__X__ Yes _____ No 

 
16. Does the department have a TDD, or access to a TDD? 
__ X__ Yes _____ No 

 
17. If yes, has the staff been trained in the use of the TDD? 
_____ Yes __ X__ No 

 
B. Telephone Emergency Services 
If the program provides telephone access to emergency services, the regulations require that direct 
access be provided to individuals who use TDDs; relying on a relay service is not acceptable. 
 

18. Does the department provide telephone access to emergency services? 
____ Yes __ X__ No 

 
19. If so, does the program provide direct TDD access to the emergency telephone number(s)? 
_____ Yes __ X__ No 

  
OTHER COMMUNICATION 
 
A. Emergency Warning and Evacuation 
Emergency evacuation procedures for the program, service, or activity must ensure that people with 
disabilities are made aware of emergencies and are aware of exit procedures. 
 

20. Is there a means of assuring that people with hearing disabilities are made aware of an activated 
alarm? 
__ X__ Yes _____ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 

21. Is there an established emergency evacuation procedure that addresses the needs of individuals 
with disabilities? 
__ X __ Yes ____ No 

 
B. Access Information 

56



24 

 

 

ADA Title II regulation require that public entities ensure that people with disabilities can obtain 
information about the availability and location of accessible programs, services, activities, and facilities. 
Information regarding the location of accessible entrances, program sites, TDDs, and other access 
features can be provided in a number of ways, such as in handbooks and listings. 
 

22. Explain how the departmental programs, services, or activities provide access information to 
program applications, participants, and the general public. 

 
23. Describe the types of reasonable accommodation which citizens/employees have requested to 

gain access to your departmental programs/services. 
 
 
C. Website 

24. Does your department have a website? 
__X___ Yes _____ No 
 

25. What is your department’s website? What information is provided on this site? Please describe 
briefly what information is provided:  www.nvta.ca.gov and www.ridethevine.com The NVTA 
website provides general information about our Agency and different programs and projects the 
Agency is working on.  The Ride the Vine website provides information on our transit services 
and programs.  

 
26. Does your department’s website include information about accessibility of facilities (parking, 

bathrooms, assistive listening devices, etc.) where programs or services are offered? (Only 
answer if you answered “yes” to 24. 
__ X__ Yes _____ No 
In so, please describe briefly what information is provided about accessible features: 

 
27. Does your department ensure that its website is usable by individuals with disabilities, including 

those who use speaking browsers? 
__ X__ Yes _____ No 

 
28. Are the documents provided on your website for downloading accessible to persons with visual 

disabilities? 
  __ X__ Yes _____ No 
 

Thank you for completing this survey 
 

 
 

57

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/
http://www.ridethevine.com/


25 

 

 

SELF-EVALUATION QUESTIONAIRES:  2018 (Napa Valley Transportation Authority) 
 
Department: Administration and Finance 
Worksheet Completed by: Antonio Onorato 
 

SECTION I. GENERAL POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
Description of Department:  Briefly describe the function(s) of the department and the various 
programs, activities or services offered to the public by the department. 
 

The Administration and Finance department assumes responsibility for the day-to-day fiscal activities 
involving budget, accounting, finance, programming and grant activities, administration and 
management of Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) and Napa Valley Transportation Authority- 
Tax Agency (NVTA-TA), including accounts payable, accounts receivable, cash management, payroll, and 
budget administration.  The department prepares financial statements and reports; revenue projections 
and cost estimates; cost/benefit analyses, and has the overall responsibility of programming of federal, 
state and regional transportation funds and securing funds for capital projects and operations.  The 
department also conducts complex analyses, produces the Annual Report and the Overall Work Plan 
(OWP) for the agency, and oversees facilities operations and asset management, including office 
administration, oversight of communications, website, and social media platforms. 

 
List all the facilities or other locations where the departmental programs, activities or services operate 
or are offered on a regular or incidental basis. (Use additional sheets if necessary.) 
 
INTERNAL PROGRAM OPERATIONS 
 
A. Equal Opportunity to Participate and Benefit 
A public entity may not deny a qualified individual with a disability an opportunity to participate in and 
benefit from any program. 
 
A public entity may not afford an opportunity that is not equal to or not as effective as that provided to 
others. 
 
A public entity may not impose eligibility criteria for participation in programs that screen out people 
with disabilities either directly or indirectly, unless such criteria are necessary for the provision of the 
program’s activities. 
 

1. Are there any circumstances in which the participation of a person with a disability in 
departmental programs would be restricted or excluded? 
_____ Yes __x___ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 

58



26 

 

 

 
2. Are any of these exclusions or restrictions necessary to the operation of the programs or to the 

safety of the participants who do not have disabilities? 
_____ Yes _____ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 
B. Reasonable Program Modification 
Public entities are required to make reasonable modification to policies or practices in order to avoid 
discrimination toward people with disabilities. A modification is not required, however, if it would 
fundamentally alter the nature of the program or activity. 
 

3. Are staff aware that it may be necessary to modify departmental program policies or practices 
to enable people with disabilities to participate in and benefit from the programs? 
_x____ Yes _____ No 

 
 

4. Is the public informed that the department is prepared to make reasonable modifications? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 

 
5. Does the department have a formal or informal process for responding to requests for 

modification? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 

 
6. Does the department have a process for determining whether a policy or practice modification 

would fundamentally alter the nature of the program? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 

 
C. Surcharges and Additional Requirements 
Public entities may not impose extra charges upon people with disabilities to cover the costs of effective 
communication, program modifications, or access features, and may not impose any additional 
requirements or burdens on people with disabilities that they do not require of all other participants in 
the program. 
 

7. Are there any circumstances in which a person with a disability would be asked to pay a fee or 
meet any other requirement not imposed on other departmental program participants? 
_____ Yes __x___ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 
D. Integrated Settings and Separate Programs 

59



27 

 

 

Promoting integration is a fundamental principle of the ADA and public entities are required to provide 
programs and activities in the most integrated settings appropriate to the needs of people with 
disabilities. 
 
Separate program or activities are permitted only when necessary to ensure equal opportunity. When 
separate programs are provided, qualified people with disabilities still cannot be excluded from 
participating in regular programs if they choose to do so. 
 

8. Does the department provide any separate activities for people with disabilities? 
_____ Yes _x____ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 

9. Are there any circumstances in which a person with a disability would be prohibited from 
participating in regular (non-separate) activities because of the provision of separate activities? 
_____ Yes _x____ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 
EXTERNAL RELATIONSHIPS 
 
A. Contracting with External Organizations 
When a public entity contracts with another organization to provide programs and services to the 
entity’s 
constituents, the public entity retains responsibility for ensuring that the contractor provides the services 
and activities in a nondiscriminatory manner consistent with the requirements of Title II of the ADA. 
 
List any contractors who provide services, benefits, or activities on behalf of departmental 
programs (attach a separate sheet, if necessary). 
 
 

10. Has the department notified each contractor of its responsibility for providing contracted 
services in a nondiscriminatory manner and has the department required assurances from 
contractors of their fulfillment of Title II of the ADA nondiscrimination and access requirements? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 
If so please describe botht e notification process and the process by which the entity will ensure 
compliance? 

B. Procurement Contracts 
In selecting procurement contractors, a public entity may not discriminate on the basis of disability.   
 

11. Are there any circumstances in which a consideration related to disability would influence the 
choice of a procurement contractor? 

60



28 

 

 

_____ Yes __x___ No 
If so, please explain 
 

 

SECTION II. COMMUNICATION ACCESS ASSESSMENT COMMUNICATION ACCESS  
 
A. Visual Communication 
Information that is communicated visually—such as through printed materials or visual displays—must 
be made accessible to people with visual and cognitive disabilities through auxiliary aids and services. 
 
 

12. Do departmental programs involve information that is communicated visually? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 

 
In the chart below, list each type of information that is communicated visually. Consider all aspects of 
departmental programs, including outreach, advertising, public meetings or hearings, and 
communication with the general public, applicants and participants. Examples may include brochures, 
forms, handbooks, agendas, visual displays, etc. 
 

For each type of information, place a check (√ ) below the auxiliary aids or services currently available 

to people with visual disabilities. Place an "X" below any additional aids or services that may be 
necessary to provide effective communication of the information. (More than one auxiliary aid or 
service may be needed for each.) 
 

           
 Type of Information Type of Information Type of Information 

Large Print    

Braille    

Audio Tape    

Readers    

Computers    

Pictorial Signage    

Other    

 
 

61



29 

 

 

 
B. Aural/Oral Communication 
(Note: “Aural” refers to information that is heard; “oral” refers to spoken information.) 
Programs that communicate information aurally to applicants or participants or that require an 
applicant participant to use oral communication must make that information accessible to people having 
hearing or speech disabilities by providing auxiliary aids or services. 
 

13. Do departmental programs involve information that is communicated verbally? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 

  
In the chart below, list each type of information that is communicated aurally/orally. Consider all 
communication involved in all aspects of departmental programs, including outreach, advertising, public 
meetings or hearings, and communication with the general public, applicants and participants. 
 

For each type of information, place a check (√ ) below the auxiliary aids or services currently available 

to people with hearing or speech disabilities. Place an "X" below any additional aids or services that may 
be necessary to provide effective communication of the information. (More than one auxiliary aid or 
service may be needed for each.) 
 
Type of Information 

 Type of Information Type of Information Type of Information 

Sign Language 
Interpreters 

   

Telecommunication 
Devices for the 
Deaf (TDDs) 

   

Paper and Pen    

Real-time 
Captioning 

   

Caption Decoder    

Other    

 
 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. Telephone Communication 

62



30 

 

 

When a public entity communicates with the public by telephone, Title II of the ADA requires that TDDs 
or equally effective means be used to communicate with people who have hearing or speech disabilities. 
Public entities should use TDDs wherever telephone communication is a substantial part of a program’s 
operation. 
 

14. Does the department communicate regularly with the public over the telephone? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

 
15. Are telephone communications ever lengthy, complex, or technical? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

 
16. Does the department have a TDD, or access to a TDD? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

 
17. If yes, has the staff been trained in the use of the TDD? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

 
B. Telephone Emergency Services 
If the program provides telephone access to emergency services, the regulations require that direct 
access be provided to individuals who use TDDs; relying on a relay service is not acceptable. 
 

18. Does the department provide telephone access to emergency services? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

 
19. If so, does the program provide direct TDD access to the emergency telephone number(s)? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

  
OTHER COMMUNICATION 
 
A. Emergency Warning and Evacuation 
Emergency evacuation procedures for the program, service, or activity must ensure that people with 
disabilities are made aware of emergencies and are aware of exit procedures. 
 

20. Is there a means of assuring that people with hearing disabilities are made aware of an activated 
alarm? 
_____ Yes _____ No 
If yes, please describe: 

 
 

21. Is there an established emergency evacuation procedure that addresses the needs of individuals 
with disabilities? 
_____ Yes _____ No 

63



31 

 

 

 
B. Access Information 
ADA Title II regulation require that public entities ensure that people with disabilities can obtain 
information about the availability and location of accessible programs, services, activities, and facilities. 
Information regarding the location of accessible entrances, program sites, TDDs, and other access 
features can be provided in a number of ways, such as in handbooks and listings. 
 

22. Explain how the departmental programs, services, or activities provide access information to 
program applications, participants, and the general public. 

 
23. Describe the types of reasonable accommodation which citizens/employees have requested to 

gain access to your departmental programs/services. 
 
 
C. Website 

24. Does your department have a website? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 
 

25. What is your department’s website? What information is provided on this site? Please describe 
briefly what information is provided: www.vinetransit.com; www.nvta.ca.gov  

 
26. Does your department’s website include information about accessibility of facilities (parking, 

bathrooms, assistive listening devices, etc.) where programs or services are offered? (Only 
answer if you answered “yes” to 24. 
__x___ Yes _____ No 
In so, please describe briefly what information is provided about accessible features: 

 
27. Does your department ensure that its website is usable by individuals with disabilities, including 

those who use speaking browsers? 
__x___ Yes _____ No 

 
28. Are the documents provided on your website for downloading accessible to persons with visual 

disabilities? 
  _x____ Yes _____ No 
 

Thank you for completing this survey 
 

 

64

http://www.vinetransit.com/
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/


32 

 

 

 

Appendix B:  Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority ADA Disability Access or Title 

24 Accessibility Complaint Form 
 

Grievance Procedure Form 
    
 
This Grievance Procedure form is established to meet the requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act.  It may be used by anyone who wished to file a 
complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in employment practices and 
plies or the provision of services activities, programs or benefits by the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority, Assistance is available upon request. Please contact NVTA at 
(707) 259-8631. 
 
Complete this form and return to: 
 

ADA Coordinator 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

 

 
 

Complainant's Name:  

Address:  City:  

State:   Zip Code:  

Telephone (Home):  (Work):  
 
Person(s) discriminated against (if other than complainant) 
 

Name:  

Address:   City:  

65



33 

 

 

State:  Zip Code:  

Telephone (Home):  (Work):  
 
What is the discrimination based on? 

 Race/Color   National Origin  Sex   Disability 
 

 Low Income   Limited English Proficiency 
 

Date of the alleged discrimination:  Location:  
 

Agency or person that who was responsible for alleged discrimination: 
 

 
 
Describe the alleged Discrimination. Explain what happened and whom you believe was 
responsible (for additional space, attach additional sheets of paper to this form. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
List names and contact information of persons who may have knowledge of the alleged 
discrimination. 

 

66



34 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
How can this complaint be resolved? How can the problem be corrected? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please sign and date. The complaint will not be accepted if it is has not been signed. You may 
attach any written materials or other supporting information that you think is relevant to your 
compliant. 

 
 

    
Signature     Date 

 

 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

67



35 

 

 

Appendix C:  Public Meeting Minutes 
Will include minutes from PCC meeting and NVTA Board Meeting when Self-Evaluation Plan Adopted. 

68



36 

 

 

 

Appendix D:  ADA Coordinator Public 
Notice 
 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) does not discriminate on the basis of disability in 
admission, access to, or operation of its programs, services and activities.  The NVTA does not 
discriminate on the basis of disability in its hiring or employment practices. 
 
This notice is provided as required by Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 
 
Questions, concerns, complaints, or requests for additional information regarding the ADA can be 
forward to NVTA’s designated ADA Compliance Coordinator. 
 
Rebecca Schenck 
Transportation Program Planner 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 
(707) 259-8636 
rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 
Available Monday through Friday 8am to 5pm  
 
Individuals who need auxiliary aids for effective communication in programs and services of NVTA are 
invited to make their needs and preferences known to the ADA Compliance Coordinator. 
 
This notice is available in large print, on audio tape and in Braille, from the ADA Compliance Coordinator.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



37 

 

 

 

Appendix E:  Facility Checklist 

70



38 

 

 

 

71



39 

 

 

 

 

72



40 

 

 

 

73



41 

 

 

 

74



42 

 

 

 

75



43 

 

 

 

76



44 

 

 

 

77



45 

 

 

 

78



46 

 

 

 

 

79



47 

 

 

 

80



48 

 

 

 

 

81



49 

 

 

 

 

82



50 

 

 

 

83



51 

 

 

 

84



52 

 

 

 

 

85



53 

 

 

Appendix F: Excerpts NVTA Policies and 
Procedures Manual Chapter 3: Personnel 
Policies 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

86



54 

 

 

 

 

87



55 

 

 

 

88



56 

 

 

 

89



57 

 

 

 

90



58 

 

 

 

91



59 

 

 

 

92



60 

 

 

 

 

93



61 

 

 

 

94



62 

 

 

 

95



63 

 

 

 

96



64 

 

 

 

97



65 

 

 

 

 

98



66 

 

 

 

 

99



67 

 

 

 

100



68 

 

 

 

 

101



69 

 

 

 

102



70 

 

 

 

103



71 

 

 

 

104



72 

 

 

 

 

105



73 
106



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
____________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Program Planner/Administrator 
(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 18-15 Authorizing the Submittal of the Countywide 
Coordinated Claim to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) for the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2018-19 Transportation 
Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds 
to Claimants in Napa County and Adopting the FY 2018-19 through FY 
2020-21 (3-Year Cycle) TDA-3 Program of Projects  

____________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 18-
15 (Attachment 1) requesting the FY 2018-19 Transportation Development Act Article 3 
(TDA-3) allocation for Pedestrian/Bicycle project funds in the amount of $296,099 to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as part of the annual Countywide Claim 
and adopt the FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 Three-Year program of projects. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

At their June 7th meeting the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended that 
the NVTA Board of Directors approve TDA 3 FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 Three-Year 
project list shown in Resolution 18-15.  

At their May 21st meeting the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) 
recommended that the NVTA Board of Directors approve the FY 2018-19 through FY 
2020-21 Three-Year TDA 3 project list shown in Resolution 18-15.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The NVTA Board opened a call for projects for the FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 
Three-Year TDA-3 Program at their April meeting, with applications due on May 11, 2018. 
Five (5) project applications were received from three jurisdictions, one from the City of 
Calistoga, two from the City of St. Helena and two from the City of American Canyon. 

107

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
The ATAC met on May 21, 2018 to finalize their recommendations to the NVTA Board.  
The TAC met on June 7, 2018 to finalize their recommendations to the NVTA.  
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report  
2. Public Comment   
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  No, the funds will be passed through to project sponsors and 
will not be retained by NVTA. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The TDA-3 program is for bicycle and pedestrian projects funded by approximately 2% of 
the ¼ cent statewide sales tax.  This generates roughly $160,000 per year for Napa 
County jurisdictions.  Priority is given to capital projects.  Planning is a permissible activity 
under TDA-3 revenues but the funds can only be used for comprehensive planning 
activities every 5 years per jurisdiction.  Unallocated funds are rolled over for 
programming to projects in Napa County in future years.  The Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission accepts project applications annually.  Projects must be completed within 
two (2) years plus the fiscal year of allocation.  
 
A call for projects for a three-year program was issued on April 18, 2018.  Applications 
were due on May 11, 2018.  Five (5) applications were received totaling $599,099 dollars. 
All project requests can be fully funded under the recommended three-year programming 
cycle as shown in Attachment 2.  
 
The FY 2018-19 revenue estimate (Attachment 3) is $321,758.  NVTA revenue estimate 
for the FYs 2019-20 and 2020-21 is $160,000 annually bringing the total estimate for the 
three-year cycle to $641,758.  Fund estimates will be reconciled each year when MTC 
revenue estimates are received.  Additional projects may be considered if funding is 
significantly higher; conversely, if revenues result lower than estimated then projects will 
be reduced proportionately or rolled over to future years.   
 
The ATAC met on May 21, 2018 to finalize their recommendations to the NVTA Board.  
The TAC met on June 7, 2018 to finalize their recommendations to the NVTA Board.   

108



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
After reviewing all project submittals and ATAC’s project recommendations, the TAC 
approved the list of projects included in Attachment A on Resolution No. 18-15 
(Attachment 1) and in Attachment 2 below.  Staff recommends that the Board approve 
the recommended three-year program project list and adopt Resolution No. 18-15 TDA-
3 FY 2018-19 Countywide Claim 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 18-15 
      (2) TDA-3 Three-Year Program List of Projects 

(3) TDA-3 Revenue Estimate 

109



 
 

RESOLUTION No.18-15 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF 

COUNTYWIDE COORDINATED CLAIM TO THE 
METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC) 

FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT ARTICLE 3 (TDA-3) 

PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PROJECT FUNDS TO CLAIMANTS IN NAPA COUNTY 
 
 

WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities 
Code (PUC) Section 99200 et seq., authorizes the submission of claims to a regional 
transportation planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the benefit 
and/or use of pedestrians and bicyclists; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional 
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC 
Resolution No. 4108, which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests 
for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds; and 
 

WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests from eligible 
claimants for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds be submitted as part of a single, 
countywide coordinated claim, composed of certain required documents; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority has undertaken a 
process in compliance with MTC Resolution No. 4108 for consideration of project 
proposals submitted by eligible claimants of TDA Article 3 funds in Napa County, and a 
prioritized list of projects, included as Attachment A of this resolution, was developed as 
a result of this process; and 
 

WHEREAS, each claimant in Napa County whose project or projects have been 
prioritized for inclusion in the fiscal year 2018-19 TDA Article 3 countywide coordinated 
claim, has forwarded to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority a certified copy of its 
governing body resolution for submittal to MTC requesting an allocation of TDA Article 3 
funds;  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority approves the prioritized list of projects included as Attachment A to this 
resolution; 
  

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 9.4 

June 20, 2018 

110



Resolution No. 18-15 
Page 2 of 3 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
approves the submittal to MTC, of the Napa County fiscal year 2018-19 TDA Article 3 
countywide, coordinated claim, composed of the following required documents:   

A. transmittal letter
B. a certified copy of this resolution, including Attachment A;
C. one copy of the governing body resolution and required attachments, for each

claimant whose project or projects are the subject of the coordinated claim;
D. a description of the process for public and staff review of all proposed projects

submitted by eligible claimants for prioritization and inclusion in the countywide,
coordinated claim;

Passed and Adopted the 20th day of June 2018. 

______________________ 
Peter G. White, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

111



Resolution No. 18-15 
Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT A 

Re: Submittal of Countywide Coordinated Claim to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission for the Allocation of Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 TDA Article 3 
Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants in Napa County 

Prioritized List of Projects (FY 2018-19) 

Short Title Description of Project 

TDA 
Article 3 
Amount 

Total 
Project 

Cost 

1. 
City of American Canyon-Donaldson Way Bike/Ped 
Project 

$ 221,099 $ 500,000 

2. City of St. Helena-Hunt Ave. Sidewalk Gap Closure $ 75,000 $225,000 

TOTALS $ 296,099 $725,000 

112



FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 Staff Recommendation

Included $25,659 -   

$641,758 $321,758 $160,000 $160,000 

$321,758 $185,659 $160,000 

City of American Canyon

Donaldson Way 

Sidewalk Gap Closure 

Project

$221,099 221,099 Fully fund

Received TDA-3 funds in prior cycle 

$127,652; Environmental complete; 

Resolution of local support; Project 

construction complete Sept. 2018-

Change of scope from original 

application-Class II to Class III

City of American Canyon
Eucalyptus Dr. sidewalk 

Gap Closure
53,000 53,000 Fully fund

Environmental complete; Resolution of 

local support

City of Calistoga

Bike/Ped Bridge over 

Napa River at Pioneer 

Park

200,000 82,659 117,341 Fully fund
Resolution of local support; 

Environmental expected April 2019; 

City of St. Helena
Hunt Avenue Sidewalk 

Gap Closure
$75,000 75,000 Fully fund

Project in Pedestrian Plan; Serves 

senior and low income; Resolution of 

local support June 2018

City of St. Helena

Pratt and Elmhurst 

Crosswalk 

Improvements on Main 

St/SR29

$50,000 50,000 Fully fund

Resolution  of local support June 2018 

Pedestrian Plan program category-

crossing improvements

$599,099 $296,099 $185,659 $117,341 

$42,659 25,659 0 42,659

Total Project Request

Balance

Total Available for Programming

Notes

Amount rolled over from prior year

Fund Estimate

Project DescriptionProject Sponsor
3-Year Amount 

Requested

NVTA  Programming by Year

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4

June 20, 2018

113



Attachment A
Res No. 4322
Page 5 of 20
2/28/2018

FY2017‐18 TDA Revenue Estimate  FY2018‐19 TDA Revenue Estimate
FY2017‐18 Generation Estimate Adjustment  FY2018‐19 County Auditor's Generation Estimate
1. Original County Auditor Estimate (Feb, 17) 8,638,000 13. County Auditor Estimate 9,623,888
2. Revised Estimate (Feb, 18) 9,253,739 FY2018‐19 Planning and Administration Charges
3. Revenue Adjustment (Lines 2‐1) 615,739 14. MTC Administration (0.5% of Line 13) 48,119 

FY2017‐18 Planning and Administration Charges Adjustment 15. County Administration (0.5% of Line 13) 48,119 
4. MTC Administration (0.5% of Line 3) 3,079  16. MTC Planning (3.0% of Line 13) 288,717 
5. County Administration (Up to 0.5% of Line 3)1 3,079  17. Total Charges (Lines 14+15+16) 384,955
6. MTC Planning (3.0% of Line 3) 18,472  18. TDA Generations Less Charges (Lines 13‐17) 9,238,933
7. Total Charges (Lines 4+5+6) 24,630  FY2018‐19 TDA Apportionment By Article
8. Adjusted Generations Less Charges (Lines 3‐7) 591,109  19. Article 3.0 (2.0% of Line 18) 184,779 

FY2017‐18 TDA Adjustment By Article 20. Funds Remaining  (Lines 18‐19) 9,054,154
9. Article 3 Adjustment (2.0% of line 8) 11,822  21. Article 4.5 (5.0% of Line 20) 452,708 
10. Funds Remaining  (Lines 8‐9) 579,287  22. TDA Article 4 (Lines 20‐21) 8,601,446
11. Article 4.5 Adjustment (5.0% of Line 10) 28,964 
12. Article 4 Adjustment (Lines 10‐11) 550,323 

Column A B C=Sum(A:B) D E F G H=Sum(C:G) I J=Sum(H:I)
6/30/2017 FY2016‐17 6/30/2017 FY2016‐18 FY2017‐18 FY2017‐18 FY2017‐18 6/30/2018 FY2018‐19 FY2018‐19

Apportionment 
Jurisdictions

Balance 
(w/o interest)

Interest
Balance 

(w/ interest)2
Outstanding

Commitments3
Transfers/ 
Refunds

Original
Estimate

Revenue
Adjustment

Projected
Carryover

Revenue
Estimate

Available for 
Allocation

Article 3 279,373  2,272  281,646  (322,338) 0  165,850  11,822  136,979  184,779  321,758 
Article 4.5 14,607  0  14,608  (419,941) 0  406,332  28,964  29,963  452,708  482,671 
SUBTOTAL 293,981  2,272  296,253  (742,279) 0  572,182  40,786  166,942  637,487  804,429 

Article 4/8
NVTA3 5,326,768  14,465  5,341,233  (10,064,673) 456,002  7,720,298  550,323  4,003,183  8,601,446  12,604,629 

SUBTOTAL 5,326,768  14,465  5,341,233  (10,064,673) 456,002  7,720,298  550,323  4,003,183  8,601,446  12,604,629 
GRAND TOTAL $5,620,749  $16,738  $5,637,487  ($10,806,952) $456,002  $8,292,480  $591,109  $4,170,125  $9,238,933  $13,409,058 
1. Balance as of 6/30/17 is from MTC FY2016‐17 Audit, and it contains both funds available for allocation and funds that have been allocated but not disbursed.
2. The outstanding commitments figure includes all unpaid allocations as of 6/30/17, and FY2017‐18 allocations as of 1/31/18.
3. NVTA is authorized to claim 100% of the apporionment to Napa County.

FY 2018‐19 FUND ESTIMATE
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS
NAPA COUNTY

TDA APPORTIONMENT BY JURISDICTION

ATTACHMENT 3
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4

June 20, 2018 

114



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
____________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Program Planner/Administrator 
(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 18-16 Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute 
Agreements with the California Department of Transportation for the 
Imola Avenue Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Plan  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 18-
16 (Attachment 1) for FY 2018-19 Caltrans Sustainable Communities Planning Grant 
funds and local match funds in the amount of $282,390 and authorize the Executive 
Director, or designee to execute all Restricted Grant Agreements and any amendments 
thereto with the Caltrans Department of Transportation 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA staff submitted a grant application in February for the Imola Avenue Corridor 
Complete Streets Improvement Plan.  Staff was notified in May that the application was 
successful in receiving award under the 2018-19 Caltrans Sustainable Communities 
Grant Program.  As a condition of award, a resolution of local support for the project is 
required along with commitment of local matching funds for the project. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

115

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.5 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Yes, an 11.47% match requirement in the amount of $32,390. 
 
Is it budgeted? Yes 
 
Where is it budgeted? CMA Planning Funds 
 
Future fiscal impact? No 
 
Consequences if not approved?  NVTA will not receive Grant funds for the Imola Avenue 
Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Plan 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Imola Avenue Corridor has been long-identified as a corridor in need of significant 
multi-modal improvements, but work has not been completed due to lack of funding for a 
detailed corridor improvement plan.   
 
There are several jurisdictions and stakeholders along the corridor, including Caltrans, 
the City of Napa, County of Napa, Napa State Hospital, Napa Valley College.  In 2014, 
NVTA staff in cooperation with jurisdiction staff, elected officials and Caltrans walked the 
corridor to identify needs and potential improvements.  The project is listed in the 
Countywide Transportation Plan, Vision 2040, Moving Napa Forward.  
 
The Imola Avenue Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Plan will provide the 
framework and recommendations for the transformation of a crucial east/west 
transportation corridor from a vehicle-centric arterial to a Complete Streets Multimodal 
corridor which serves low-income communities, multiple schools, employment centers 
and retail.   
 
The project objectives are to achieve significant increases in multimodal transportation 
access, improved mobility, and connectivity along the corridor to schools, retail nodes, 
residential neighborhoods, and open space by developing safer, complete streets 
infrastructure improvements.  The plan will integrate local planning objectives with focus 
on enhancing public health, safety and security through cooperative planning and 
development for functional improvement of the built transportation environment along the 
corridor. 

116



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.5 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
NVTA will issue an RFP in late summer to on-call planning and engineering contractors 
for the plan which will begin in October once the grant funds become available.  The plan 
process is expected to take approximately 18 months to complete.  Staff will provide the 
board with periodic updates on the plan throughout the process. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 18-16 

117



RESOLUTION No. 18-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH 
THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE IMOLA 

AVENUE COMPLETE STREETS CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive Federal 
and/or State funding for certain transportation planning related plans, through the California 
Department of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, NVTA was awarded grant funds to support a complete streets corridor 
improvement plan for Imola Avenue in the City and County of Napa; and 

WHEREAS, a Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the California 
Department of Transportation before such funds can be claimed through the Transportation Planning 
Grant Programs; and 

WHEREAS, NVTA requested $250,000 in grant funds from Caltrans and will use $32,391 in 
required matching funds for consultant services needed to develop the plan and a strategy for 
community involvement; and  

WHEREAS, the NVTA Board of Directors wishes to delegate authorization to execute these 
agreements and any amendments thereto; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority, authorize the Executive Director, or designee to execute all Restricted 
Grant Agreements and any amendments thereto with the Caltrans Department of Transportation. 

Passed and Adopted this 20th Day of June 2018 

______________________ 
Peter G. White, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

________________________________ 
Deanne Gillick, NVTA General Counsel 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

June 20, 2018 

118



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager – Administration & Human 
Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2016-17 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) appoint three Board members to 
nominate a Chair and Vice Chair for FY 2018-19. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The term for the Chair White and Vice Chair Canning will end in June of this year.  Under 
Board bylaws a nominating subcommittee for the next Chair and Vice Chair is required. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

119

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

CEQA REQUIREMENTS 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The NVTA bylaws, which were amended in April 2014, require that a Chair and Vice-
Chair be elected for a two-year term with an annual vote of approval from among the 
Members of the NVTA Board at their annual meeting or until their successors are elected 
and qualified.  

The term for the Chair White and Vice Chair Canning will end in June of this year.  Under 
NVTA bylaws a nominating subcommittee for the next Chair and Vice Chair is required. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

None 

120



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 
(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Amendment No. 11 to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority Joint 
Powers Authority 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board accept the proposed 
revisions to the NVTA Joint Power Agreement (JPA) (Attachment 1) and direct staff to 
circulate to its member jurisdictions for approval by their respective councils and board.  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA is exploring the use of alternative financing mechanisms to fund large capital 
projects such as the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility.  The agency’s Joint Powers 
Agreement allows NVTA “to incur debts, liabilities and obligations” but does not satisfy 
lending agents’ requirements associated with JPA membership.  The recommended 
modifications in Attachment 1 are necessary to satisfy conditions of financing from 
financial institutions to underwrite debt obligations and receive proceeds.  

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

121

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Not for this action.  The modified language will satisfy 
requirements from financial institutions to underwrite debt commitments. 
  
Consequences if not approved:  NVTA would need to defer, delay, or cancel large projects 
if financing options are restricted. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
As NVTA administers and oversees the delivery of large capital projects, the need to 
assemble funds from sources other than grants has compelled staff to seek alternative 
funding options.  The agency has been in consultation with the California State 
Infrastructure Bank (IBank) to borrow funds to construct the Vine Transit Maintenance 
Facility.  A review of NVTA’s JPA by the IBank’s attorney’s raised several questions 
regarding the longevity of the agency and associated debt payment if a member withdrew 
from the JPA or if the agency disbanded altogether.   
 
Although “Section 5. Powers” of NVTA’s joint powers agreement provides a general 
framework of the agency’s approved powers which allows for the issuance of debt and 
other financial obligations, it does not address how financial obligations are assumed if 
the agency ceased to exist.  NVTA’s attorney has drafted language in the JPA that 
mandates all member agencies remain in the JPA throughout a project’s financing term.  
The language alleviates the IBank’s concerns about the membership termination 
provisions in the JPA.  Clarification language has been added to “Recitals” (page 1); 
“Terms” (page 2); Section 8, Section 11; and Section 12.  A few non-substantive changes 
to correct the JPA are also being proposed. 
 
It should be noted that other financial institutions have the same requirements for 
underwriting financing instruments such as loans, bond issuances, State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) advances, or other types of indebtedness where the lead 
agency assumes the financial risk of the obligation. 
 
The IBank underscored that the additional language does not create a financial burden 
upon a member agency, but merely ensures that the JPA would exist through the 
financing term of a project.  Section 8.5.1 states “The debts, liabilities, and obligations of 
NVTA shall be solely the obligation of NVTA and not the debts, liabilities, and obligations 
of the Member Jurisdictions…”  The first few words of the statement will be eliminated to 

122



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.2 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
strengthen the statement and provide the members additional assurances that the 
financial obligations are solely the responsibility of NVTA.  
 
NVTA staff met and vetted the draft agreement with the City Managers and the County 
Executive Officer and received their concurrence on the recommended revisions. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Proposed Amendment 11 to Joint Powers Agreement for the Napa 
       Valley Transportation Authority 

123



JPA- Amendment No. 110  1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1011 
TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

FOR THE 
NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCYVALLEY 

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

(ALSO KNOWN AS NAPA COUNTY AGREEMENT NO. 3061; CITY OF NAPA 
AGREEMENT NO. 6147;  CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON RESOLUTION NO. 92-
33/AGREEMENT NO. 95-15;  TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE RESOLUTION. NO. 868; 

CITY OF ST. HELENA RESOLUTION NO. 91-32;  CITY OF CALISTOGA 
RESOLUTION NO. 91-19) 

 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT NO. 10 11 TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITYCOUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND 
PLANNING AGENCY (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the effective date 
determined under (4), below, by and between the COUNTY OF NAPA, CITY OF 
AMERICAN CANYON, CITY OF NAPA, TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE, CITY OF ST. 
HELENA, and CITY OF CALISTOGA (“Member Jurisdictions”); 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (the 
“NCTPA”)Valley Transportation Authority (“NVTA”) is a joint powers agency created by 
the Member Jurisdictions to provide coordinated transportation planning and 
transportation services, among other duties, within the County of Napa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Member Jurisdictions desire to amend the Agreement to update 
its provisions, including but not limited to change changing the provisions regarding 
withdrawal of Member Jurisdictions and termination of the Joint Powers Agreement name 
of the agency in order to reflect requirements for bonding, debt, and financing and to 
better reflect the duties and purpose of the agency: 
 

TERMS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE MEMBER JURISDICTIONS agree as follows: 
 
 1. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct. 
 
 2. The terms of the Agreement are hereby amended to read in full as set forth 
in Attachment “A”, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 3. By approving this Amendment No. 10 11 and authorizing execution thereof, 
each Member Jurisdiction hereby reconfirms its prior election to exempt Napa County 
from the congestion management requirements of Chapter 2.6 of Division 1 of Title 7 of 
the California Government Code as permitted by Government Code section 65088.3. 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

June 20, 2018 

124



JPA- Amendment No. 110  2 

 
 4. The name of NCTPA is hereby changed to the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority, a Joint Powers Agency.The provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement related 
to withdrawal of a Member Jurisdiction or termination of the Joint Powers Agreement 
are hereby amended as reflected in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
  
 
 5. This Amendment No. 10 11 and the attached provisions of Attachment “A” 
shall become effective on the date the documents have been ratified by all of the Member 
Jurisdictions.  This Amendment may be signed in counterparts by the parties hereto and 
shall be valid and binding as if fully executed all on one copy. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment No. 10 11 to the Joint Powers 
Agreement creating the Napa County Transportation and Planning AgencyValley 
Transportation Authority was executed by the Member Jurisdictions through their duly-
authorized representatives as noted below: 
 
COUNTY OF NAPA 
 
 
By:  __________________________  Date:  ___________________________ 
ALFREDO PEDROZA, Chair 
Napa County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
GLADYS I. COIL     MINH TRAN 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors   Napa County Counsel 
 
 
By:  __________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
LEON GARCIA, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DANA SHIGLEY JASON HOLLEYSUELLEN JOHNSTON  WILLIAM ROSS 
American Canyon City Clerk   American Canyon City Attorney 
 
 
By:  _________________________  By:  _________________________ 

125



JPA- Amendment No. 110  3 

CITY OF NAPA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: _________________________ 
JILL TECHEL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
DOROTHY ROBERTS    MICHAEL BARRETT 
Napa City Clerk     Napa City Attorney 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
JOHN F. DUNBAR, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
MICHELLE DAHME     MICHAEL COBDEN 
YountvilleTown Administrator/Town Clerk Yountville Town Attorney 
 
 
By: ___________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF ST. HELENA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
ALAN GALBRAITH, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
CINDY BLACKTZAFOPOULOS   THOMAS B. BROWN 
St. Helena City Clerk    St. Helena City Attorney 
 
 
By:  __________________________  By:  ____________________________ 

126



JPA- Amendment No. 110  4 

CITY OF CALISTOGA 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: _________________________ 
CHRIS CANNING, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
KATHY FLAMSON     MICHELLE KENYON 
Calistoga City ClerkK    Calistoga City Attorney 
 
 
By:  _________________________  By:  _________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

127



JPA- as amended through Amendment No. 10   i 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, A JOINT POWERS AGENCY 
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
SECTION 1.  FORMATION 
 1.1 Creation and Name.  
 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE 
 2.1 General.  
 2.2 Chapter 2.6 Compliance Not Included in Purpose. 
 2.3 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority. 
 2.4 Preparation of County Transportation Plan. 
 2.5 Exercise of Common and Additional Powers.  
  
 
SECTION 3.  ASSUMPTION OF CMA CONTRACTS 
 3.1 Assumption of CMA and NCTPA Contracts. 
 3.2 Delegation of Contract Responsibilities of CMA Manager and NCTPA 

Manager. 
 
SECTION 4.  ORGANIZATION 
 4.1 Composition. 
 4.2 Principal Office. 
 4.3 Governing Board. 
  4.3.1 Appointment, Replacement and Voting Power of NVTA Board 

 Members (“Members”).  
   (a) Voting Members. 
   (b) Non-Voting Member Representing the PCC. 
   (c) Vacancies. 
   (d) Composition of Members. 
   (e) Voting Power of Members. 
   (f) Alternate Members. 
  4.3.2 Compensation. 
 4.4 Advisory Committees. 
  4.4.1 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). 
  4.4.2 Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC). 
 4.4.3 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC). 
  4.4.4 Other Advisory Committees. 
 4.4.5 Compliance with Maddy Act. 
 4.4.6 Compliance with Brown Act. 

128



JPA- as amended through Amendment No. 10   ii 

SECTION 5.  POWERS 
 5.1 General.  

5.2 Approved Powers. 
 
SECTION 6. PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION 
 6.1   Employees. 
 6.2 Executive Director.   
  6.2.1 General. 
 6.2.2 Filings with Secretary of State. 
 6.3 Treasurer.  
 6.3.1 General. 
 6.3.2 Bond. 
 6.3.3 Compensation. 
 6.4 Auditor-Controller.  
 6.4.1 General. 
 6.4.2 Custodian of Property; Bond. 
 6.4.3 Compensation. 
 
SECTION 7.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 7.1 Limitations. 
 7.2 Coordination of Transportation Systems.  
 7.3 Coordination of Transportation and Land Use Management.  
 7.4 Countywide Transportation Plans.  
 7.5 Submission of Funding Applications and Claims.  
 7.6 Intermodal Policies and Programs. 
 7.7 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claims for Transit and 
Paratransit Services.  
 7.8 Consolidated Transit Services Agency. 
 7.9 Overall Program Manager (AB 434).  
 7.10 Deliberative Body.   
 7.11 Other Duties and Responsibilities. 
 
SECTION 8.  FINANCE 
 8.1 Fiscal Year.  
 8.2 Budget. 
 8.3 Revenues.  
  8.3.1 General. 
  8.3.2 Approval Required for Member Jurisdiction Contributions. 
  8.3.3 Transportation Funds.  
  8.3.4 Standards for Use of TDA Funds. 
 8.4 Accountability.  
  8.4.1 Accountable to Member Jurisdictions. 
 8.4.2 Limitation on Expenditures. 
  8.4.3 Annual Financial Audit.  
 8.5 Debts, Liabilities and Obligations.   
 8.5.1 General. 

129



JPA- as amended through Amendment No. 10   iii 

 8.5.2 Liability.  
   (a) Primary Liability.  

(b) Insurance. 
   (c) Contribution by Member Jurisdictions. 
 
SECTION 9.  RULES OF CONDUCT 
 9.1 Bylaws. 
 9.2 Quorum. 
 9.3 Adjournment of Meetings 
 9.4 Brown Act.  
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICES 
 10.1 Method. 
 10.2 Addresses for Notice. 
 
SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 11.1 Assignment. 
 11.2 Withdrawal. 
 11.3 Termination. 
 11.4 Disposition of Assets. 
 
SECTION 12.  AMENDMENTS 
 12.1 Method of Amendment.  
 
SECTION 13.  WAIVER 
 13.1 Limitation. 
 
SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY 
 14.1 General. 
 
SECTION 15.  SECTION HEADINGS 
 15.1 Effect.  
 
SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
 16.1 Applicable Law. 
 16.2 Venue for Disputes. 
 
SECTION 17.  NO RIGHTS CREATED IN THIRD PARTIES 
 
SECTION 18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

130



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 1 

 
NAPA VALLEY TRANPORTATION AUTHORITY, A JOINT POWERS AGENCY 

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
 

SECTION 1.  FORMATION 
 
1.1 Creation and Name.  The County of Napa, the Cities of Napa, St. Helena, 

Calistoga, American Canyon, and the Town of Yountville (hereinafter referred to 
as “Member Jurisdictions”), pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 
1 (commencing with section 6500) of the California Government Code, do hereby 
form, establish and create a joint powers agency to be known as ”Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority,” hereinafter referred to as “NVTA” which shall constitute 
a public entity separate and distinct from the Member Jurisdictions, and the new 
name of which shall supersede and replace the prior name of the agency, the Napa 
County Transportation and Planning Agency (“NCTPA”) and any other prior name 
by which the agency was known in the past, including Congestion Management 
Agency (“CMA”). 

 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE 
 
2.1 General.  NVTA is formed to serve as the countywide transportation planning body 

for the incorporated and unincorporated areas within Napa County, and as an 
advisory body for countywide deliberations on land-use, demographics, economic 
development, community development, and environmental issues, which 
purposes shall include conducting in a coordinated and more simplified way 
countywide: 

 
(a) Transportation policy development and planning activities, including those 
relating to transit on both a short-term and long-term basis and within an intermodal 
policy framework; improving transit services; providing coordinated and more 
competitive input to the region’s transportation planning and funding programs; 
and performing such other transportation related duties and responsibilities as the 
Member Jurisdictions may delegate to NVTA by this Agreement or amendment 
thereto; and 

 
(b) Advisory deliberations on land-use, demographics, economic development, 
community development, and environmental issues. Any such deliberations may 
result in advisory recommendations only, and such recommendations shall not be 
binding on any Member Jurisdiction. 

 
2.2 Chapter 2.6 Compliance Not Included in Purpose.  It is the intention of the 

Member Jurisdictions in executing the Agreement to exempt Napa County and the 
Member Jurisdictions from the requirements of Chapter 2.6 of Division 1 of Title 7 
(commencing with Government Code section 65088) pertaining to congestion 
management planning, as permitted by Government Code section 65088.3.  For 

131



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 2 

this reason, compliance with Chapter 2.6 shall not be deemed to be a purpose of 
NVTA. 

 
2.3 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority.  The name of NVTA shall supersede 

and replace CMA and NCTPA as the service authority for the abatement of 
abandoned vehicles (AVAA) for Napa County and the Member Jurisdictions 
pursuant to Vehicle Code section 9250 et seq. and 22710 seq.  All resolutions, 
authorizations, funds, imposition of service fees, and responsibilities of the CMA 
or NCTPA in its capacity as the service authority shall be deemed to be ratified 
and assumed by and remain thereafter as the resolutions, authorizations, funds, 
imposition of service fees, and responsibilities of NVTA as AVAA on and after the 
effective date of Amendment No. 4 of the Agreement until such time as modified 
or terminated by the NVTA Board. 

 
2.4 Preparation of County Transportation Plan.  The purposes of NVTA shall 

include delegation by the County of Napa to NVTA of the County’s authority under 
Government Code section 66531 to prepare and submit to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) a county transportation plan for the 
incorporated and unincorporated territory of Napa County which shall include 
consideration of the planning factors included in Section 134 of the federal 
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991, as such may be 
amended from time to time. 

 
2.5 Exercise of Common and Additional Powers.  The purposes of NVTA shall 

include establishment of NVTA as an independent joint powers entity to enable the 
Member Jurisdictions not only to exercise jointly the common powers of the 
Member Jurisdictions set forth in Section 2.1 but also to exercise such additional 
powers as are conferred by Section 5 of this Agreement or by the Government 
Code upon all joint powers agencies. 

 
SECTION 3.  ASSUMPTION OF CMA AND NCTPA CONTRACTS 
 
3.1 Assumption of CMA and NCTPA Contracts.  All contracts entered into by the 

agency in the name of CMA or in the name of NCTPA, which are in effect as of the 
effective date of Amendment No. 10 of this Agreement, shall be assigned to and 
assumed in the name of NVTA on and after that date and all references therein to 
“CMA,” “Congestion Management Agency,” “Napa County Congestion 
Management Agency,” “NCTPA,” or “Napa County Transportation and Planning 
Authority” shall be deemed to refer to NVTA. 

 
3.2 Delegation of Contract Responsibilities of CMA Manager or NCTPA Manager.  

All references in any CMA or NCTPA contracts assumed by NVTA under Section 
3.1 delegating contract responsibilities to the CMA Manager or to the NCTPA 
Manager shall be deemed to refer, on and after the effective dates respectively of 
Amendment No. 4 of the Agreement and Amendment No. 10 of the Agreement, to 
the Executive Director of NVTA. 

132



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 3 

 
SECTION 4.  ORGANIZATION 
 
4.1 Composition.  NVTA shall be composed of the Member Jurisdictions, to-wit: the 

County of Napa, the Cities of American Canyon, Napa, St. Helena, and Calistoga, 
and the Town of Yountville. 

 
4.2 Principal Office.  The principal office of NVTA shall be established by resolution 

of the NVTA Board. 
 
4.3 Governing Board.  The powers of NVTA shall be vested in its governing board 

(hereinafter referred to as “NVTA Board”). 
 

4.3.1 Appointment, Replacement and Voting Power of NVTA Board 
Members (“Members”).  

 
(a) Voting Members.  Each voting Member of the NVTA Board shall be 
an elected official of the governing board of the appointing Member 
Jurisdiction. One voting Member from each appointing Member Jurisdiction 
which is a city or town shall be that Member Jurisdiction’s mayor.  Any 
elected official serving as the Napa County representative to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall be one of the voting 
Member’s appointed by that Member Jurisdiction.  Members shall continue 
to serve as such until they cease to hold their elected positions, are 
removed in the sole discretion of their respective Member Jurisdiction, 
resign or are otherwise removed from or disqualified from holding their 
elected positions as a matter of law or by judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
(b) Non-Voting Member Representing the PCC.  The non-voting 
Member appointed by NVTA Board upon nomination by the Paratransit 
Coordinating Council (PCC) shall also be a member or alternate member of 
the PCC, selected by and serving at the pleasure of the PCC. 

 
(c) Vacancies.  Except for a vacancy in the non-voting position 
appointed by the NVTA Board under subsection (c), vacancies on the NVTA 
Board shall be filled, to the extent practicable, by the respective Member 
Jurisdictions within sixty (60) days of the occurrence thereof.  NVTA and the 
NVTA Board shall be entitled to rely upon written notice from the clerk of 
the governing board of the Member Jurisdiction as conclusive evidence of 
the appointment and removal of all Members and their alternates. 

 

133



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 4 

(d) Composition of Members.  The composition of the Members of 
the NVTA Board shall be as follows: 

 
Appointing Entity   Number of Members 
 
City of American Canyon   2 
 
City of Calistoga    2 
 
City of Napa     2 
 
City of St. Helena    2 
 
Town of Yountville    2 
 
County of Napa    2 
 
NVTA Board (nominated by   1 
Paratransit Coordinating Council) 
 

 
(e) Voting Power of Members.  The voting power of the Members of 
the NVTA Board shall be as follows: 
 

(1) On all matters concerning powers under Section 5.2 
subsections (a) through (q), inclusive: 

 
Appointing Entity   Voting Power 

 
City of American Canyon  4 (each Member has two votes) 
 
City of Calistoga   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
City of Napa 10 (each Member has five votes) 
 
City of St. Helena   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
Town of Yountville   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
County of Napa 4 (each Member has 2 votes) 

 
NVTA Board (nominated by  0 (non-voting) 
Paratransit Coordinating Council) 

 
(2) On all matters concerning powers under Section 5.2 
subsection (r), each voting Member shall have one vote. 

134



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 5 

 
(f) Alternate Members.  Each Member Jurisdiction may, in its 
discretion, appoint alternate(s) for its Members of the NVTA Board.  An 
alternate shall be an elected official of the governing board of the appointing 
Member Jurisdiction.  Any appointed alternate Members may attend in 
place of that jurisdiction’s Member and participate in discussions of the 
NVTA Board in the same manner as the Members, but an alternate of a 
voting Member shall vote only when the Member for whom he or she is an 
alternate is physically absent or cannot vote due to a conflict of interest. 

 
4.3.2 Compensation.  No compensation shall be received by any Member of the 

NVTA Board unless expressly authorized by unanimous resolution of all of 
the voting Members of the NVTA Board.  

 
4.4 Advisory Committees. 
 

4.4.1 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).  A single Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) shall be appointed by the NVTA Board to advise the 
NVTA Board regarding transit and roadway issues, including planning, 
project, and policy aspects.  The TAC members shall include the Executive 
Director of NVTA, serving ex-officio; a member nominated by the PCC and 
appointed by the NVTA Board; and two members and two alternate 
members from the technical staffs of each of the Member Jurisdictions, 
serving ex- officio as designated by the chief administrative officers of the 
respective Member Jurisdictions. 

 
4.4.2 Active Transportation Advisory Committee.  The Active Transportation 

Advisory Committee (ATAC) shall be appointed by and serve in an advisory 
capacity to the NVTA Board on matters of bicycling and pedestrian issues. 
By-laws and amendments thereto for the ATACBAC shall be approved by 
the NVTA Board.     

 
4.4.3 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC).  The Paratransit Coordinating 

Council (PCC) shall be an advisory committee to the NVTA Board  and  
serve as the social services transportation advisory council for Napa County 
provided for under Public Utilities Code section 99238.  The PCC shall serve 
as the primary means of advice to the NVTA Board regarding, and 
representation of, the special transportation interests of the disabled and 
elderly, in order to carry out the intent of the State Legislature expressed in 
Public Utilities Code section 99238(d) to avoid duplicative transit advisory 
councils whenever possible. By-laws and amendments thereto for the PCC 
shall be approved by the NVTA Board. 

 
4.4.4 Other Advisory Committees.  The NVTA Board may create such other 

advisory committees, both ad- hoc and standing, as it sees fit. from time to 
time. 

135



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 6 

 
4.4.5 Compliance with Maddy Act.  When appointing members to the 

committees the NVTA Board shall comply with the provisions of the Maddy 
Local Appointive List Act of 1975, Government Code section 54970 et seq., 
as such has been and may be amended from time to time.   

 
4.4.6 Compliance with Brown Act.  Except for ad hoc committees, all advisory 

committees created pursuant to this Section 4.4 shall be subject to the 
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code section 54950 
et seq. 

 
SECTION 5.  POWERS 
 
5.1 General.  NVTA shall have all powers necessary to carry out the purpose of this 

Agreement.  Such powers shall be subject only to the limitations set forth in this 
Agreement, applicable laws and regulations, and such restrictions upon the 
manner of exercising such powers as are imposed by law upon the County of Napa 
in the exercise of similar powers except where specifically authorized otherwise by 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Government Code section 6500 et seq. 

 
5.2 Approved Powers.  The powers of NVTA specifically include but are not limited 

to the following: 
 

(a) To sue and be sued in its own name; 
 

(b) To incur debts, liabilities and obligations; 
 

(c) To employ agents, employees and to contract with third parties for goods 
and services, including but not limited to the services of engineers, planners, 
attorneys, accountants, fiscal agents (including auditors, controllers, and 
treasurers), and providers of transit services; 
 
(d) To acquire, improve, hold, lease and dispose of real and personal property 
of all types; 
 
(e) To undertake the acquisition of real property through the exercise of 
eminent domain in furtherance of transportation and transit related projects in 
accordance with State and Federal laws; 
 
(f) To enact an ordinance for the purpose of adopting the California Uniform 
Construction Cost Accounting Act procedures and establishing an alternative 
method of procuring small construction contracts pursuant to California Public 
Contracts Code sections 22000, et seq, as amended from time to time. 

 
(g) To make and enter into any contracts with any of the Member Jurisdictions 
for goods, services, equipment, or real property; 

136



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 7 

 
(h) To assume contracts made by any Member Jurisdiction or made pursuant 
to joint powers agreement between any of the Member Jurisdictions; 

 
(i) To apply for and accept grants, donations[OA1], advances and contributions; 

 
(j) To make plans and conduct studies; 

 
(k) To coordinate efforts with local, regional, state and federal agencies having 
jurisdiction over matters pertaining to transportation (including roads) and transit; 

 
(l) To engage in all activities necessary for NVTA to act as the Abandoned 
Vehicle Abatement Authority for Napa County; 

 
(m) To operate, directly or by contract with any person or entity including any 
Member Jurisdiction, any transit and paratransit services within Napa County in 
whole or in part and, if so, to submit any corresponding claims for funds or 
reimbursement under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Section 29530 
et seq. of the Government Code, as such may be amended from time to time; 

 
(n) To act as the overall program manager within Napa County for the purpose 
of receiving and reallocating the county’s proportionate share of vehicle 
registration fees collected by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD) under AB 434 (Chapter 807, Statutes of 1991, set forth in Health and 
Safety Code  section 44241 et seq.); 

 
(o) To act as, exercise the powers conferred upon, and fulfill the responsibilities 
of the Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (CTSA) for Napa County as 
that term is defined in Public Utilities Code section 99204.5 as amended from time 
to time, if and when appointed as CTSA by the MTC, such appointment being 
deemed to supersede the appointment of the County of Napa as CTSA; 

 
(p) To invest any funds in the treasury of NVTA that are not required for the 
immediate necessities of NVTA in such manner as the NVTA Board deems 
advisable, in the same manner and upon the same conditions as local agencies 
pursuant to Section 53601, except where otherwise restricted for particular funds 
by conditions imposed by the person or agency which is the source of those funds; 

 
(q) To apply for, expend and allocate all funds related to Transportation 
Development Act Article Three purposes, as set forth in Public Utilities Code 
section 99234, et seq., as amended from time to time. 

 
(r) To act as a countywide advisory deliberative body on issues of land-use, 
demographics, economic development, community development, and 
environmental issues.  Any such deliberations may result in advisory 

137



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 8 

recommendations only, and such recommendations shall not be binding on any 
Member Jurisdiction. 

 
SECTION 6.  PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
6.1 Employees.  NVTA may appoint, retain and compensate as a charge against the 

funds of NVTA employees, whether temporary, probationary, limited term or 
permanent and/or may contract with any person or entity, including a Member 
Jurisdiction, for the furnishing of any services, including but not limited to legal, 
financial, accounting, data processing, secretarial, purchasing, and personnel 
services, which are necessary to fulfill the powers, duties and responsibilities of 
NVTA under this Agreement or as necessary to comply with the laws applicable to 
joint powers agencies within the State of California, including but not  limited to the 
services described in Sections 6.2 through 6.4, below.  Where such services are 
provided by employees of a Member Jurisdiction by contract between such 
Member Jurisdiction and NVTA or pursuant to Section 6.3 or 6.4 of this Agreement, 
NVTA and the employing Member Jurisdiction hereby expressly waive any conflict 
of interest or incompatibility of employment created thereby. 

 
6.2 Executive Director.   
 

6.2.1 General.  NVTA shall hire or contract for the provision of the services of an 
Executive Director to serve as the chief administrative officer of NVTA, 
performing management and other duties which shall be described in a job 
description/scope of services approved by resolution of the NVTA Board.  

 
6.2.2 Filings with Secretary of State.  In addition to any other duties assigned 

to the Executive Director or otherwise required by law, the Executive 
Director is hereby authorized to and shall be responsible for filing on behalf 
of NVTA and the NVTA Board all notices required by Government Code 
sections 6503.5 and 53051.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless and until 
an Executive Director is appointed, such filings are authorized to and shall 
be made by the Napa County Director of Public Works[SK2]. 

 
6.3 Treasurer.  
 

6.3.1 General.  The Napa County Treasurer-Tax Collector shall serve as the 
NVTA Treasurer and in that capacity shall be the depository and have 
custody of all of [OA3][VC4]the funds of NVTA, from whatever source, and 
shall perform the functions described in Government Code section 6505.5 
(a) through (e). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the NVTA Board may retain 
a certified public accountant to serve as NVTA Treasurer in lieu of the Napa 
County Treasurer-Tax Collector. 

 
6.3.2 Bond.  The NVTA Treasurer shall post an official bond in an amount to be 

fixed by the NVTA Board.  The cost of such bond shall be a charge against 

138



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 9 

NVTA funds, except that if the NVTA Treasurer is the Napa County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector, the cost of the bond to be borne by NVTA shall be 
that amount which is in excess of the cost of the official bond posted by the 
Napa County Treasurer-Tax Collector for functions unrelated to NVTA. 

 
6.3.3 Compensation.  Pursuant to Section Government Code section 6505.5, 

the Napa County Board of Supervisors shall determine the charges to be 
made against NVTA for the services performed by the Napa County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector for NVTA which shall be a charge against NVTA 
funds.  If the NVTA Board retains a certified public accountant to be NVTA 
Treasurer, the compensation of the NVTA Treasurer shall be determined by 
the NVTA Board and shall be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
6.4 Auditor-Controller.  
 

6.4.1 General.  The Napa County Auditor-Controller shall serve as the auditor-
controller of NVTA and shall be responsible for drawing warrants to pay 
demands against NVTA when the demands have been approved by the 
NVTA Board or, upon delegation by the NVTA Board, by the Executive 
Director, or the Deputy Executive Director designee when[OA5] acting as 
purchasing agent for NVTA.   

 
6.4.2 Custodian of Property; Bond.  With the exception of NVTA funds which 

shall be in the custody of the NVTA Treasurer, the Napa County Auditor-
Controller shall, acting as NVTA Auditor-Controller, be the public officer 
designated pursuant to Government Code section 6505.1 to have charge 
of, handle, have access to, and maintain inventory any property of NVTA 
and shall post an official bond in an amount to be fixed by the NVTA Board.  
The cost of such bond, to the extent in excess of the cost of the official bond 
posted by the Napa County Auditor-Controller in connection with functions 
unrelated to NVTA, shall be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
6.4.3 Compensation.  Pursuant to Government Code section 6505.5, the Napa 

County Board of Supervisors shall determine the charges to be made 
against the NVTA for the services performed by the Napa County Auditor-
Controller for NVTA, which shall constitute a charge against the funds of 
NVTA. 

 
SECTION 7.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
7.1 Limitations.  The authority of NVTA shall be limited to those powers enumerated 

in Section 5 or as otherwise provided for herein. 
 
7.2 Coordination of Transportation Systems.  NVTA shall facilitate the coordination 

of transportation systems operated by or on behalf of the Member Jurisdictions 
with Napa County and adjacent counties. 

139



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 10 

 
7.3 Coordination of Transportation and Land Use Management.  NVTA shall 

develop and implement programs and policies for the coordination of 
transportation and related land use management by the Member Jurisdictions.  
Such programs may include, but shall not be limited to, providing analysis of the 
impacts of land use decisions by the Member Jurisdictions on regional 
transportation systems and the costs associated with mitigating those impacts.  In 
carrying out this responsibility, NVTA shall review and comment on all 
discretionary projects related to transportation under consideration by any of the 
Member Jurisdictions and may review and comment on such discretionary projects 
under consideration by any other public entity which are submitted to NVTA for 
review and comment. 

 
7.4 Countywide Transportation Plans.  NVTA shall develop, adopt, implement, 

update as necessary, and submit to MTC a county transportation plan under 
Government Code section 66531 for the incorporated and unincorporated territory 
of Napa County which shall include consideration of the planning factors included 
in Section 134 of the federal Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 
1991, as such may be amended from time to time. 

 
7.5 Submission of Funding Applications and Claims.  NVTA may submit 

applications and funding claims for transportation related purposes to local 
government, MTC, the State of California, the Federal Government and other 
entities supporting transportation. 

 
7.6 Intermodal Policies and Programs.  NVTA may consider and adopt policies and 

programs for all modes of transportation including but not limited to, transit, 
paratransit, streets and roads, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, airports, marinas, 
harbors, and railroads. 

 
7.7 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claims for Transit and Paratransit 

Services.  If NVTA operates directly or by contract with any person or entity 
including any Member Jurisdiction the operation of any transit and paratransit 
services within Napa County in whole or in part, NVTA shall be deemed authorized 
by this Agreement to submit any corresponding claims for funds or reimbursement 
under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Section 29530 et seq. of the 
Government Code, as such may be amended from time to time.   

 
7.8 Consolidated Transit Services Agency.  If, in the future and with the consent of 

all of the Member Jurisdictions and MTC, NVTA is appointed in place of the Napa 
County Board of Supervisors as the consolidated transportation service agency 
(CTSA) for Napa County as that term is defined in Public Utilities Code section 
99204.5, as such may be amended from time to time, then and only then may 
NVTA make claims pursuant to the procedure set forth in Article 7 of Chapter 3 of 
Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, commencing with 6680. 

 

140



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 11 

7.9 Overall Program Manager (AB 434).  NVTA shall act as the overall program 
manager within Napa County for the purpose of receiving and reallocating the 
county’s proportionate share of vehicle registration fees collected by the Bay Area 
Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) under AB 434 (Chapter 807, Statutes 
of 1991, set forth in Health and Safety Code section 44241 et seq.). 

 
7.10 Deliberative Body.  NVTA shall act as the countywide deliberative body for 

discussions of inter-jurisdictional issues relating to land use, infrastructure, the 
economy and economic development, community development, and 
environmental issues.  No subject may be deliberated unless a majority of votes, 
as determined by Section 4.3.1 (f) (2) of this Agreement, of the Board has approved 
such deliberations.  The NVTA may adopt decisions on such matters, but its 
decisions shall constitute recommendations to the Member Jurisdictions only, and 
shall have no binding effect.  Final decision making on all matters affecting Member 
Jurisdictions shall remain with the governing body of each Member, except as 
provided by Sections 5.2 (a) through (p) inclusive, of this Joint Powers Agreement, 
state or federal law, and applicable regulations. 

 
7.11 Other Duties and Responsibilities.  NVTA shall carry out such other  duties and 

responsibilities as the Member Jurisdictions, by unanimous approval expressed 
through amendment of this Agreement or resolutions of their respective governing 
boards, may delegate to NVTA. 

 
SECTION 8.  FINANCE 
 
8.1 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year for NVTA shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30. 
 
8.2 Budget.  A budget for NVTA shall be adopted by the NVTA Board for each fiscal 

year prior to June 30 of the preceding fiscal year.  The budget shall include 
sufficient detail to constitute an operating guideline.  It shall also include the 
anticipated sources of funds and the anticipated expenditures to be made for the 
operations of NVTA.  Approval of the budget by the NVTA Board shall constitute 
authority for the Executive Director to expend funds for the purposes outlined in 
the approved budget, subject to the availability of funds on hand as determined by 
the NVTA Auditor-Controller and subject to the constraints imposed upon general 
law counties pertaining to execution of contracts by purchasing agents.  Nothing 
in this Section 8.2 shall be construed to limit the power of the NVTA Board to 
modify the budget in whatever manner it deems appropriate and to instruct the 
Executive Director accordingly. 

 
8.3 Revenues.  
 

8.3.1 General.  Unless otherwise agreed by the Member Jurisdictions by 
amendment of this Agreement, the total expenditures in the annual planning 
budget shall be paid for with revenues derived from funds paid directly to 
NVTA by persons or entities, public or private, other than the Member 

141



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 12 

Jurisdictions and from contributions from the Member Jurisdictions (in 
money or, upon approval by the NVTA Board, in kind) based on the relative 
populations of the Member Jurisdictions.  In determining said population 
ratios the latest population statistics by the State Department of Finance 
shall be used.   

 
8.3.2 Approval Required for Member Jurisdiction Contributions.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Member Jurisdiction shall be required to 
expend any of its general fund monies to support the operations of NVTA in 
any fiscal year unless such expenditure has been first approved by the 
legislative body of the Member Jurisdiction. 

 
8.3.3 Transportation Funds.  In order to carry out the transportation duties and 

responsibilities of this Agreement, NVTA shall be empowered to claim all 
TDA funds under Articles 4, 4.5 and/or 8 of Chapter 4 of the Public Utilities 
Code apportioned within Napa County by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC). All TDA funds will be used for purposes allowed under 
TDA regulations with the exception of those funds for streets and roads, 
Section 99400(a) of the Public Utilities Code.  All TDA funds claimed by 
NVTA shall be used at the sole discretion of the NVTA Board of Directors 
only for transportation[OA6], transit, and paratransit services and capital 
improvements.  TDA funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99233.3 
are not subject to this agreement.  Member Jurisdictions endorse a single 
apportionment by MTC under Sections 99233.8 and 99233.9 of the Public 
Utilities Code to the NVTA on behalf of the jurisdictions of Napa County.  If 
apportionment under Sections 99233.8 and 99233.9 of the Public Utilities 
Code are made to any Member Jurisdiction the NVTA is authorized to claim 
all such apportionments for transit purposes without further action by the 
Member Jurisdiction.  Funds available pursuant to Section 99313.6, 
excluding funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99314.3, shall be 
claimed solely by the NVTA for transit purposes.  No Member Jurisdiction 
shall claim funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99313.6, excluding 
funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99314.3. 

 
8.3.4 Standards For Use of TDA Funds.  Every two[VC7] years, the NVTA will 

prepare and adopt a Short Range Transit Plan (“PlanSRTP”).  As 
warranted, at the discretion of the NVTA Board, the Plan SRTP may be 
updated annually.  The NVTA Board will adopt the Plan SRTP and any 
updated PlanSRTP.  The Plan SRTP shall provide the basis for evaluating 
what services are necessary and where services will be provided.   

 
8.4 Accountability.  
 

8.4.1 Accountable to Member Jurisdictions.  NVTA shall be strictly 
accountable to the Member Jurisdictions for all receipts and disbursements 
of NVTA. 

142



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 13 

 
8.4.2 Limitation on Expenditures.  NVTA may not obligate itself beyond the 

monies due to NVTA under this Agreement plus any monies on hand or 
irrevocably pledged to its support from other sources. 

 
8.4.3 Annual Financial Audit.  The NVTA Board shall cause an annual 

financial[OA8][VC9] audit[OA10] to be prepared and filed to the extent required 
by Government Code section 6505. 

 
8.5 Debts, Liabilities and Obligations. 
 

8.5.1 General.   
 

 (a) Obligation and Assignment of Debt.  Except as provided in Section 
8.4.2 Except as provided in Section 8.4.2, the The debts, liabilities, and 
obligations of NVTA shall be solely the obligation of NVTA and not the 
debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Member Jurisdictions or their 
respective officers or employees. However, nothing in this Agreement shall 
prevent any Member Jurisdiction from separately contracting for, or 
assuming responsibility for, specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of NVTA, 
provided that both the NVTA Board and that Member Jurisdiction give prior 
approval of such contract or assumption. 

 
 (b) Advance Notice of Debts.  NVTA will provide notice to the NVTA Board 

of Directors at their next regular or special meeting prior to submission of a 
formal application for long term debt where debt payments are expected to 
exceed one year.  This notice provision shall not apply to applications for or 
extensions to lines of credit. 

[OA11] 
8.5.2 Liability. 

 
(a) Primary Liability.  If liability is imposed upon NVTA by a court of 
competent jurisdiction by reason of negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
NVTA or any of its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, or contractors, 
any resulting monetary judgment against NVTA shall be paid first from the 
discretionary funds of NVTA or, if the liability arose from the actions of a 
contractor, contribution shall be sought from the contractor. 

 
(b) Insurance.  To comply with subsection (a), above, NVTA shall obtain 
and maintain in force during the life of this Agreement insurance for errors 
and omissions, general liability, and vehicle liability in amounts deemed by 
the NVTA Board to be sufficient to fully cover NVTA, its officers, employees, 
board members, and agents, and the Member Jurisdictions for any 
reasonably foreseeable losses. Where services are provided by contract to 
NVTA, the contract shall require the contractor to obtain insurance sufficient 
to hold NVTA and the Member Jurisdictions harmless and indemnify them 
against any claims for liability arising from the provision of the services. The 

143



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 14 

cost of such coverage, whether obtained directly by NVTA or as any 
increased in the contract price for services obtained under contract, shall 
be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
(c) Contribution by Member Jurisdictions.  If NVTA funds or 
insurance coverage are insufficient, or if any Member Jurisdiction is sued 
and found liable for a negligent or willful act or omission of NVTA or any of 
its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, or contractors and NVTA funds 
or contractor contribution are insufficient to pay the judgment or to 
reimburse the sued Member Jurisdiction for paying the judgment, the 
Member Jurisdictions shall be responsible for the liability for purposes of 
contribution under Government Code section 895.4 in proportion to the 
voting power of each Member Jurisdiction on the NVTA Board. 

 
SECTION 9.  RULES OF CONDUCT 
 
9.1 Bylaws.  The NVTA Board may from time to time adopt bylaws for the conduct of 

the affairs of NVTA and the NVTA Board, provided such Rules of Conduct are not 
inconsistent with this Agreement. 

 
9.2 Quorum.  A majority of the voting power and seven (7) of the twelve (12) voting 

members (or their alternates) of the NVTA Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business at any meeting of the NVTA Board.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if a quorum is present at the commencement of the meeting, the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the NVTA Board  shall 
constitute the act of the NVTA Board even if, at the time of such vote, less than 
seven voting members (or their alternates) are present. 

 
9.3 Adjournment of Meetings.  Any meeting of the NVTA Board, whether or not a 

quorum is present, may be adjourned from time to time\ by a vote of the majority 
of the voting members (or their alternates) present or, if no voting members or their 
alternates are present, may be adjourned by the person appointed to serve as 
Clerk or Secretary of the NVTA Board. 

 
9.4 Brown Act.  All meetings of the NVTA Board shall comply with the requirements 

of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code section 54950 et seq.). 
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICES 
 
10.1 Method.  All notices which any Member Jurisdiction or NVTA may wish to give in 

connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and served by personal delivery 
during business hours at the principal office of the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
to an officer or person apparently in charge of that office, or by deposit in the United 
States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
at its principal office or to such other address as the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
may designate from time to time by written notice to NVTA and each of the parties.  

144



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 15 

Service of notice shall be deemed complete on the day of personal delivery (or 24 
hours after such delivery for notice of special meetings) or three (3) days after 
mailing if deposited in the United States mail. 

 
10.2 Addresses for Notice.  Until changed by written notice to NVTA and the Member 

Jurisdictions, notices under this Agreement shall be delivered to the following 
addresses: 

 
 NVTA:     Executive Director 
       Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
       625 Burnell Street 
       Napa, California  94559-3420 
 
 COUNTY OF NAPA:   Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
       County Administration Building 
       1195 Third Street, Room 310 
       Napa, California 94559 
 
 CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON:  American Canyon City Clerk 
       4381 Broadway Street, Suite 201 
       American Canyon, California 94503 
 
 CITY OF NAPA:    Napa City Clerk 
       955 School Street 
       Napa, California 94559 
 
 TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE:   Yountville Town Clerk 
       6550 Yount Street 
       Yountville, California 94599 
 
 CITY OF ST. HELENA:   St. Helena City Clerk 
       1480 Main Street 
       St. Helena, California  94574 
 
 CITY OF CALISTOGA:   Calistoga City Clerk 
       1232 Washington Street 
       Calistoga, California 94515 
 
SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 
11.1 Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 

the permitted successors and assigns of the Member Jurisdictions, except that no 
Member Jurisdiction shall assign any of its rights under this Agreement except to 
a duly-formed public entity organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
California and then only when approved by amendment of this Agreement. 

 

145



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 16 

11.2 Withdrawal.  A Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA without the consent 
of the other Member Jurisdictions by giving no less than ninety (90) days prior written 
notice to the NVTA Board.  A Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA at any time 
with the written consent of all of the other Member Jurisdictions contained in an 
amendment of this Agreement.  A Member Jurisdiction electing to withdraw prior to 
termination of the Agreement pursuant to Section 11.3 shall not be entitled to share in the 
distribution of assets provided for in Section 11.3.  This provision shall not be effective 
and no Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA until all bonds or other instruments 
of indebtedness issued or entered into by the AuthorityNVTA, if any, have been paid in 
full. 
 
 
11.3 Termination.  The Agreement shall continue in effect until terminated.  The 

Agreement may be terminated at any time and NVTA dissolved with the written 
consent of the majority of the then-existing Member Jurisdictions representing a 
majority of the votes on the NVTA Board.  Such consent shall be expressed in 
duly-authorized resolutions of the Member Jurisdictions.  This provision shall not 
be effective so long as any bonds or other indebtedness of the AuthorityNVTA are 
outstanding and unpaid, or funds are not otherwise set aside for the payment or 
redemption thereof in accordance with the terms of the bonds or other 
indebtedness and the documentation relating thereto.   

 
11.4 Disposition of Assets.  In the event of termination of the Agreement and 

dissolution of NVTA, any remaining assets of NVTA shall be sold or, if sale is 
prohibited under the terms of original acquisition, returned to or otherwise disposed 
of at the direction of the party or persons from whom they were obtained.  After all 
liabilities, encumbrances and liens have been paid, the proceeds of such sales 
shall be allocated proportionately to the Member Jurisdictions based upon their 
respective populations as determined by the latest California State Department of 
Finance population figures.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance with 
Government Code section 6512, any funds remaining at the time of termination 
which were contributed by the Member Jurisdictions shall be returned to the 
Member Jurisdictions in proportion to the contributions made. 

 
SECTION 12.  AMENDMENTS 
 
12.1 Method of Amendment.  Amendments to this Agreement shall be made only with 

the written consent of all then-existing Member Jurisdictions without regard to 
voting power on the NVTA Board.  So long as any bonds or other indebtedness of 
the AuthorityNVTA are outstanding and unpaid, or funds are not otherwise set 
aside for the payment or redemption thereof in accordance with the terms of the 
bonds or other indebtedness and the documentation relating thereto, this Joint 
Powers Agreement shall not be amended, modified or otherwise revised, changed 
or rescinded, unless the NVTA and Member Jurisdictions have first complied with 
(i) the procedures required to amend any indenture for existing Bonds, or (ii) the 
terms of other indebtedness, as applicable. 

146



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 17 

 
SECTION 13.  WAIVER 
 
13.1 Limitation.  Waiver by any Member Jurisdiction of breach of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other breach of such provision or 
of any other provision of this Agreement, nor shall failure to enforce any provision 
hereof operate as a waiver of such provision or of any other provision. 

 
SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY 
 
14.1 General.  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided by a 

final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
State or federal law or regulation or any applicable local ordinance or otherwise be 
unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms and 
provisions shall not be affected. 

 
SECTION 15.  SECTION HEADINGS 
 
15.1 Effect.  All section numbers and headings contained in this Agreement are for 

convenience and reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope 
of any provision of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
 
16.1 Applicable Law.  The rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of NVTA and of the 

Member Jurisdictions under this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with 
and governed by the law of the State of California. 

 
16.2 Venue for Disputes.  Venue for any action filed by any Member Jurisdiction under 

state law to enforce this Agreement or any provision thereof shall be in the courts 
of Napa County.  Venue for any action filed by any Member Jurisdiction under 
federal law or as a federal action shall be in the federal courts for the Northern 
District of California. 

 
SECTION 17.  NO RIGHTS CREATED IN THIRD PARTIES 
 
17.1 No Rights for Third Parties.  The parties to this Agreement hereby expressly 

agree that it is not the intent of the parties to create, and this Agreement shall not 
be deemed or construed to create any third party beneficiaries or otherwise inure 
to the benefit of any third parties. 

 
SECTION 18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
18.1 Integrated Agreement.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement constitute 

the full and entire agreement between the Member Jurisdictions with respect to the 
matters covered herein.  This Agreement supersedes any and all other 

147



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 18 

communications, representations, proposals, understandings or agreements, 
either written or oral, between the Member Jurisdictions with respect to such 
subject matter, including any prior agreement or amendment thereto relating to the 
CMA. 

148



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 
(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings Services and Moody’s Investor 
Services Assigns Credit Ratings to the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board will receive an overview of 
the credit rating assignments of A- from Standard & Poor’s (Attachment 1) and A2 from 
Moody’s (Attachment 2).  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA was recently evaluated for its credit worthiness from the industries two largest 
credit reporting firms - Moody’s Investor Services and Standard & Poor’s (S&P) Global 
Ratings.  The agency has earned an investment grade, stable outlook credit rating from 
each organization.  NVTA applied for its first ratings as part of its process to move forward 
in obtaining debt financing to expedite the delivery of large capital projects.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments

149

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.3 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Not at this time.  An investment grade rating could potentially 
save NVTA millions of dollars per year in interest payments.  
  
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Credit ratings are forward-looking opinions about credit risk.  The ratings express the 
agency’s opinion about the ability and willingness of an issuer, such as a corporation or 
government, to meet its financial obligations in full and on time.  Credit ratings can also 
speak to the credit quality of an individual debt issue such as a municipal bond and the 
relative likelihood that the issue may default. 
 
Ratings are provided by organizations such as Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch, 
commonly called credit rating agencies, which specialize in evaluating credit risk.  Each 
agency applies its own methodology in measuring creditworthiness and uses a specific 
rating scale to publish its ratings opinions.  Table 1 provides a ratings matrix and 
explanation of rating assignments from Moody’s and S&P. 
 
Table 1:  Credit Rating and Description 

 
Ratings below B are non-investment grade and not displayed.   

 
Moody’s Assigns Rating of “A2”, outlook stable 
 
Moody’s cited NVTA’s strong history of support from the State of California, financial 
flexibility, insignificant pension/OPEB liabilities, and strength of the local economy as 

Moody's S&P

Long-term Long-term

Aaa AAA Prime

Aa1 AA+

Aa2 AA

Aa3 AA−

A1 A+

Investment-grade.  Strong capacity to meet 

financial committments, but susceptible to 

adversity.

A2 A

A3 A−
Baa1 BBB+

Baa2 BBB

Baa3 BBB−

Investment-grade.  Extremely strong capacity to 

meet financial commitments.

Investment grade.  Adequate capacity to meet 

its financial commitments, but adverse 

economic conditions are more likely to lead to a 

weakened capacity.

Upper medium grade

Lower medium grade

Rating description

High grade

150



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.3 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
factors for the strong rating.  The firm specified NVTA strong socioeconomic factors of 
the service area, its healthy financial position bolstered by fiscal policies, no debt burden, 
and the ability to draw upon Local Transportation Fund (LTF) revenues among its credit 
strengths.  Moody’s credit report also indicated that NVTA’s “stable outlook is based on 
the expectation that the State will maintain its support for local transit, the local and 
regional economies will continue to perform positively....”  Challenges for the agency is 
its (small) size compared to other transit properties, high level of dependency on 
subsidies, and low liquidity when excluding the line of credit. 
 
Standard and Poor Assigns Rating of “A-“, outlook stable 
 
NVTA joined twelve (12) other domestic mass transit operators to be rated by the firm. 
As S&P stated, “…our enterprise risk profile on the authority comprises results in an 
enterprise risk profile score of extremely strong, the highest level possible.”  The firm 
issued its report citing the following factors:  
 

• Very low industry risk, 
• Extremely strong economic fundamentals, 
• Extremely strong market position, 
• Strong management and governance, 
• Very strong liquidity, 
• Low debt burden 

• Transparent reporting 

 
S&P stated the agency’s available capacity to carry debt and low farebox collection may 
hinder growth, but future financial forecast shows improvements in these areas as long 
as other economic factors remain on their current trajectory. 
 
The strong ratings demonstrates NVTA's financial stability and high standing among 
hundreds of governments in California, particularly for a small government agency.  The 
agency continuously monitors and implements best financial practices, pre-funding of 
post-employment benefits trust, setting aside designated reserves, and maintaining very 
low or no debt.  All of these factors have been validated by two respected sources.  The 
ratings will allow NVTA to seek financing for large capital projects at the lowest interest 
rate possible potentially saving millions of dollars of interest payments over the lifetime of 
the loan saving taxpayer dollars. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) S&P Global Ratings Report for NVTA 
     (2) Moody’s Rating Action and Credit Opinion 

151



One California Street,
31st Floor
San Francisco, CA
94111-5432
tel 415 371-5000
reference no.: 1516982

May 30, 2018

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street
Napa, CA 94559
Attention: Mr Antonio Onorato, Director of Admin, Finance, & Policy

Re: Napa Valley Transportation Authority, California, Issuer Credit Rating

Dear Mr. Onorato:

Pursuant to your request for an S&P Global Ratings rating on the above-referenced entity,
S&P Global Ratings has assigned a rating of "A-"  . S&P Global Ratings views the outlook
for this rating as stable. A copy of the rationale supporting the rating is enclosed.  

This letter constitutes S&P Global Ratings' permission for you to disseminate the above-
assigned ratings to interested parties in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
However, permission for such dissemination (other than to professional advisors bound by
appropriate confidentiality arrangements) will become effective only after we have released
the rating on standardandpoors.com. Any dissemination on any Website by you or your
agents shall include the full analysis for the rating, including any updates, where applicable. 

To maintain the rating, S&P Global Ratings must receive all relevant financial and other
information, including notice of material changes to financial and other information provided
to us and in relevant documents, as soon as such information is available. Relevant financial
and other information includes, but is not limited to, information about direct bank loans and
debt and debt-like instruments issued to, or entered into with, financial institutions, insurance
companies and/or other entities, whether or not disclosure of such information would be
required under S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12. You understand that S&P Global Ratings relies on you
and your agents and advisors for the accuracy, timeliness and completeness of the
information submitted in connection with the rating and the continued flow of material
information as part of the surveillance process. Please send all information via electronic
delivery to pubfin_statelocalgovt@spglobal.com. If SEC rule 17g-5 is applicable, you may
post such information on the appropriate website. For any information not available in
electronic format or posted on the applicable website,

Please send hard copies to:  
S&P Global Ratings
Public Finance Department
55 Water Street
New York, NY 10041-0003

The rating is subject to the Terms and Conditions, if any, attached to the Engagement Letter
applicable to the rating. In the absence of such Engagement Letter and Terms and Conditions,
the rating is subject to the attached Terms and Conditions. The applicable Terms and
Conditions are incorporated herein by reference.

PF Ratings U.S. (4/28/16) Page | 1

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3

June 20, 2018

152



S&P Global Ratings is pleased to have the opportunity to provide its rating opinion. For more
information please visit our website at www.standardandpoors.com. If you have any
questions, please contact us. Thank you for choosing S&P Global Ratings.

Sincerely yours,

S&P Global Ratings
a division of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC

 

cg
enclosures

 

PF Ratings U.S. (4/28/16) Page | 2

153



S&P Global Ratings
Terms and Conditions Applicable To Public Finance Credit Ratings

General. The credit ratings and other views of S&P Global Ratings are statements of opinion
and not statements of fact. Credit ratings and other views of S&P Global Ratings are not
recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities and do not comment on market
price, marketability, investor preference or suitability of any security. While S&P Global
Ratings bases its credit ratings and other views on information provided by issuers and their
agents and advisors, and other information from sources it believes to be reliable, S&P Global
Ratings does not perform an audit, and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent
verification, of any information it receives. Such information and S&P Global Ratings'
opinions should not be relied upon in making any investment decision. S&P Global Ratings
does not act as a "fiduciary" or an investment advisor. S&P Global Ratings neither
recommends nor will recommend how an issuer can or should achieve a particular credit
rating outcome nor provides or will provide consulting, advisory, financial or structuring
advice. Unless otherwise indicated, the term "issuer" means both the issuer and the obligor if
the obligor is not the issuer.

All Credit Rating Actions in S&P Global Ratings' Sole Discretion. S&P Global Ratings may
assign, raise, lower, suspend, place on CreditWatch, or withdraw a credit rating, and assign or
revise an Outlook, at any time, in S&P Global Ratings' sole discretion. S&P Global Ratings
may take any of the foregoing actions notwithstanding any request for a confidential or
private credit rating or a withdrawal of a credit rating, or termination of a credit rating
engagement. S&P Global Ratings will not convert a public credit rating to a confidential or
private credit rating, or a private credit rating to a confidential credit rating.

Publication. S&P Global Ratings reserves the right to use, publish, disseminate, or license
others to use, publish or disseminate a credit rating and any related analytical reports,
including the rationale for the credit rating, unless the issuer specifically requests in
connection with the initial credit rating that the credit rating be assigned and maintained on a
confidential or private basis. If, however, a confidential or private credit rating or the
existence of a confidential or private credit rating subsequently becomes public through
disclosure other than by an act of S&P Global Ratings or its affiliates, S&P Global Ratings
reserves the right to treat the credit rating as a public credit rating, including, without
limitation, publishing the credit rating and any related analytical reports. Any analytical
reports published by S&P Global Ratings are not issued by or on behalf of the issuer or at the
issuer's request. S&P Global Ratings reserves the right to use, publish, disseminate or license
others to use, publish or disseminate analytical reports with respect to public credit ratings
that have been withdrawn, regardless of the reason for such withdrawal. S&P Global Ratings
may publish explanations of S&P Global Ratings' credit ratings criteria from time to time and
S&P Global Ratings may modify or refine its credit ratings criteria at any time as S&P Global
Ratings deems appropriate.

Reliance on Information. S&P Global Ratings relies on issuers and their agents and advisors
for the accuracy and completeness of the information submitted in connection with credit
ratings and the surveillance of credit ratings including, without limitation, information on
material changes to information previously provided by issuers, their agents or advisors.
Credit ratings, and the maintenance of credit ratings, may be affected by S&P Global Ratings'
opinion of the information received from issuers, their agents or advisors.

PF Ratings U.S. (4/28/16) Page | 3

154



Confidential Information. S&P Global Ratings has established policies and procedures to
maintain the confidentiality of certain non-public information received from issuers, their
agents or advisors. For these purposes, "Confidential Information" shall mean verbal or
written information that the issuer or its agents or advisors have provided to S&P Global
Ratings and, in a specific and particularized manner, have marked or otherwise indicated in
writing (either prior to or promptly following such disclosure) that such information is
"Confidential."

S&P Global Ratings Not an Expert, Underwriter or Seller under Securities Laws. S&P Global
Ratings has not consented to and will not consent to being named an "expert" or any similar
designation under any applicable securities laws or other regulatory guidance, rules or
recommendations, including without limitation, Section 7 of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933.
S&P Global Ratings has not performed and will not perform the role or tasks associated with
an "underwriter" or "seller" under the United States federal securities laws or other regulatory
guidance, rules or recommendations in connection with a credit rating engagement.

Disclaimer of Liability. S&P Global Ratings does not and cannot guarantee the accuracy,
completeness, or timeliness of the information relied on in connection with a credit rating or
the results obtained from the use of such information. S&P GLOBAL RATINGS GIVES NO
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE OR USE. S&P Global Ratings, its affiliates or third party providers, or any of
their officers, directors, shareholders, employees or agents shall not be liable to any person
for any inaccuracies, errors, or omissions, in each case regardless of cause, actions, damages
(consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive, compensatory, exemplary or otherwise),
claims, liabilities, costs, expenses, legal fees or losses (including, without limitation, lost
income or lost profits and opportunity costs) in any way arising out of or relating to a credit
rating or the related analytic services even if advised of the possibility of such damages or
other amounts.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in any credit rating engagement, or a credit rating
when issued, is intended or should be construed as creating any rights on behalf of any third
parties, including, without limitation, any recipient of a credit rating. No person is intended as
a third party beneficiary of any credit rating engagement or of a credit rating when issued.

 

PF Ratings U.S. (4/28/16) Page | 4

155



Summary:

Napa Valley Transportation Authority,
California; Transit

Primary Credit Analyst:

Paul J Dyson, San Francisco (1) 415-371-5079; paul.dyson@spglobal.com

Secondary Contact:

Jennifer Hansen, San Francisco (1) 415-371-5035; jen.hansen@spglobal.com

Table Of Contents

Rationale

Outlook

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   1

156



Summary:

Napa Valley Transportation Authority, California;
Transit

Credit Profile

ICR

Long Term Rating A-/Stable New

Rationale

S&P Global Ratings assigned its 'a-' stand-alone credit profile (SACP) and 'A-' issuer credit rating (ICR) to the Napa

Valley Transportation Authority, Calif. (NVTA, or the authority). The outlook is stable.

The ratings reflect our view of the authority's:

• Very low industry risk, with low cyclicality and volatility of earnings during economic cycles, and very low

competition;

• Extremely strong economic fundamentals, stemming from good population growth and very strong employment

growth in Napa County, along with strong county per capita personal income;

• Extremely strong market position with very strong ridership growth of more than 45% in fiscal years 2012 to 2017,

despite a 5.6% decline in fiscal 2017 alone, and NVTA's status as a virtual monopoly in the county as a public transit

provider;

• Strong management and governance;

• Very strong liquidity, with total available resources--including unrestricted cash, undrawn line of credit, and

carry-over balances of the authority's share of unspent sales tax distributions held at the county--at $12.4 million, or

331 days' cash, as of fiscal 2017; and

• Low debt burden, although it is anticipated to rise to moderate levels by fiscal 2019 with a $15.2 million borrowing

in fiscal 2019.

Partly offsetting the above strengths, in our view, is our view of the authority's:

• Somewhat volatile historical and projected net revenue available for debt service, as calculated by S&P Global

Ratings, and weak debt service coverage (DSC) at less than 1x in fiscal 2017, although DSC is forecast to improve to

more than 1x in fiscal 2019;

• Weak financial flexibility, with an overall authority farebox recovery ratio per our calculations of 9.1% in fiscal 2017,

with a moderately high debt service carrying charge--debt service as a percentage of combined debt service and

operating expenses--of 16.0%.

NVTA serves as the congestion management agency for Napa County, and is tasked with programming state and

federal funds for local projects. NVTA is also responsible for the county's regional transportation planning, working

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   2

157



closely with its local, regional, state, and federal partners to improve the county's roads, highways, and bicycle and

pedestrian facilities. NVTA also manages a transit system known as Vine Transit system, which served more than 1

million passengers annually in fiscal years 2016 and 2017, providing local fixed-route service in Napa, door-to-door

paratransit and community shuttles, and regional express bus service throughout the Valley to key transportation hubs.

Within the county, the transit system serves the cities of Napa, American Canyon, St. Helena, Yountville, and

Calistoga. NVTA is the only mass transit service provider in Napa County.

The authority's transit system, and the mass transit industry as a whole, is mature and has historically demonstrated

only minor cyclicality (including ridership trends), so we characterize the cyclicality and volatility of operating earnings

as low risk. We also characterize competition and the threat of substitute products or services as very low risk. Given

the above, we consider the authority's industry risk very low.

The authority, with a catchment area population of 142,417 as of 2016, has had good population and employment

growth in recent years. Population growth from 2011 to 2016 was about 3.2%, while employment growth during the

same period was 15.4%. Per capita personal income levels are very strong, in our view, at 134% of the national

average. Population and employment growth in 2016 alone were 0.3% and 0.8%, respectively. Given these factors, we

view the authority's economic fundamentals as extremely strong.

The authority has a monopolistic business position given a lack of competition in its service area. Ridership grew a

very strong 45.0% to 1.15 million during the 2012-2017 period, although it dipped 5.6% in fiscal 2017. Declining

ridership is not unique to NVTA and is due to a number of factors, including increased car ownership as a result of

favorable financing, relatively low gasoline prices, free and plentiful parking, and competition from transportation

network companies such as Uber and Lyft. The authority transitioned to Automated Passenger Counter technology for

its fixed-route system to count passengers, previously relying on fareboxes to complete the task. Management reports

that this change led to a 30% increase in counts, confirming that the prior methodology was undercounting

passengers. Farebox revenue was still being collected as normal, and management has provided us with an updated

history of ridership better reflecting actual counts. NVTA plans to counter the recent ridership softness with express

bus service, adding more frequent, direct service on popular routes and adding bus-only lanes in some areas. The

authority projects another small ridership decline, of 2.5%, in fiscal 2018 before 1.6% growth in fiscal 2019 to 1.14

million passengers.

In terms of management and governance, the authority is required to submit a Short-Range Transit Plan (SRTP) to the

Bay Area transportation planning organization, Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). The SRTP is transit

specific and addresses NVTA's operating and service plan for the next 10 years. The SRTP documents the authority's

transit assets, capital and operating costs, ridership, and programs for the past three fiscal years and provides forecasts

for the next 10 years. The plan is very comprehensive and has specific operational and financial goals. As Napa

County's Congestion Management Agency and public transit services provider, NVTA commissions several strategic

planning documents--most significantly a 25-year Countywide Transportation Plan, Napa County Community Based

Transportation Plan, and a Vine Transit Express Bus Corridor Study. The authority monitors its risk through several

policies, such as a cash reserve policy, various insurance policies, and budgetary reporting requirements that provide

structure for day-to-day operations. As with many transit agencies, the authority employs performance benchmarks to

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   3

Summary: Napa Valley Transportation Authority, California; Transit

158



evaluate operations and has generally exceeded internal standards. Senior management is experienced with an

executive director who has more than 30 years of transportation industry experience. We view the authority's

management and governance as satisfactory per application of our "Management And Governance Credit Factors For

Corporate Entities And Insurers" criteria (published Nov. 13, 2012 on RatingsDirect). On conversion of our assessment

to a six-point scale under the mass transit criteria, our view of management and governance is strong.

In summary, our analysis of the four factors that our enterprise risk profile on the authority comprises results in an

enterprise risk profile score of extremely strong, the highest level possible.

The authority produces financial and operational reports quarterly, which we believe shows good, transparent

reporting. The authority also is prudent in terms of financial policies, in our opinion, including maintaining a reserve

policy of 25% of net position. Cash balances are monitored daily and reported quarterly. While NVTA lacks a formal

debt management policy, this is mainly because it has not historically had debt other than a $5 million line of credit

over the past two years. The authority does maintain a long-term financial forecast and a long-term capital plan, and

updates both frequently. Given these factors, we view its financial policies as satisfactory.

The authority has a variety of funding sources for its operations, and accounts for its finances mainly within two funds:

its government/planning fund and its transit fund. Money in the governmental fund is available, if needed, for the

transit fund, and vice versa. In audited fiscal 2017 (ended Sept. 30), total operating and nonoperating revenue for the

two funds was $15.7 million. This includes farebox revenue of $1.2 million, transportation development act funds

(TDA) of $8.4 million consisting of the authority's share of a quarter-cent statewide sales tax, federal transit assistance

of $3.0 million, federal highway allocation of $1.1 million, and miscellaneous revenue. Operating revenue is largely

consistent from year to year but nonoperating subsidies have been somewhat volatile, depending on the timing of

grants and other allocations.

TDA funds (the authority's largest revenue source) that are not spent within the fiscal year they are drawn must either

be returned to the Napa County Local Transportation Fund (LTF; trust account for TDA) or designated as advances

for a specific project. Funds returned to the LTF become available to NVTA again in the subsequent fiscal year. The

LTF is not a fund under the control of NVTA; it is administered by the MTC through the Napa County

auditor-controller. NVTA began fiscal 2017 with a balance of $8.1 million in the LTF. During fiscal 2017, additions to

the LTF included NVTA's share of the quarter-cent statewide sales tax of $8.4 million, $2.7 million in unspent TDA

funds from fiscal 2016 returned to the LTF, and interest of about $39,000. During the same year, disbursements of

TDA funds for various transportation purposes, in accordance with allocation instructions from the MTC, totaled $13.6

million, leaving an ending balance of $5.7 million available for use in fiscal 2018. By law, LTF allocations are

considered earned only when spent for operations by the transit system. Given this treatment of the authority's share

of TDA revenue, we have made an adjustment in our calculation of revenue whereby TDA sales tax receipts attributed

to a certain fiscal year are included in revenue for that specific fiscal year, and other activity related to allocations and

returned, unused allocations is disregarded. The authority's current practice is to have excess revenue returned to the

LTF each year; during fiscal years 2013 to 2017 an average of $1.9 million was returned each year, and the averaging

ending balance in the LTF fund was $10.0 million--most recently $5.7 million in fiscal 2017, as indicated above. Ending

balances in the LTF are fully available to the authority for any transportation-related purposes in future fiscal years.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   4

Summary: Napa Valley Transportation Authority, California; Transit

159



For purposes of calculating DSC, given that our focus is on the ability of recurring revenue to cover recurring operating

expenses and debt service, S&P Global Ratings is including only the recurring TDA sales tax receipts as revenue, while

we include ending balances in our liquidity calculations below.

Examining net revenue results including the adjustments indicated above, we calculate DSC of 0.6x based on 2017

results. Included in our calculation of operating expenses in fiscal 2017 is a downward adjustment of operating

expenses of $797,000 that was a one-time cost related to the Napa Valley Vine Trail project. Based on the authority's

multiyear financial forecast as of May 2018, we calculate DSC at 0.4x in fiscal 2018 and 1.05x in fiscal 2019. In our

view, DSC of less than 1x is weak, but we note that the authority's forecast is conservative, in our view, in terms of its

assumptions. Thus, actual results could exceed forecasts, subject to the performance of other revenue and overall

operating costs.

NVTA's unrestricted cash position was $2.7 million, or 72 days' cash, as of audited fiscal 2017, up from $2.4 million, or

67 days of operating expenses, in fiscal 2016. Cash balances have been relatively stable historically, and management

projects about $1.7 million to $2.7 million in unrestricted cash in fiscal years 2018 and 2019. Management aims to have

25% of net position in cash reserves. In our view, NVTA has satisfactory access to external liquidity if needed and has

entered into a $5 million revolving credit facility with the Bank of Marin, which is currently fully repaid. It also typically

carries a positive unused balance in the LTF from year to year, as mentioned earlier. Including unrestricted cash,

undrawn line of credit, and LTF ending balances in fiscal 2017, total liquidity was $12.4 million in fiscal 2017, equal to

331 days' cash. Excluding the LTF ending balance, total liquidity was $6.7 million, equal to 178 days' cash. Given these

factors, we view the authority's liquidity positon as very strong.

NVTA's overall financial operations perform at a deficit prior to nonoperating subsidies, as is typical for U.S. transit

systems. According to our calculations the system as a whole (combined funds) operated at a farebox recovery ratio of

9.1% in fiscal 2017, which we consider low. This means that the authority relies heavily on external funding to provide

funding for operating costs, relative to rated peers. According to management, for the transit fund alone a farebox

recovery ratio of 18.4% for the fixed-route system was achieved in fiscal 2017 (above the statutory 15.0% minimum

required). NVTA's fare policy imposes a fare analysis every three years. NVTA last increased passenger fares in

January 2015, by 10 cents to $1.60 per adult fare, and will likely increase rates in 2019, by 15 cents per adult fare to

$1.75. NVTA had a moderately high debt service carrying charge of 15.7% as of fiscal 2017. NVTA has demonstrated

an ability to adjust routes and frequency during the past several years to aid in its financial position. Given these

factors, we view NVTA's financial flexibility as weak.

NVTA plans to borrow $15.2 million in 2019 to partly fund a Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility. No other

borrowing is planned over the next five years and NVTA had around $991,000 in debt outstanding (draw on line of

credit) as of fiscal 2017 (although debt outstanding is currently zero). The maintenance facility is NVTA's most

significant ongoing project, with a total budget of $36 million. We believe that pension and OPEB risks are manageable

for NVTA. Debt to revenue in fiscal 2017 was 0.06x, rising to 1.03x in fiscal 2018 and 0.94x in fiscal 2019. Debt to net

revenue was 0.64x in fiscal 2017, rising to 36x in fiscal 2018 and 15x in fiscal 2019. We view NVTA's debt burden as

low but likely to grow to more moderate levels once the borrowing occurs.

In summary, our analysis of the five factors that constitute the authority's financial risk profile results in a financial risk

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   5

Summary: Napa Valley Transportation Authority, California; Transit

160



profile score of strong, the third-highest level possible.

Our view of the authority's extremely strong enterprise risk profile and strong financial risk profile results in an

indicative SACP of 'aa-', per our mass transit enterprise ratings criteria. We are assigning an SACP of 'a-' rather than

'aa-' because of our view of the authority's weak DSC in fiscal 2017 and forecast weak DSC for 2018. Based on

comparisons with similarly rated peers, we did not apply one notch of flexibility in arriving at the final SACP. Given our

view that the authority is not a government-related entity (GRE; per our criteria), our ICR on the authority is also 'A-'.

Outlook

The stable outlook reflects our expectation that the authority will maintain very strong liquidity, set fares, and manage

expenses to maintain adequate financial metrics as projected in 2019, despite softness in ridership in recent years.

Upside scenario

We could raise the rating over our two-year outlook period if the authority's DSC improves to adequate levels that we

believe will be sustained, as a result of either ridership growth, improved expense management, or sustained, improved

nonoperating revenue and subsidies.

Downside scenario

We could lower the rating over the next two years if the authority's key financial metrics such as liquidity suffers a

material decline, or if ridership continues a trend of weakening.

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors,

have specific meanings ascribed to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria.

Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for further information. Complete ratings information is

available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating action can be found

on S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left

column.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   6

Summary: Napa Valley Transportation Authority, California; Transit

161



WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT MAY 30, 2018   7

STANDARD & POOR’S, S&P and RATINGSDIRECT are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and certain analyses, normally from issuers or underwriters of securities or from obligors. S&P reserves the right to disseminate
its opinions and analyses. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com
and www.globalcreditportal.com (subscription), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional
information about our ratings fees is available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees.

S&P keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective activities. As a result,
certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established policies and procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of certain non-public information received in connection with each analytical process.

To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P
reserves the right to assign, withdraw or suspend such acknowledgment at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the
assignment, withdrawal or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof.

Credit-related and other analyses, including ratings, and statements in the Content are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact.
S&P’s opinions, analyses and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any
investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P assumes no obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or format. The
Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making
investment and other business decisions. S&P does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor except where registered as such. While S&P has obtained information from
sources it believes to be reliable, S&P does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of any information it receives.

No content (including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, model, software or other application or output therefrom) or any part thereof (Content) may be
modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of
Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC or its affiliates (collectively, S&P). The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P and any third-party
providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents (collectively S&P Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or
availability of the Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use
of the Content, or for the security or maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an “as is” basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM
FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT’S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY
SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive,
special or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by
negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

Copyright © 2018 by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. All rights reserved.

162



Rating Action: Moody's assigns A2 Issuer Rating to Napa Valley Transportation
Authority (CA); Outlook Stable

30 Apr 2018

New York, April 30, 2018 -- Moody's Investors Service has assigned an Issuer Rating of A2 to the Napa Valley
Transportation Authority (CA). The Issuer Rating represents the rating that we would assign to bonds secured
by the revenues of the authority's transit enterprise, including farebox revenues and state and federal
operating subsidies. The authority has no bonded debt outstanding, but expects to borrow $15 million through
a loan from the California Infrastructure Bank to fund part of the costs of a new bus maintenance and storage
facility. The outlook is stable.

RATINGS RATIONALE

The A2 rating reflects the strength of the local and regional economies, a strong history of support from the
State of California (Aa3 stable) for local transit, the financial flexibility provided by the ability to draw upon
additional state funding as needed, and insignificant pension and OPEB liabilities attributable to transit
operations. These strengths are offset, in part, by the small size of the transit system, the risks of federal
operating support for transit, above-average debt levels assuming execution of the planned loan, and weak
liquidity in the transit fund when excluding an existing line of credit.

RATING OUTLOOK

The outlook on the rating is stable based on the expectation that the state will maintain its support for local
transit, the local and regional economies will continue to perform positively, and the authority will implement
regular fare increases to maintain farebox recovery near current levels.

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE

Significant growth in system utilization associated with an increase in farebox recovery

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE

Decrease in federal or state support for local transit operations

Erosion of liquidity due to delays in the receipt of state or federal grants, or inability to renew the line of credit

LEGAL SECURITY

The issuer rating represents the rating that we would assign to bonds secured by the revenues of the
authority's transit enterprise, including farebox revenues and state and federal operating subsidies.

PROFILE

The authority is the regional transportation planning agency for Napa County; its responsibilities include the
programming of federal and state funding for highway, transit and other transportation purposes. The authority
is also the sole provider of transit services for Napa County, primarily fixed-route bus service.

METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was Mass Transit Enterprises Methodology published in
December 2017. Please see the Rating Methodologies page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this
methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or
category/class of debt or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3

June 20, 2018

163



ratings in accordance with Moody's rating practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this
announcement provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the credit rating action on the support
provider and in relation to each particular credit rating action for securities that derive their credit ratings from
the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this announcement provides certain regulatory
disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in relation to a definitive rating that may be
assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where the transaction structure and terms
have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner that would have affected the
rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page for the respective issuer on
www.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, if applicable, the related
rating outlook or rating review.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's legal
entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosures
for each credit rating.

Kenneth Kurtz
Lead Analyst
State Ratings
Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
One Front Street
Suite 1900
San Francisco 94111
US
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

Baye Larsen
Additional Contact
State Ratings
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

Releasing Office:
Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007
U.S.A
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

© 2018 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and
affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved. 

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. AND ITS RATINGS
AFFILIATES (“MIS”) ARE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT
RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND
MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY INCLUDE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE
FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE
SECURITIES. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET
ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED
FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY
OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR
PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S
PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S

164



PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT
RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC.
CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE
INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS
ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD
PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS
COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR.
MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE
EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE
ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR
PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.  

MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL
INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE
MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS OR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION.
IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER. 

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE
REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED,
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON
WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT. 

CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A
BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN
ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK. 

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and
reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all
information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary
measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources
MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received
in the rating process or in preparing the Moody’s publications. 

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect, special, consequential, or
incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or
the use of or inability to use any such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees,
agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage
arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by
MOODY’S. 

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory losses or damages caused to any
person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any
other type of liability that, for the avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any
contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the
use of or inability to use any such information. 

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER
OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER. 

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation
(“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds,

165



debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have,
prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for appraisal and rating
services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain
policies and procedures to address the independence of MIS’s ratings and rating processes. Information
regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities
who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more
than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate
Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.” 

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian
Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399
657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as
applicable). This document is intended to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section
761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent
to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that
neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to
“retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an
opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or
any form of security that is available to retail investors. It would be reckless and inappropriate for retail investors
to use MOODY’S credit ratings or publications when making an investment decision. If in doubt you should
contact your financial or other professional adviser. 

Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary
of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of
MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit
ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment
under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered with the Japan Financial Services
Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively. 

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and
municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as
applicable) have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for
appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees ranging from JPY200,000 to approximately JPY350,000,000. 

MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.

166

https://www.moodys.com/


U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

CREDIT OPINION
30 April 2018

Contacts

Kenneth Kurtz +1.415.274.1737
Senior Vice President
kenneth.kurtz@moodys.com

Baye Larsen +1.212.553.0818
VP-Sr Credit Officer
baye.larsen@moodys.com

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
Update following assignment of Issuer Rating

Summary
The credit quality of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority's transit enterprise benefits
from the strength of the local and regional economies, a strong history of support from
the State of California (Aa3 stable) for local transit, the financial flexibility provided by the
ability to draw upon additional state funding as needed, and insignificant pension and OPEB
liabilities attributable to transit operations. These strengths are offset, in part, by the small
size of the transit system, the risks of federal operating support for transit, above-average
debt levels assuming execution of a planned loan, and weak liquidity in the transit fund when
excluding an existing line of credit.

On April 26, Moody’s Investors Service assigned an Issuer Rating of A2 to the authority. The
Issuer Rating represents the rating that we would assign to bonds secured by the revenues of
the authority’s transit enterprise, including farebox revenues and state and federal operating
subsidies. The authority has no bonded debt outstanding, but expects to borrow $15 million
through a loan from the California Infrastructure Bank to fund part of the costs of a new bus
maintenance and storage facility.

Exhibit 1

Transit operations are highly dependent on state and federal subsidies

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 (

$
1

,0
0

0
s
)

Passenger Fares State LTF Funds Federal Grants State STA Funds

Source: NVTA audited financial statements.

Credit strengths

» Strong local economy which appears to have recovered from the fires of 2017, and
integration with the large and diverse Bay Area economy

» Demonstrated trend of state support for local transit

» Financial flexibility based on ability to draw upon additional state LTF funding as needed

167

https://www.surveygizmo.com/s3/1133212/Rate-this-research?pubid=PBC_1122438
https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/California-State-of-credit-rating-600023978


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

» Insignificant pension and OPEB liabilities in the transit fund due to contracting out operations

Credit challenges

» Small, bus-only system characterized by low utilization and farebox recovery

» High level of dependence on state and federal operating subsidies

» Above-average debt levels assuming the execution of the planned $15 million loan for construction of a bus storage and
maintenance facility

» Weak liquidity in the transit fund when excluding an existing line of credit

Rating outlook
The outlook on the rating is stable based on the expectation that the state will maintain its support for local transit, the local and
regional economies will continue to perform positively, and the authority will implement regular fare increases to maintain farebox
recovery near current levels.

Factors that could lead to an upgrade

» Significant growth in system utilization associated with an increase in farebox recovery

Factors that could lead to a downgrade

» Decrease in federal or state support for local transit operations

» Erosion of liquidity due to delays in the receipt of state or federal grants, or inability to renew the line of credit

Key indicators

Exhibit 2

Fiscal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Annual Ridership (000)                     724                     932                     937                   1,216                   1,148 

Utilization (Trips/Population) 5 7 7 9 8

Farebox Recovery Ratio 9.5% 15.2% 13.5% 12.9% 11.7%

Fixed Costs as a % of Operating Expenditures 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Net Debt/Revenues 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.09

3-Year Average Annual Debt Service Coverage by Net Revenues (GAAP) (x) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Days Cash on Hand (incl. Lines of Credit) 104 80 211 138 158

Source: Napa Valley Transportation Authority; Moody's calculations.

Profile
The authority is the regional transportation planning agency for Napa County; its responsibilities include the programming of federal
and state funding for highway, transit and other transportation purposes. The authority also provides transit services, primarily fixed-
route bus service.

Detailed credit considerations
Size and Market Position
The authority is the sole provider of transit services in Napa County (2017 population 142,408). The county’s economy is famously
concentrated in wine production and tourism, but the county is also well integrated into the large and diverse San Francisco Bay Area
economy. Growth in employment has been positive, with county unemployment rates below state and US levels. Income levels are

This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on
www.moodys.com for the most updated credit rating action information and rating history.

2          30 April 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority: Update following assignment of Issuer Rating
168



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

above average--county per capita personal income in 2016 was $65,805, 134% of the US average and 117% of the state average. The
fires in late 2017 disrupted the tourism industry, but, by all indications, tourism has fully recovered and rebuilding of damaged property
is having a positive economic impact.

The authority’s transit operations include fixed-route bus services, on-demand door-to-door shuttle services, and paratransit. Its
fixed route bus services include: local bus routes in the City of Napa ( 2017 population 80,628); limited local bus routes in the City of
American Canyon; longer-distance bus routes connecting the City of Napa with the Cities of St Helena and Calistoga in the northern
part of the county via highway 29; and commuter express routes to Fairfield and Suisun City in Solano County, the Vallejo Ferry
Terminal, and the El Cerrito del Norte BART station. All transit services are provided through a private contractor.

Total ridership has generally shown positive growth, but part of this growth was attributable to a change from a farebox-based counting
system to automatic passenger counters. Authority staff believe that there had been significant undercounting with the prior counting
system. A 5.6% decrease in total ridership in fiscal 2017 was driven largely by the strong economy and low gas prices, echoing the
experience of other transit systems across the country. For fiscal 2017, total ridership was 1,148,042, including 1,047,676 for bus, 76,672
for shuttles, and 23,603 for paratransit. Overall utilization (trips/population) at 8.1 is low compared to large urban systems, but typical
for a low density, exurban system.

Financial Flexibility and Metrics
Farebox recovery at 12% in FY 2017, is low compared to large urban transit systems but comparable to small bus-only systems in
less dense, exurban areas. As a result the authority’s transit operations are highly dependent on operating subsidies. The primary
operating subsidies are the State of California Local Transportation Fund (LTF) allocations (52.6% of gross revenues in fiscal 2017),
federal operating grants (26.6%), and State of California State Transit Assistance (5.9%). Beginning July 1, 2018, the authority will be
receiving proceeds of a ½-cent county-wide sales tax (Measure T), but this revenue is earmarked primarily for road rehabilitation and
will not be available for transit purposes.

State LTF allocations derive from a ¼-cent sales tax collected in the county by the state and allocated to the authority to support
transit planning and services. LTF funds not spent within the fiscal year or designated as advances for a specific project, must
be returned to the Local Transportation Fund, a fund held by Napa County and administered by the Bay Area’s Metropolitan
Transportation Commission, but remain available to the authority for capital and operating purposes in the fiscal year following their
return. Returns of LTF funds averaged $1.47 million in fiscal years 2015-17. Since the transit fund records as revenues only the LTF funds
spent, financial operations are narrowly balanced as evidenced by small operating margins—5.7% in fiscal 2015, -9.7% in 2016, and
-1.8% in 2017. But the ability of the authority to draw upon additional LTF funds as needed represents a significant source of financial
flexibility.

LIQUIDITY
Liquidity in the transit fund is very narrow at year end due to the timing of the receipt of operating grants. Liquidity is supplemented by
a $5 million line of credit which the authority draws upon for cash flow purposes as needed. At the end of fiscal 2017, the transit fund
had an outstanding balance due on the line credit of $990,799. Cash on hand after the draw on the line of credit was 21 days. Cash
on hand, including the remaining balance available on the line of credit, was 158 days. As of April 23, 2018, there was no outstanding
balance due on the line of credit.

Debt and Legal Covenants
DEBT STRUCTURE
The authority has no bonded debt outstanding. Debt outstanding for the transit fund in recent fiscal years was limited to balances due
on the authority’s line of credit of $1 million in fiscal 2016 and $990,799 in fiscal 2017. The authority is planning to borrow $15 million
through a loan from the California Infrastructure Bank to fund part of the costs of a new bus maintenance and storage facility. The loan
is expected to have a term of 30 years and be secured by revenues of the transit fund, including state and federal operating subsidies.

DEBT-RELATED DERIVATIVES
The authority has no debt-related derivatives.

3          30 April 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority: Update following assignment of Issuer Rating
169



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

PENSIONS AND OPEB
All bus operations are contracted out to a private company. Direct authority personnel costs, and consequently pension and OPEB
liabilities, attributable to the transit fund are not significant.

Management and Governance
The authority was established in 1991 as the county’s congestion management agency under a joint powers agreement among the
county; the cities of American Canyon, Calistoga, Napa and St Helena; and the Town of Yountville. The agreement was amended in
1998 to authorize the provision of public transit services. The authority is governed by a board of directors made up of elected officials
from the member agencies and a non-voting representative of the Paratransit Coordinating Council. The authority’s transit operations
are accounted for in the transit fund (an enterprise fund). The authority’s planning and administrative activities are accounted for in the
separate planning fund (a governmental fund).

4          30 April 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority: Update following assignment of Issuer Rating
170



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

© 2018 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. AND ITS RATINGS AFFILIATES (“MIS”) ARE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT
RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY INCLUDE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE
RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY
MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS
DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S
OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE
MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT
PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE
SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION
AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR
PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR
RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS OR MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT
YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER. ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW,
AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED
OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY
PERSON WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES
AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well
as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process or in preparing the Moody’s publications.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY’S.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH
RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation (“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any rating,
agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain
policies and procedures to address the independence of MIS’s ratings and rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and
rated entities, and between entities who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at
www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an opinion as
to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. It would be reckless
and inappropriate for retail investors to use MOODY’S credit ratings or publications when making an investment decision. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other
professional adviser.

Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered
with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees
ranging from JPY200,000 to approximately JPY350,000,000.

MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.

REPORT NUMBER 1122438

5          30 April 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority: Update following assignment of Issuer Rating
171

http://www.moodys.com


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

6          30 April 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority: Update following assignment of Issuer Rating

172



 June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Justin Paniagua, Senior Finance/Policy Analyst  
(707) 259-8781 / Email: jpaniagua@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Third Quarter Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2017-18 Financial Statements, 5-Year Forecast and Delegated 
Authority Matrix 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the financial 
performance compared to budget (Attachment 1) for the third quarter of FY 2017-18 and 
5-year financial forecast.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report provides NVTA’s third quarter update on its financial performance and long-
term budget forecast over the next five (5) years.  Attachment 1 summarizes the financial 
performance and includes detailed financial information assessing the agency’s 
performance to budget.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact?  No 

173

mailto:jpaniagua@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.4 

Page 2 of 3 
 

CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
NVTA is composed of four (4) funds: the Planning fund also known as the Congestion 
Management Agency (CMA) or the General Fund; the Transit Fund; and two (2) fiduciary 
funds:  the Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) and the Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
Authority (AVAA).  Fiduciary funds do not contribute to the agency financial performance 
and are included for informational purposes only. 
 
Financial Performance: 
Congestion Management Agency - Budget vs. Actuals 
 
The General Fund (CMA) recognized $243,881 in revenues for the quarter.  Fiscal year-
to-date, the CMA has recognized approximately 87% of its total budgeted revenues.  The 
main source was NVTA’s third quarter (Q3) CMA Planning Grant invoice for $103,193.  
Other revenues are salary charge backs to the Public Transit fund, interest, and refunds.  
 
Planning fund expenses totaled $1,299,140.  Fiscal year-to-date, approximately 43% of 
the fiscal year budget has been expended.  Personnel costs were $469,467 for Q3 and 
66% of salaries and benefits have been expended to date.  Agency administration and 
consulting services accounted for $829,673 in expenses.  By the end of the quarter 31.5% 
of the administration and consulting budget was expended. 
 
Public Transit (Transit Fund) - Budget vs. Actuals 
 
Transit operating revenues were $1,257,938 for the quarter.  The fund has received a 
majority of the annual Transportation Development Act (TDA) operating allocation for the 
fiscal year.  
 
Overall, operating expenses in the Public Transit fund totaled $2,586,053.  The primary 
expense categories were purchased transportation at $2,215,072 and fuel at $216,102.  
Total public transit expenditures to date amount to 68% of the fiscal year budget.  Fuel cost 
for the fiscal year to date is on average $2.66 per gallon, an increase of 20% over the 
previous fiscal year. 
 
Capital Purchases 
 
In the third quarter, NVTA did not make any capital purchases.   
  

174



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.4 

Page 3 of 3 
 

5-Year Forecast:   
Staff has updated the 5-year forecast to include the recently approved FY 2018-19 and FY 
2019-20 biennial budget. 
 
Note that the information summarized in this memo and contained in the attached report 
has not been audited and should be used for informational purposes only.   
 
Executive Director Delegated Authority 
The Board authorizes the Executive Director up to $49,999 in delegated authority for any 
single purchase and up to $175,000 for construction expenses.  Staff provides quarterly 
updates on delegated authority expenses over $5,000.  Table 1 presents delegated 
authority expenditures as of May 31, 2018.  
 
Table 1:  Executive Director Delegated Authority 

QUARTERLY DELEGATED AUTHORITY SMALL CLAIMS REPORT  (> $5K - 50K )                FY 17-18 

CONTR/  
PO NO. VENDOR DESCRIPTION QTR 1          

JUL-SEP 
QTR 2      

OCT-DEC 
QTR 3     

JAN-MAR 
QTR 4          

APR-JUN TOTAL $ 

- PG&E TRUE-UP    $12.4       $12.4  
- TUITAHI  LANDSCAPING (TRANSDEV)    $8.8       $8.8  
- PG&E SHEEHY COURT    $5.0       $5.0  
- CTA 2018 MEMBERSHIP    $7.4       $7.4  

1801 KBA 
PHOTO COPY EQUIP & 
MAINT      $25.7     $25.7  

1805 C&J 
PAINTING 

NVTA/BOARD RM PAINT 
SVSC      $28.2     $28.2  

1806 STA TRAVEL DEMAND 
MODELING       $24.0     $24.0  

1807 ABBEY BOARD RM CARPET      $9.6     $9.6  
181002 SAMCLAR BOARD RM FURNITURE      $15.2     $15.2  

- MACKEY INSURANCE      $33.6     $33.6  
181003 CDWG VAR. Adobe CLOUD 

SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTIONS 
(15 Users) 

     $13.9     $13.9  

181006 PENINSULAR WINDOW SHADES        $29.9   $29.9  
181008 UTA APCs (3 ea)         $15.8   $15.8  

1838 PITNEY 
BOWES 

POSTAL METER LEASE (5 
YRS)        $7.5   $7.5  

    TOTAL  $ -    $33.6   $150.2   $53   $237.0  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Fiscal Year 2017-18 Third Quarter Financial Statements and 5-Year 
   Forecast  

175



Division: 830 NVTA - Consolidated 5 Year Forecast
 Adopted 
Budget 

 Budget 
Adjustments 

 Adjusted 
Budget  Q1 Actuals  Q2 Actuals  Q3 Actuals  YTD Total  Budget vs Actual 

 Percent of 
Budget 

 FY 2018-19 
Budget 

 FY 2019-20 
Budget  FY 2020-21  FY 2021-22  FY 2022-23 

Revenues
41400 Sales and Use Tax 8,101,392         - 8,101,392 5,372,622       2,132,852       691,414           8,196,888         (95,496) 101.18% 12,054,839                9,076,495            13,411,200       9,408,200         13,832,600       

41410 Sales and Use Tax - Capital - 4,803,919 4,803,919 - - - - 4,803,919 0.00% - - - - - 

43790 State-Other Funding 1,139,000         - 1,139,000 - 139,885 212,093           351,978            787,022 30.90% 2,056,413 1,506,600            1,549,700         1,594,100         1,639,900         

43890 Federal-Other Funding 2,781,830         300,000            3,081,830 271,015           325,793 103,193           700,000            2,381,830 22.71% 4,459,424 2,846,600            2,903,500         2,961,600         3,020,800         

43910 County of Napa - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 600,000            - 600,000 152,535           176,973          96,892             426,400            173,600 71.07% 629,400 715,400                721,200            727,100            733,100            

45100 Interest 26,400              - 26,400 11,022             15,172            10,677             36,871              (10,471) 139.66% 46,400 47,000 47,700              48,400              49,100              

46800 Charges for Services (Farebox) 1,532,200         - 1,532,200 310,911           265,424          300,313           876,648            655,552 57.22% 1,187,100 1,271,700            1,297,100         1,323,000         1,349,500         

46810 American Canyon Contribution 33,119              - 33,119 6,652               6,972              6,307               19,931              13,188 60.18% 35,700 37,700 38,800              40,000              41,200              

46820 Yountville Contribution 34,489              - 34,489 8,126               9,210              8,782               26,118              8,371 75.73% 38,600 40,000 41,200              42,400              43,700              

46825 St. Helena Contribution 24,519              - 24,519 6,130               6,130              6,130               18,389              6,130 75.00% 31,655 32,455 33,400              34,400              35,400              

46830 Calistoga & CTBID Contribution 65,093              - 65,093 24,917             15,038            10,099             50,055              15,038 76.90% 65,100 65,100 67,100              69,100              71,200              

47150 Other Grants - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

48100 Sale of Capital Assets - - - - - 8,542 8,542 (8,542) 0.00% - - - - - 

49900 Intrafund Revenue 204,000            - 204,000 56,748             53,826            55,919 166,493            37,507 81.61% 243,500 253,500                258,600            263,800            269,100            

4* Total Revenues 14,542,042   5,103,919    19,645,961   6,220,677    3,147,275   1,510,361    10,878,313   8,767,648   55.37% 20,848,131   15,892,550    20,369,500   16,512,100   21,085,600   
Expenses
51100 Salaries and Wages 1,482,142         25,000              1,507,142         185,443           409,323          344,626           939,391            567,751 62.33% 1,552,700 1,614,400            1,662,800         1,712,700         1,764,100         

51110 Extra Help - - - 2,487               - - 2,487 (2,487) 0.00% 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 

51115 Overtime - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

51200 401A Employer Contribution 18,000              - 18,000 4,682               850 13,420             18,952              (952) 105.29% 24,500 24,500 24,500              24,500              24,500              

51205 Cell Phone Allowance 1,800 - 1,800 500 625 750 1,875 (75) 0.00% 3,000 3,000 3,100 3,200 3,300 

51300 Medicare 17,000              - 17,000 3,764               5,810              4,835               14,408              2,592 84.75% 18,000 18,000 18,500              19,100              19,700              

51400 Employee Insurance-Premiums 186,000            - 186,000 63,155             67,630            75,792             206,577            (20,577) 111.06% 300,000 321,600                331,200            341,100            351,300            

51405 Workers Compensation 14,400              - 14,400 - - 1,081               1,081 13,319 7.51% 14,400 14,400 14,800              15,200              15,700              

51410 Unemployment Compensation - - - 90 120 2,415               2,625 (2,625) 0.00% - - - - - 

51600 Retirement 154,358            - 154,358 32,597             31,235            26,549             90,382              63,976 58.55% 166,000 180,000                185,400            191,000            196,700            

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 31,000              - 31,000 - - - - 31,000 0.00% 25,000 25,000 25,800              26,600              27,400              

51990 Other Employee Benefits 3,000 - 3,000 - - - - 3,000 0.00% 3,000 3,000 3,200 3,400 3,600 

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 1,907,700   25,000  1,932,700   292,718   515,592  469,467   1,277,778   654,922   66.11% 2,111,600   2,208,900    2,274,300   2,341,800   2,411,300   

52100 Administration Services 10,000              - 10,000 215 263 1,426               1,903 8,097 19.03% 10,000 10,000 10,200              10,400              10,600              

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 103,100            - 103,100 2,992               31,776            31,036             65,804              37,296 63.83% 95,700 95,700 97,600              99,600              101,600            

52130 Information Technology Service 126,542            - 126,542 25,904             25,904            25,904             77,711              48,831 61.41% 97,490 101,400                103,400            105,400            107,500            

52131 ITS-Communication Services - 4,000 4,000 4,922               4,922              4,922               14,766              (10,766) 0.00% 21,741 22,400 22,800              23,300              23,800              

52140 Legal Services 60,500              - 60,500 6,652               14,683            - 21,335 39,165 35.26% 85,700 85,700 87,400              89,100              90,900              

52150 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000              - 10,000 - - - - 10,000 0.00% 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 

52310 Consulting Services 337,000            2,840,863         3,177,863 29,567             119,430          556,509           705,506            2,472,357 22.20% 6,382,100 926,300                5,105,700         944,800            5,207,800         

52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000              - 15,000 1,476               2,952              6,435               10,862              4,138 72.42% 18,500 18,700 18,800              18,900              19,000              

52335 Security Services 48,000              - 48,000 4,109               3,062              3,619               10,790              37,210 22.48% 42,000 42,000 42,600              43,200              43,800              

52340 Landscaping Services 4,000 - 4,000 975 650 1,300               2,925 1,075 73.13% 5,000 5,200 5,300 5,400 5,500 

52360 Construction Services - 65,000 65,000 9,012               11,301            19,045             39,358              25,642 60.55% - - - - - 

52490 Other Professional Services 9,493,200         - 9,493,200 2,278,027       2,198,800       2,215,072       6,691,899         2,801,301 70.49% 9,487,500 9,800,300            9,996,300         10,196,200       10,400,100       

52500 Maintenance-Equipment 30,000              62,000              92,000 9,111               55,274            33,184             97,570              (5,570) 106.05% 130,000 135,000                135,500            136,000            136,500            

52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 46,000              274,000            320,000 10,841             24,134            65,795             100,770            219,230 31.49% 85,000 90,000 91,500              93,000              94,600              

52515 Maintenance-Software 72,000              41,000              113,000 4,666               60,100            18,210             82,976              30,024 73.43% 115,500 115,500                117,000            118,000            119,500            

52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 32,000              - 32,000 - - 6,203               6,203 25,797 19.38% 62,000 62,000 62,000              62,000              62,000              

52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment 8,000 - 8,000 1,061               1,463              2,919               5,442 2,558 68.03% 7,000 7,000 7,100 7,200 7,300 

52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 41,000              - 41,000 3,000               3,000              - 6,000 35,000 14.63% 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 

52705 Insurance - Premiums 77,000              - 77,000 639 639 27,402             28,679 48,321 37.25% 75,000 75,000 76,500              78,000              79,500              

52800 Communications/Telephone 17,300              - 17,300 3,742               5,350              7,014               16,106 1,194 93.10% 21,500 21,500 21,700              21,900              22,100              

52810 Advertising/Marketing 202,000            - 202,000 5,832               63,109            51,472             120,412 81,588 59.61% 172,500 172,500                173,600            174,700            175,800            

52820 Printing & Binding 65,500              - 65,500 7,721               5,335              12,710             25,766 39,734 39.34% 60,000 60,000 60,300              60,600              60,900              

52825 Bank Charges 16,000              - 16,000 8,171               1,225              2,570               11,966 4,034 74.79% 14,000 14,000 14,200              14,400              14,600              

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 12,000              - 12,000 1,411               4,969              7,931               14,311 (2,311) 119.26% 17,500 17,500 17,800              18,100              18,400              

52900 Training/Conference Expenses 50,000              - 50,000 3,531               7,231              7,423               18,185 31,815 36.37% 40,000 40,000 40,800              41,600              42,400              

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 20,000              - 20,000 1,931               2,903              3,069               7,903 12,097 39.51% 15,000 15,000 15,300              15,600              15,900              

53100 Office Supplies 30,200              - 30,200 12,841             4,008              5,964               22,812 7,388 75.54% 35,000 35,000 35,700              36,400              37,100              

53110 Freight/Postage 4,000 - 4,000 - 17 235 252 3,748 6.31% 4,000 4,000 4,100 4,200 4,300 

53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 7,000 - 7,000 3,513               110 (1,788)             1,835 5,165 26.22% 6,000 6,000 6,100 6,200 6,300 

53120 Memberships/Certifications 36,000              - 36,000 3,115               9,115              19,556             31,786              4,214 88.29% 35,000 35,000 35,700              36,400              37,100              

53205 Utilities - Electric 16,000              - 16,000 2,975               14,119            3,466               20,561              (4,561) 128.51% 31,000 31,000 31,500              32,000              32,500              

53220 Utilities - Water 22,000              - 22,000 5,300               4,975              4,922               15,197              6,803 69.08% 25,000 25,000 25,200              25,400              25,600              

53250 Fuel 1,419,000         - 1,419,000 90,511             328,253          216,283           635,047            783,953 44.75% 1,282,800 1,347,950            1,361,400         1,375,000         1,388,700         

52*  53 Total for: Services and Supplies 12,430,342   3,286,863   15,717,205   2,543,763    3,009,071   3,359,806    8,912,640   6,804,565   56.71% 18,493,031   13,430,150    17,836,600   13,906,500   18,405,200   

54315 Interest on Debt (I-Bank; Bank of Marin) - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

57900 Intrafund Expenditures 204,000            - 204,000 56,748             53,826            55,919             166,493            37,507 81.61% 243,500 253,500                258,600            263,800            269,100            

>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 204,000    - 204,000 56,748   53,826   55,919   166,493    37,507    81.61% 243,500   253,500    258,600    263,800    269,100    

5* Total Expenditures 14,542,042   3,311,863   17,853,905   2,893,230   3,578,489   3,885,192    10,356,911   7,496,994     58.01% 20,848,131   15,892,550    20,369,500   16,512,100   21,085,600   

Net Surplus (Deficit) - 1,792,056 1,792,056   3,327,447    (431,214)   (2,374,832)   521,402    -    -   -     -    -    

54600 Depreciation Expense 2,122,000         543,000            2,665,000         - - -              - 2,665,000 0.00% 2,801,900 2,857,900            2,915,100         2,973,400         3,032,900         

Capital Revenues
41410 Sales and Use Tax - Captial - 4,803,919 4,803,919         - - - - 4,803,919 0.00% 2,695,657 - 350,000 350,000            350,000            

43950 Other-Governmental Agencies - - - - - - - - 0.00% 1,963,789 - 1,000,000 1,000,000         1,000,000         

43890 Federal-Other Funding - 300,000 300,000            - - - - 300,000 0.00% 923,742 - - - - 

4* Total Revenues - 5,103,919 5,103,919   -    -     -    -    5,103,919   0.00% 5,583,188   - 1,350,000 1,350,000   1,350,000   
Capital Expenses
55100 Land - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

55200 Construction in Progress - 425,000 425,000            - - - - 425,000 0.00% 1,075,000 - 100,000 100,000            100,000            

55400 Equipment - 4,678,919 4,678,919         - - - - 4,678,919 0.00% 4,508,188 - 1,250,000 1,250,000         1,250,000         

>='54 Total for: Other Expenses - 5,103,919 5,103,919   -   -     -    -    5,103,919   33.24% 5,583,188   - 1,350,000 1,350,000   1,350,000   

5* Total Expenditures - 5,103,919 5,103,919   -    -     -   -    5,103,919   0.00% 5,583,188   - 1,350,000 1,350,000   1,350,000   

Net Surplus (Deficit) -    -     -    -    -     -    -    -    -   -    -    -    

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4

June 20, 2018

176



Division: 83010 & 83000 - NVTA-CMA 5 Year Forecast

 Adopted Budget 
 Budget 

Adjustments  Adjusted Budget  Q1 Actuals  Q2 Actuals  Q3 Actuals  YTD Total  Budget vs Actual 
 Percent of 

Budget  FY 2018-19 Budget  FY 2019-20 Budget  FY 2020-21  FY 2021-22  FY 2022-23 
Revenues
41400 Sales and Use Tax 1,926,700                   -                                  1,926,700                    1,363,350                  363,350                        -                             1,726,700                      200,000                        89.62% 6,094,231                    2,481,900                     6,714,600                      2,608,800                      6,928,700                      

41410 Sales and Use Tax - Capital 0.00%

43790 State-Other Funding 69,000                         -                                  69,000                         -                              -                                65,406                       65,406                           3,594                            94.79% 319,000                        69,000                           69,000                            69,000                            69,000                            

43890 Federal-Other Funding 700,000                      -                                  700,000                       271,015                      325,793                        103,193                    700,000                         -                                100.00% 2,374,000                    790,000                        805,800                          821,900                          838,300                          

43910 County of Napa -                               -                                  -                                -                              -                                -                             -                                  -                                0.00% -                                

43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 10,000                         -                                  10,000                         -                              -                                -                             -                                  10,000                          0.00% 203,000                        289,000                        294,800                          300,700                          306,700                          

45100 Interest 5,000                           -                                  5,000                            4,345                          6,290                            4,990                         15,626                           (10,626)                        312.51% 20,000                          20,000                           20,400                            20,800                            21,200                            

46800 Charges for Services 160,000                      -                                  160,000                       515                             500                               14,373                       15,388                           144,612                        9.62% -                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                  

47150 Other Grants -                               -                                  -                                -                              -                                -                             -                                  -                                0.00% -                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                  

49900 Intrafund Revenue 204,000                      -                                  204,000                       56,748                        53,826                          55,919                       166,493                         37,507                          81.61% 243,500                        253,500                        258,600                          263,800                          269,100                          

4* Total Revenues 3,074,700              -                             3,074,700               1,695,973             749,759                   243,881                2,689,612                 385,088                   87.48% 9,253,731               3,903,400                8,163,200                 4,085,000                 8,433,000                 
Expenses
51100 Salaries and Wages 1,482,142                   25,000                           1,507,142                    185,443                      409,323                        344,626                    939,391                         567,751                        62.33% 1,552,700                    1,614,400                     1,662,800                      1,712,700                      1,764,100                      

51110 Extra Help -                               -                                  -                                2,487                          -                                -                             2,487                              (2,487)                           0.00% 5,000                            5,000                             5,000                              5,000                              5,000                              

51115 Overtime -                               -                                  -                                -                              -                                -                             -                                  -                                0.00% -                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                  

51200 457(b) Employer Contribution 18,000                         -                                  18,000                         4,682                          850                               13,420                       18,952                           (952)                              105.29% 24,500                          24,500                           24,500                            24,500                            24,500                            

51205 Cell Phone Allowance 1,800                           -                                  1,800                            500                             625                               750                            1,875                              (75)                                104.17% 3,000                            3,000                             3,100                              3,200                              3,300                              

51300 Medicare 17,000                         -                                  17,000                         3,764                          5,810                            4,835                         14,408                           2,592                            84.75% 18,000                          18,000                           18,500                            19,100                            19,700                            

51400 Employee Insurance-Premiums 186,000                      -                                  186,000                       63,155                        67,630                          75,792                       206,577                         (20,577)                        111.06% 300,000                        321,600                        331,200                          341,100                          351,300                          

51405 Workers Compensation 14,400                         -                                  14,400                         -                              -                                1,081                         1,081                              13,319                          7.51% 14,400                          14,400                           14,800                            15,200                            15,700                            

51410 Unemployment Compensation -                               -                                  -                                90                                120                               2,415                         2,625                              (2,625)                           0.00% -                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                  

51600 Retirement 154,358                      -                                  154,358                       32,597                        31,235                          26,549                       90,382                           63,976                          58.55% 166,000                        180,000                        185,400                          191,000                          196,700                          

51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 31,000                         -                                  31,000                         -                              -                                -                             -                                  31,000                          0.00% 25,000                          25,000                           25,800                            26,600                            27,400                            

51990 Other Employee Benefits 3,000                           -                                  3,000                            -                              -                                -                             -                                  3,000                            0.00% 3,000                            3,000                             3,200                              3,400                              3,600                              

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 1,907,700              25,000                       1,932,700               292,718                 515,592                   469,467                1,277,778                 654,922                   66.11% 2,111,600               2,208,900                2,274,300                 2,341,800                 2,411,300                 

52100 Administration Services 10,000                         -                                  10,000                         215                             263                               1,426                         1,903                              8,097                            19.03% 10,000                          10,000                           10,200                            10,400                            10,600                            

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 76,000                         -                                  76,000                         2,249                          30,943                          31,036                       64,227                           11,773                          84.51% 76,000                          76,000                           77,500                            79,100                            80,700                            

52130 Information Technology Service 89,000                         -                                  89,000                         18,250                        18,250                          18,250                       54,750                           34,250                          61.52% 68,290                          70,400                           71,800                            73,200                            74,700                            

52131 ITS-Communication Services -                               4,000                              4,000                            4,922                          4,922                            4,922                         14,766                           (10,766)                        0.00% 21,741                          22,400                           22,800                            23,300                            23,800                            

52140 Legal Services 50,000                         -                                  50,000                         6,652                          14,683                          -                             21,335                           28,665                          42.67% 75,000                          75,000                           76,500                            78,000                            79,600                            

52310 Consulting Services 277,000                      2,840,863                      3,117,863                    29,567                        119,430                        556,509                    705,506                         2,412,357                    22.63% 6,382,100                    926,300                        5,105,700                      944,800                          5,207,800                      

52325 Waste Disposal Services -                               -                                  -                                276                             553                               1,636                         2,465                              (2,465)                           0.00% 3,500                      3,700                      3,800                              3,900                              4,000                              

52360 Construction Services -                               65,000                           65,000                         9,012                          11,301                          19,045                       39,358                           25,642                          60.55% -                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                  

52335 Security Services 12,000                         -                                  12,000                         -                              -                                1,700                         1,700                              10,300                          14.17% 12,000                          12,000                           12,000                            12,000                            12,000                            

52340 Landscaping Services 4,000                           -                                  4,000                            975                             650                               1,300                         2,925                              1,075                            73.13% 5,000                            5,200                             5,300                              5,400                              5,500                              

52500 Maintenance-Equipment 10,000                         -                                  10,000                         1,644                          6,031                            11,389                       19,063                           (9,063)                           0.00% 25,000                          25,000                           25,500                            26,000                            26,500                            

52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 41,000                         274,000                         315,000                       10,841                        15,966                          58,208                       85,016                           229,984                        26.99% 70,000                          75,000                           76,500                            78,000                            79,600                            

52515 Maintenance-Software 72,000                         -                                  72,000                         4,666                          19,100                          18,210                       41,976                           30,024                          58.30% 50,000                          50,000                           51,000                            52,000                            53,000                            

52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 2,000                           -                                  2,000                            -                              -                                -                             -                                  2,000                            0.00% 2,000                            2,000                             2,000                              2,000                              2,000                              

52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment 8,000                           -                                  8,000                            1,061                          1,463                            2,919                         5,442                              2,558                            68.03% 7,000                            7,000                             7,100                              7,200                              7,300                              

52705 Insurance - Premiums 65,000                         -                                  65,000                         639                             639                               20,483                       21,760                           43,240                          33.48% 60,000                          60,000                           61,200                            62,400                            63,600                            

52800 Communications/Telephone 10,000                         -                                  10,000                         1,238                          1,711                            2,307                         5,256                              4,744                            52.56% 7,500                            7,500                             7,700                              7,900                              8,100                              

52810 Advertising/Marketing 40,000                         -                                  40,000                         3,052                          57,622                          25,546                       86,219                           (46,219)                        215.55% 55,000                          55,000                           56,100                            57,200                            58,300                            

52820 Printing & Binding 20,000                         -                                  20,000                         1,844                          2,397                            8,561                         12,803                           7,197                            64.01% 15,000                          15,000                           15,300                            15,600                            15,900                            

52825 Bank Charges 12,000                         -                                  12,000                         282                             500                               226                            1,008                              10,992                          8.40% 10,000                          10,000                           10,200                            10,400                            10,600                            

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 10,000                         -                                  10,000                         718                             4,747                            7,931                         13,396                           (3,396)                           133.96% 15,000                          15,000                           15,300                            15,600                            15,900                            

52900 Training/Conference Expenses 50,000                         -                                  50,000                         3,531                          7,231                            7,423                         18,185                           31,815                          36.37% 40,000                          40,000                           40,800                            41,600                            42,400                            

52905 Business Travel/Mileage 20,000                         -                                  20,000                         1,931                          2,903                            3,069                         7,903                              12,097                          39.51% 15,000                          15,000                           15,300                            15,600                            15,900                            

53100 Office Supplies 20,000                         -                                  20,000                         12,841                        4,008                            5,964                         22,812                           (2,812)                           114.06% 35,000                          35,000                           35,700                            36,400                            37,100                            

53110 Freight/Postage 3,000                           -                                  3,000                            -                              17                                  235                            252                                 2,748                            8.41% 3,000                            3,000                             3,100                              3,200                              3,300                              

53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 7,000                           -                                  7,000                            3,513                          110                               (1,788)                       1,835                              5,165                            26.22% 6,000                            6,000                             6,100                              6,200                              6,300                              

53120 Memberships/Certifications 36,000                         -                                  36,000                         3,115                          9,115                            19,556                       31,786                           4,214                            88.29% 35,000                          35,000                           35,700                            36,400                            37,100                            

53205 Utilities - Electric 8,000                           -                                  8,000                            2,177                          13,074                          2,106                         17,358                           (9,358)                           216.97% 25,000                          25,000                           25,500                            26,000                            26,500                            

53220 Utilities - Water 14,000                         -                                  14,000                         2,982                          2,747                            1,322                         7,051                              6,949                            50.36% 12,000                          12,000                           12,200                            12,400                            12,600                            

53250 Fuel 1,000                           -                                  1,000                            146                             236                               181                            563                                 437                               56.32% 1,000                            1,000                             1,000                              1,000                              1,000                              

52*  53 Total for: Services and Supplies 967,000                  3,183,863                 4,150,863               128,338                 350,611                   829,673                1,308,621                 2,842,242               31.53% 7,142,131               1,694,500                5,888,900                 1,743,200                 6,021,700                 

54315 Interest on Debt -                               -                                  -                                -                              -                                -                             -                                  -                                0.00%

>='54 Total for: Other Expenses -                           -                             -                           -                          -                            -                         -                             -                            0.00%

5* Total Expenditures 2,874,700              3,208,863                 6,083,563               421,056                 866,203                   1,299,140            2,586,399                 3,497,164               42.51% 9,253,731               3,903,400                8,163,200                 4,085,000                 8,433,000                 

Net Surplus (Deficit) 200,000                  (3,208,863)               (3,008,863)             1,274,917             (116,444)                 (1,055,259)           103,214                    -                            -                            -                             -                             -                             

54600 Depreciation Expense 30,000                         -                                  30,000                         -                              -                                  30,000                          0.00% -                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                  

177



Division: 83020 - NVTA-Public Transit 5 Year Forecast

 Adopted Budget 
 Budget 

Adjustments  Adjusted Budget  Q1 Actuals  Q2 Actuals  Q3 Actuals  YTD Total  Budget vs Actual 
 Percent of 

Budget  FY 2018-19 Budget  FY 2019-20 Budget  FY 2020-21  FY 2021-22  FY 2022-23 
Revenues
41400 Sales and Use Tax (TDA) 6,174,692 - 6,174,692 4,009,272 1,769,502 691,414 6,470,188 (295,496) 104.79% 5,960,608 6,594,595 6,696,600 6,799,400 6,903,900 

41410 Sales and Use Tax - Capital - - - - - - - - 0.00%

43790 State-Other Funding 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 - 139,885 146,687 286,572 783,428 26.78% 1,737,413 1,437,600 1,480,700 1,525,100 1,570,900 

43890 Federal-Other Funding 2,081,830 - 2,081,830 - - - - 2,081,830 0.00% 2,085,424 2,056,600 2,097,700 2,139,700 2,182,500 

43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 390,000 - 390,000 152,535 176,973 96,892 426,400 (36,400) 109.33% 426,400 426,400 426,400 426,400 426,400 

45100 Interest 21,400 - 21,400 6,677 8,881 5,687 21,245 155 99.28% 26,400 27,000 27,300 27,600 27,900 

46800 Farebox Revenue 1,372,200 - 1,372,200 310,396 264,924 285,940 861,260 510,940 62.76% 1,187,100 1,271,700 1,297,100 1,323,000 1,349,500 

46810 American Canyon Contribution 33,119 - 33,119 6,652 6,972 6,307 19,931 13,188 60.18% 35,700 37,700 38,800 40,000 41,200 

46820 Yountville Contribution 34,489 - 34,489 8,126 9,210 8,782 26,118 8,371 75.73% 38,600 40,000 41,200 42,400 43,700 

46825 St. Helena Contribution 24,519 - 24,519 6,130 6,130 6,130 18,389 6,130 75.00% 31,655 32,455 33,400 34,400 35,400 

46830 Calistoga & CTBID Contribution 65,093 - 65,093 24,917 15,038 10,099 50,055 15,038 76.90% 65,100 65,100 67,100 69,100 71,200 

47900 Miscellaneous - - - - 1,052 - 1,052 (1,052) 0.00%

48100 Sale of Capital Assets - - - - - 8,542 8,542 (8,542) 0.00%

49900 Intrafund Transfers-In - - - - - - - - 0.00%

4* Total Revenues 11,267,342    - 11,267,342 4,524,704    2,398,568    1,257,938    8,181,211    3,086,131   72.61% 11,594,400   11,989,150    12,206,300   12,427,100   12,652,600   
Expenses
52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 27,100 - 27,100 743 834 - 1,576 25,524 5.82% 19,700 19,700 20,100 20,500 20,900 

52130 Information Technology Service 37,542 - 37,542 7,654 7,654 7,654 22,961 14,581 61.16% 29,200 31,000 31,600 32,200 32,800 

52140 Legal Services 10,500 - 10,500 - - - - 10,500 0.00% 10,700 10,700 10,900 11,100 11,300 

52150 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000 - 10,000 - - - - 10,000 0.00% 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 

52310 Consulting Services 60,000 - 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.00% - - - - - 

52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000 - 15,000 1,200 2,399 4,798 8,397 6,603 55.98% 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

52335 Security Services 36,000 - 36,000 4,109 3,062 1,919 9,090 26,910 25.25% 30,000 30,000 30,600 31,200 31,800 

52490 Other Professional Services 9,093,200 - 9,093,200 2,278,027 2,198,800 2,215,072 6,691,899 2,401,301 73.59% 9,487,500 9,800,300 9,996,300 10,196,200 10,400,100 

52500 Maintenance-Equipment 20,000 62,000 82,000 7,468 49,243 21,795 78,506 3,494 95.74% 105,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 

52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 5,000 - 5,000 - 8,168 7,587 15,755 (10,755) 0.00% 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

52515 Maintenance-Software - 41,000 41,000 - 41,000 41,000 - 0.00% 65,500 65,500 66,000 66,000 66,500 

52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 30,000 - 30,000 - - 6,203 6,203 23,797 20.68% 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 

52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 41,000 - 41,000 3,000 3,000 - 6,000 35,000 14.63% 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 

52705 Insurance - Premiums 12,000 - 12,000 - - 6,919 6,919 5,081 57.66% 15,000 15,000 15,300 15,600 15,900 

52800 Communications/Telephone 7,300 - 7,300 2,505 3,638 4,706 10,849 (3,549) 148.62% 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 

52810 Advertising/Marketing 162,000 - 162,000 2,780 5,487 25,926 34,193 127,807 21.11% 117,500 117,500 117,500 117,500 117,500 

52820 Printing & Binding 45,500 - 45,500 5,877 2,938 4,149 12,964 32,536 28.49% 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 

52825 Bank Charges 4,000 - 4,000 7,889 725 2,344 10,958 (6,958) 273.95% 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 

52830 Publications & Legal Notices 2,000 - 2,000 694 222 - 915 1,085 45.77% 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 

53100 Office Supplies 10,200 - 10,200 - - - - 10,200 0.00% - - - - - 

53110 Freight/Postage 1,000 - 1,000 - - - - 1,000 0.00% 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

53205 Utilities - Electric 8,000 - 8,000 798 1,045 1,360 3,203 4,797 40.04% 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 

53220 Utilities - Water 8,000 - 8,000 2,318 2,228 3,600 8,146 (146) 101.83% 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 

53250 Fuel 1,418,000 - 1,418,000 90,365 328,017 216,102 634,484 783,516 44.74% 1,281,800 1,346,950 1,360,400 1,374,000 1,387,700 

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 11,063,342    103,000   11,166,342    2,415,426    2,658,460    2,530,134    7,604,019     3,562,323   68.10% 11,350,900    11,735,650    11,947,700   12,163,300   12,383,500   

54315 Interest on Debt (I-Bank) - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

57900 Intrafund Expenditures 204,000 - 204,000 56,748 53,826 55,919 166,493 37,507 81.61% 243,500 253,500 258,600 263,800 269,100 

>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 204,000   - 204,000 56,748   53,826   55,919   166,493   37,507    81.61% 243,500    253,500   258,600   263,800   269,100   

5* Total Expenditures 11,267,342    103,000   11,370,342    2,472,174    2,712,286    2,586,053    7,770,512    3,599,830   68.34% 11,594,400   11,989,150   12,206,300   12,427,100   12,652,600   

Net Surplus (Deficit) - (103,000) (103,000)   2,052,530    (313,718)   (1,328,115)    410,698   (513,698)   -     -     -    -    -    

54600 Depreciation Expense 2,207,000 543,000 2,750,000 - - - - 2,750,000.00               0.00% 2,801,900 2,857,900 2,915,100 2,973,400 3,032,900 

Capital Revenues
41410 Sales and Use Tax - Captial - 4,803,919.00 4,803,919 - - - - 4,803,919 0.00% 2,695,657 - 350,000 350,000 350,000 

43890 Federal-Other Funding - 300,000 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.00% 1,963,789 - 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

43950 Other-Governmental Agencies - - - - - - - - #DIV/0! 923,742 - 

4* Total Revenues - 5,103,919 5,103,919   -   -     -  -  5,103,919   0.00% 5,583,188   - 1,350,000 1,350,000   1,350,000   
Capital Expenses
55100 Land - - - - - - - - 0.00% - - - - - 

55200 Construction in Progress - 425,000.00 425,000 - - - - 425,000 0.00% 1,075,000 - 100,000 100,000 100,000 

55400 Equipment - 4,678,919 4,678,919 - - - - 4,678,919 0.00% 4,508,188 - 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 

>='54 Total for: Other Expenses - 5,103,919 5,103,919   -   -    -  -  5,103,919   0.00% 5,583,188   - 1,350,000 1,350,000   1,350,000   

5* Total Expenditures - 5,103,919 5,103,919   -   -     -  -  5,103,919   0.00% 5,583,188   - 1,350,000 1,350,000   1,350,000   

Net Surplus (Deficit) -  -   -    -   -   -  -  -     -     -    -    -    

178



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:  Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Matthew Wilcox, Program Manager - Public Transit 
(707) 259-8635 / Email: mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year (FY) 2017-18 Third Quarter Vine Transit Operational 
Summary Report 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive a report 
summarizing Vine Transit performance statistics and an overview of NVTA’s current 
transit projects for the third quarter of FY 2017-18. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report summarizes the Vine’s operational performance during the third quarter of FY 
2017-18 and provides a year to date summary of the Ride the Vine app.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? None 

179

mailto:mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.5 

Page 2 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Vine continues to experience a downward trend in ridership.  Fixed route ridership 
for the third quarter of FY 2017-18 is down 5.4% (13,431 riders) as compared to the third 
quarter of FY 2016-17.  This is the same decrease experienced in the second quarter. 
The community shuttles ridership has also dropped.  Down 2.3% (431 riders) which is an 
improvement over last quarter which experienced an  8% decrease.  ADA paratransit 
ridership also decrease by 2.36% (153) riders.  The following sections provide a route by 
route and service by service breakdown of ridership.  
 
Routes 1 – 8 
 
Figure 1: Total Rides for Routes 1-8 

 
  

FY 16/17 FY 17/18 % Differnce Total Rides

Route 1 5,091 3,314 -34.9% -1,777

Route 2 15,093 13,288 -12.0% -1,805

Route 3 16,907 15,193 -10.1% -1,714

Route 4 14,346 12,415 -13.5% -1,931

Route 5 14,010 13,904 -0.8% -106

Route 6 9,073 10,467 15.4% 1,394

Route 7 6,305 4,878 -22.6% -1,427

Route 8 26,801 23,166 -13.6% -3,635

Total 107,626 96,625 -10.2% -11,001

180



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.5 

Page 3 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Figure 2: Difference in Rides by Month for Second Quarter for Routes 1-8 

 
 
The month by month data (Figure 2) provides more insight into the recent decline in 
ridership.  Decreases in ridership were not bad in January and February at 5% and 4% 
respectively.  However, March experienced a steep decline dropping by 19%.  There is 
no conclusive evidence as to why this occurred.  At the time of this report NVTA staff 
reviewed April’s data and found that ridership only decrease 2% in that month which 
would indicate the large drop in March was an anomaly.  
 
Regional Routes 10, 11, 21, and 29 
 
Figure 3: Total Rides for Routes 10, 11, 21, 25, and 29 

 
 
Figure 4: Difference in Rides by Month for Second Quarter for Routes 10, 11, 21, 
and 29 

  

January February March January February March

Route 1 -33% -32% -39% -532 -534 -711

Route 2 -1% -6% -25% -28 -260 -1,517

Route 3 -3% -8% -17% -144 -415 -1,155

Route 4 -12% -7% -20% -531 -304 -1,096

Route 5 4% 10% -13% 187 404 -697

Route 6 23% 27% 0% 655 736 3

Route 7 -15% -13% -37% -309 -250 -868

Route 8 -10% -9% -20% -867 -731 -2,037

Total -5% -4% -19% -1,569 -1,354 -8,078

Percent Change Numerical Change

FY 16/17 FY 17/18 % Differnce Total Rides

Route 10 56,134 54,388 -3.1% -1,746

Route 11 63,466 62,893 -0.9% -573

Route 21 5,261 5,492 4.4% 231

Route 29 16,995 16,653 -2.0% -342

Total 141,856 139,426 -1.7% -2,430

January February March January February March

Route 10 -1% 2% -9% -258 381 -1,869

Route 11 2% 5% -8% 345 1,077 -1,995

Route 21 2% 12% 1% 28 188 15

Route 29 10% 3% -15% 511 176 -1,029

Total 1% 4% -9% 626 1,822 -4,878

Percent Change Numerical Change

181



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.5 

Page 4 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Once again regional service has seen less of a decrease in ridership as compared to local 
service.  January and February experienced an increase overall; however, March saw a 
large decrease just the same as the local service.  April’s figure show only a 1.2% 
decrease for the month which means ridership could be back on track at remaining level 
or increasing.  
 
Community Shuttles 
 
Figure 5: Total Rides for Community Shuttles 

 
 
Figure 6: Difference in Rides by Month for Second Quarter for Community Shuttles 

 
 
The community shuttles saw a down, up, down pattern in ridership during the three 
months of the quarter.  Both Calistoga and St. Helena were able to sustain growth 
throughout the quarter.  Yountville was consistently down for all three months while 
American Canyon experienced more variability.  The Yountville Trolley has seen a decline 
year over year since September of 2017.  Weekdays have been the consistently down 
since then, with Saturdays and Sundays being more variable showing increases one 
month and decreases the next.  At this time NVTA staff is unsure of what is causing the 
decline but is investigating further.  
 
ADA Paratransit (VineGo) 
 
Figure 7: Total Rides for ADA Paratransit (VineGo) 

 
  

FY 16/17 FY 17/18 % Differnce Total Rides

Calistoga Shuttle 4,177 4,527 8.4% 350

St. Helena Shuttle 4,154 4,606 10.9% 452

Yountville Trolley 4,916 3,849 -21.7% -1,067

American Canyon Transit 5,478 5,312 -3.0% -166

Total 18,725 18,294 -2.3% -431

January February March January February March

Calistoga Shuttle 17% 1% 8% 212 15 123

St. Helena Shuttle 3% 28% 4% 46 342 64

Yountville Trolley -27% -26% -13% -414 -411 -242

American Canyon Transit -1% 46% -31% -18 613 -761

Total -3% 10% -11% -174 559 -816

Percent Change Numerical Change

FY 16/17 FY 17/18 % Differnce Total Rides

VineGo 5,774 5,621 -2.6% -153

182



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.5 

Page 5 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Figure 8: Difference in Rides by Month for Second Quarter for ADA Paratransit 
(VineGo) 

 
 
VineGo experienced an overall decrease in ridership during the third quarter despite 
having an increase in January.  The decrease in ridership aligns with the decrease in 
applicants for the program which saw 33% less applicants than last fiscal year.   
 
Ride the Vine App 
 
Figure 9: Ride the Vine App Operational Summary Report 

 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
 
NVTA staff reviews the following key performance indicators (KPIs) on a quarterly basis: 
total ridership, passengers per revenue mile, subsidy per passenger, farebox recovery, 
and on-time performance.  These KPIs were most recently adopted by the Board in the 
FY 2016-2026 Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP).  Performance is measured on a 
systemwide level however often times NVTA staff will apply the KPIs on a route by route 
basis as was done in the Technical Analysis portion of the Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis (COA).  
 
  

January February March January February March

VineGo 6% -8% -6% 111 -143 -121

Percent Change Numerical Change

Summary Report Third Quarter FY 17/18 Calistoga St. Helena Yountville American Canyon

Requested Trips 3,328 1,435 2,692 1,997

Requested Trips Completed 2,738 1,289 2,396 1,824

Requested Trips Canceled 590 146 296 173

Pickups Performed 2,639 1,204 1,665 1,646

Drop-Offs Performed 2,738 1,289 2,396 1,842

# of Flagdowns 99 86 739 179

# of Passengers for Requested Trips 4,025 1,521 3,517 2,475

# of Passengers for Completed Trips 3,149 1,356 3,111 2,257

# of Wheelchairs for Completed Trips 3 27 12 29

# of Bicycles for Completed Trips 8 2 3 5

# of Passengers for Canceled Trips 876 165 406 218

Average Response Time (Request Time to Pick Up) 0:16:19 0:11:39 0:10:37 0:20:54

Average Ride Time (Pick Up to Drop Off) 0:08:18 0:06:27 0:08:23 0:10:08

# of Accounts 2,225 868 1,295 903

# of Active Accounts 1,011 362 613 411

183



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, June 20, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.5 

Page 6 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Figure 10: Key Performance Indicator Standards and Actuals 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

None 

Standard Actual Met

Fixed Route: Increase over previous Fiscal Year -5.4%

Shuttles: Growth should no lead to excessive waits --- 

Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials --- 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of the system average* 11 of 13 routes

Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 4.75 

Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 2.1 

Fixed Route: At or less than $6.50 $6.01 

Shuttles: At or less than $15.00 $13.74 

Paratransit: At or less than $40.00 $40.88

Fixed Route: Meet or exceed 15% 14.7%

Shuttles: Meet or exceed 10% 13.4% 

Paratransit: Meet or exceed 10% 6.3%

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time 76.2%

Shuttles: 90% of service arrives within 30 minutes 91.1% 

Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% 97.6% 

*Measured on a route by route basis

Total Ridership

Passenger per Revenue Hour

Subsidy per Passenger

Farebox Recovery Ratio

On-time Performance

184



June 20, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Updates and State Bill Matrix 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the monthly Federal 
and State Legislative updates, and the State Bill Matrix. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Board will receive the Federal Transportation Legislative update (Attachment 1) 
provided by Van Scoyoc Associates, the State Legislative update (Attachment 2), and the 
State Bill Matrix (Attachment 3). 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachments:  (1) June 1, 2018 Federal Legislative Update (Van Scoyoc 
 Associates) 

(2) June 4, 2018 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors)
(3) June 4, 2018 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors)

185

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


1 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

June 20, 2018 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Kate Miller, NVTA 
FROM: Steve Palmer, Channon Hanna, and David Haines 
DATE:  June 1, 2018  
SUBJECT: Federal Legislative Update  
 
The following is a summary of federal legislative activities related to transportation, 
housing, and environmental issues over the last month.   
 
Legislative Action 
 
FTA and HUD Nominations.  On May 15, the Senate Banking, Housing, and Urban 
Affairs Committee held a markup on several nominations, including the Honorable 
Thelma Drake, to Administrator of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and Seth 
Appleton, to be Assistant Secretary of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for Policy 
Development and Research. 
 
FY 2019 THUD Appropriations.  On May 16, the Transportation, Housing and Urban 
Development (THUD) Appropriations Subcommittee held a markup of the FY 2019 THUD 
appropriations bill.  On May 23, the full Appropriations Committee held a markup of the 
FY 2019 THUD appropriations bill.  The House Appropriations Committee approved its 
version of the FY 2019 THUD bill on May 23. 
 
Transportation Security.  On May 16, the House Homeland Security Committee held a 
markup for the following transportation security bills: 

• H.R. 5730, the Transportation Security Technology Innovation Reform Act of 2018; 
and 

• H.R. 5766, the Securing Public Areas of Transportation Facilities Act of 2018. 
 
Homeless Veterans’ Reintegration Programs Reauthorization.  On May 21, the 
House passed H.R. 4451, the Homeless Veterans’ Reintegration Programs 
Reauthorization Act of 2018.  The bill passed 377-1.  The legislation extends through FY 
2022 the Department of Labor’s homeless veterans reintegration programs and the 
homeless women veterans and homeless veterans with children reintegration grant 
program.  Upon passage in the House, the bill was referred the Senate Committee on 
Veterans’ Affairs for further consideration. 
 

186



2 
 

Transportation Bills and Nominations.  On May 22, the Senate Commerce, Science, 
and Transportation Committee held a markup to consider the following bills and 
nominations: 

• S. 2848, Fighting Opioid Abuse in Transportation Act; 

• S. 2844, Surface Transportation Board Information Security Improvement Act; 

• S. 1092, Interstate Transport Act of 2017; 

• Nomination of Joseph Grueters, to be a Director on the Amtrak Board of Directors; 

• Nomination of Heidi King, to be Administrator of the National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration; and 

• Nomination of Jennifer Homendy, to be a Member of the National Transportation 
Safety Board. 

 
Tribal HUD-VASH Act of 2017.  On May 23, the Senate passed by voice vote S. 1333, 
the Tribal HUD-VASH Act of 2017.  The bill directs HUD to use at least 5% of the amounts 
made available for rental assistance under the low-income housing assistance program 
to carry out a rental assistance and support housing program, in conjunction with the VA, 
for the benefit of Indian veterans who are homeless or at risk of homelessness and 
residing in or near an Indian area.  Upon passage in the Senate, the bill was referred to 
the House Financial Services Committee for further consideration. 
 
HUD Nomination.  On May 23, the Senate confirmed Brian Montgomery to be an 
Assistant Secretary at Department of Housing and Urban Development by a final vote of 
74-23. 
 
Congressional Hearings 
 
DHS FY 2019 Budget Request.  On May 8, The Senate Appropriations Committee’s 
Subcommittee on Homeland Security held a hearing to review the Department of 
Homeland Security’s (DHS’s) FY 2019 budget request.  DHS Secretary Kirstjen Nielsen 
was the lone witness at the hearing. 
 
Policy Implications of Electric and Conventional Vehicles.  On May 8, the House 
Energy and Commerce Committee’s Subcommittee on the Environment held a hearing 
on the policy implications of electric and conventional vehicles.  Witnesses included 
representatives from the Alliance of Automobile Manufacturers, Electric Drive 
Transportation Association, Renewable Fuels Association, American Petroleum Institute, 
Automobile Club of Southern California, Union of Concerned Scientists, National 
Association of Convenience Stores and Society of Gasoline Marketers of America, and 
Edison Electric Institute. 
 
Integration of Drones in the Airspace.  On May 8, the Senate Committee on 
Commerce, Science, and Transportation’s Subcommittee on Aviation Operations, Safety, 
and Security held a hearing to review efforts to integrate unmanned aircraft systems into 
the national airspace system without compromising safety.  Witness included 
representatives from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the Association for 

187



3 
 

Unmanned Vehicle Systems International, the Helicopter Associations International, and 
Burlington Northern/Santa Fe Railway Company. 
 
EPA FY 2019 Budget Request.  On May 16, the Senate Appropriations Committee’s 
Subcommittee on Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies held a hearing to review 
the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) FY 2019 budget request.  Witness 
included EPA Administrator Scott Pruitt and EPA Chief Financial Officer Holly Greaves. 
 
Transportation Nominations.  On May 16, the Senate Committee on Commerce, 
Science, and Transportation held a hearing to consider the following nominations: 

• Joseph Gruters, to be Director of the Amtrak Board of Directors; 

• Heidi King, to be Administrator of the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA); and 

• Jennifer Homendy, to be a Member of the National Transportation Safety (NTSB). 
 
Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery Program.  On May 17, the 
House Financial Services Committee’s Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations 
held a hearing to review testimony from stakeholders on challenges that exist in the 
Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program’s (DCBG-DR) design.  
Witnesses included representatives from the City of Houston (Texas), Harris County 
(Texas), Texas General Land Office, Urban Institute, and Enterprise Community Partners. 
 
Overview of Homelessness in America.  On May 17, the House Financial Services 
Committee’s Subcommittee on Housing and Insurance held a hearing to examine the 
state of homelessness in America, including current efforts to combat homelessness as 
well as any innovative solutions that Congress should consider eradicating 
homelessness.  Witnesses included representatives from Los Angeles Homeless 
Services Authority, Star House, The Salvation Army, and National Alliance to End 
Homelessness. 
 
Impact of Autonomous Vehicles on Insurance.  On May 23, the House Financial 
Services Committee’s Subcommittee on Housing and Insurance held a hearing on the 
development of the autonomous vehicle and its effect on insurance.  Witnesses discussed 
how insurance companies assess the evolving technologies of auto manufacturers and 
technology companies and how the role, price and provision of insurance might change 
as autonomous vehicles become more prevalent.  Witnesses included representatives 
from Marsh & McLennan, State Farm, and American Family Mutual Insurance Company. 
 
Executive Branch 
 
Contracts for Federal-aid Highway Construction.  On May 2, the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) announced that the Indefinite Delivery and Indefinite Quantity 
(ID/IQ) method of contracting for low-cost construction contracts in the Federal-aid 
highway program will be allowed, without prior FHWA approval, under certain 
circumstances. 
 

188



4 
 

FY 2018 FTA Apportionment Tables.  On May 8, FTA posted online apportionment 
information covering $13.4 billion in FY 2018 funding to support public transportation 
nationwide.  The funding, which represents an increase of eight percent over 2017 levels, 
includes formula and competitive funding for FTA grant recipients. 
 
National Terrorism Advisory System Bulletin.  On May 9, DHS reissued the National 
Terrorism Advisory System (NTAS) Bulletin pertaining to the terror threat in the United 
States.  DHS Secretary Nielsen determined it is necessary to extend the NTAS Bulletin 
at this time. 
 
Highway Design Standards.  On May 11, FHWA posted a request for comments on a 
proposed revision to design standards and standard specifications that applies to new 
construction, reconstruction, and resurfacing projects on the National Highway System.  
The proposed rule would incorporate by reference the latest versions of design standards 
and standard specifications previously adopted and would remove outdated standards.  
Use of the updated standards will be required for all NHS projects authorized to proceed 
with design activities on or after the effective date of the final rule.  Comments are due on 
June 11, 2018. 
 
HUD Withdrawal of Local Government Assessment Tool.  On May 23, HUD 
announced the withdrawal of the Local Government Assessment Tool developed by HUD 
for use by local governments that receive Community Development Block Grants, HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program, Emergency Solutions Grants, or Housing 
Opportunities for Persons With AIDS formula funding from HUD when conducting and 
submitting their own Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) under the Affirmatively Furthering 
Fair Housing (AFFH) regulations.  Following the withdrawal of the Local Government 
Assessment Tool, HUD will review the Assessment Tool and its function under the AFFH 
regulations with the goal to make it less burdensome and more helpful in creating 
impactful fair housing goals.  Comments on improvement to the AFH Tool for Local 
Governments are due by July 23, 2018. 
 
NoFo Pilot Program for Transit-Oriented Development Planning.  On May 24, FTA 
announced the availability of $25.79 million of funding under the Pilot Program for Transit-
Oriented Development Planning.  Funds will be awarded competitively to support 
comprehensive planning associated with new fixed guideway and core capacity 
improvement projects.  Proposals must be received by July 23, 2018. 
 

### 

189



1 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

June 20, 2018 

 
 
June 4, 2018 
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 
 
RE: Legislative Update           

SB 1 Repeal:  The repeal of SB 1 by a proposed Constitutional amendment initiative is 
moving toward the ballot.  The deadline to submit at least 585,407 signatures was May 
21st.  The proponents have submitted their signatures and the raw count by counties totals 
almost 940,000 signatures.   

At this point each county must conduct a random sampling of signatures to verify that 
sufficient signatures are valid.  The deadline for the random sampling is June 25th.  If the 
random sampling verification results in less than 95% valid rate then the initiative fails to 
qualify.  If the sampling represents between 95%-110% of the required number of 
signatures, then the Secretary of State will require counties to verify every signature, 
known as a “full check.”  If the number of signatures represents more than 110% of the 
required signatures then the initiative qualifies without the full check requirement. 

According to the Secretary of State’s website an initiative that meets the signature 
requirements becomes eligible for the next ballot 131 days prior to next general election.  
For the SB 1 repeal initiative that 131 day deadline is June 28th in order to be placed on 
the November 2018 ballot.  If a full check is required, the time required to verify each 
signature may push the SB 1 repeal initiative to the November 2020 ballot.  While the 
Secretary of State’s office regularly updates the progress on the random sampling, it is 
currently too early to tell if a full check will be required.   

To keep track of the verification process, check out: 

http://www.sos.ca.gov/elections/ballot-measures/initiative-and-referendum-
status/initiatives-and-referenda-pending-signature-verification/ 

 
The Gig is Up:  A recent California Supreme Court decision will have a significant impact 
on the “gig economy.”  In the Dynamex Operations West v. Superior Court, the State 
Supreme Court threw out the 30-year old test used to determine if a worker is an 
employee or an independent contractor.   

The former Broello test used multiple factors to determine whether a worker qualifies as 
an independent contractor.  The State Supreme Court replaced the Borello test with a 
more simplified ABC Test.  While the ABC Test simpler, its application is much broader 

190

http://www.sos.ca.gov/elections/ballot-measures/initiative-and-referendum-status/initiatives-and-referenda-pending-signature-verification/
http://www.sos.ca.gov/elections/ballot-measures/initiative-and-referendum-status/initiatives-and-referenda-pending-signature-verification/


2 
 

and will result in many more workers being unable to be classified as an independent 
contractor.  The potential impact to the gig economy will likely result in legislative action.  
Although no bills have been introduced yet, an effort will likely spring forward during the 
final month of session. 
 
Budget: After the release of the May Revision on May 11th, budget subcommittees met 
multiple times per week to examine changes to the governor’s proposals and to prioritize 
their own budgets. On May 22nd, the Senate Budget Committee adopted all of the Senate 
Subcommittee reports, and on May 26th the Assembly Budget Committee completed its 
work.  The Budget Conference Committee convened last week to begin resolving 
differences between the two houses. Assembly member Phil Ting – San Francisco – will 
chair the committee this year. Members of the committee are:  

Senator Holly Mitchell, co-chair – D – Los Angeles  
Senator John Moorlach – R – Costa Mesa  
Senator Jim Nielsen – R – Red Bluff  
Senator Richard Roth – D – Riverside  
Senator Nancy Skinner – D – Berkeley  
Assembly member Joaquin Arambula – D – Fresno  
Assembly member Richard Bloom – D – Santa Monica  
Assembly member Rocky Chavez – R – Oceanside  
Assembly member Jay Obernolte – R – Big Bear Lake  

 
As in prior years, both the Senate and Assembly Budgets use the higher revenue 
estimates provided by the Legislative Analyst’s Office, which provides an additional $2.6 
billion to spend.  While the Governor usually wins the spending level argument, the 
Budget Conference Committee, and Senate and Assembly leadership will work out the 
details with the Governor prior to sending the negotiated budget to him by midnight on 
June 15th. 
 
Legislative Analyst’s Office Takes on the May Revision: In their first run through the 
Governor’s May Revise, the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) examined revenues, the 
economy, and the Administration’s housing proposals. The LAO is estimating generally 
higher revenues as compared to the May Revise which has not been unusual under this 
administration.  

The LAO is anticipating continued economic expansion through 2022 and a moderate 
stock market decline in 2019 with a gradual rebound. They are estimating that revenues 
will run $2.6 billion above the Administration’s projections in 2016-17 through 2018-19. In 
terms of the personal income tax, the tightening labor market is expected to increase 
wages, and capital gains will increase in correlation to the stock market, dropping in 2019. 
Growth in corporate profits and changes to federal law will increase revenues from the 
corporation tax. 

The LAO assumes only one economic scenario in their projections - continued moderate 
economic growth.  Both the LAO and Department of Finance assume moderate growth 
over the next year, however, the LAO assumes higher wage and salary growth in 2018 
and 2019. California’s low unemployment rate makes it likely that wages and prices will 

191



3 
 

rise.  Higher prices could lead to the Federal Reserve increasing interest rates, slowing 
growth.   

The LAO notes that the governor’s proposal to fully fund the rainy day fund at $13.8 million 
and increase discretionary reserves to $3.2 billion would help the State through a mild 
recession without drastic spending reductions. They believe that K-12 school and 
community college spending will likely be lower than budgeted as average daily 
attendance is likely to decline or stay flat. Medi-Cal estimates seem higher than necessary 
due to the Administration’s scoring of deferred claims at $682.3 million in additional costs. 
New federal requirements will force the State to repay disputed claims while the 
department works on them, however, much of the costs will be repaid. 

 

State Transit Assistance (STA):  With fuel prices expected to rise, the forecast for STA 
revenue was boosted in the May Revise.  Funds allocated to transit operators through the 
STA formula are expected to increase by $109 million in 2018-19, for a total allocation of 
$768 million.  In addition, the forecast for diesel sales tax revenue allocated to commuter 
and intercity rail operators increased from $35.8 million to $42.9 million.  The following 
chart summarizes the May Revise adjustments for various transit related programs. 

 

 

Cap & Trade:  The May Revise did not make any significant changes the Governor’s Cap 
& Trade expenditure plan, other than the funding for the Forrest Carbon Plan.  While the 
negotiations continue between the legislature and administration on Cap & Trade 
spending priorities, the Assembly added $80 million to the Truck and Bus program.  The 
Assembly expenditure plan would use $30 million for demonstration programs, and $50 

192



4 
 

million for pilot projects.  The following chart compares the expenditure plans from the 
Governor, Senate and Assembly. 

 

 

Subcommittee Actions:  The following is summary of transportation related items 
adopted by the Senate and Assembly Budget Subcommittees. 

• SB 1 Local Expenditures:  Senate budget includes budget trailer bill language 
that would allow cities or counties to borrow from internal funds to advance 
projects and reimburse themselves with future SB 1 allocations.  The Assembly 
adopted placeholder language for the same purpose 

193



5 
 

• Indirect Cost Rate:  Senate and Assembly adopted a compromise to the Self-
Help Counties Coalition’s proposal exempt Self-Help counties from Caltrans’ 
indirect cost charges.  The compromise would cap at 10% the rate Caltrans can 
charge Self-Help counties for indirect costs.  This cap would sunset in three 
years. 

Caltrans Staffing:  The May Revise updates the funding needs for Capital Outlay 
Support (COS) needs at Caltrans by augmenting the COS budget by $203 million in order 
to hire an additional 872 engineers.  Caltrans claims it will be hiring 100 engineers a 
month in the coming year in order to meet the demands of SB 1 projects.  However, the 
Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) is not convinced. 

LAO continues to express concerns that the COS program is overstaffed because the 
LAO believes that the budget development methodology contains incentives to request 
more staff than needed.  The LAO is also concerned that this augmentation includes 
overtime funding for existing positions, not new positions.  In addition, the LAO also raises 
the issue of increasing the amount of work that can be contracted out. 

Based on the concerns expressed by the LAO, the Senate and Assembly Budget 
Subcommittees took no action on this augmentation request.  This will provide additional 
time to review the details and reach an agreement as part of the Budget Conference 
Committee process. 

194



1 

 
June 4, 2018 

 

Existing Positions 

Bills Subject Status 
Client - 
Position 

AB 1 
(Frazier D)  
Transportation 
funding. 

AB 1 was Assemblyman Frazier’s 
renewed effort to address the funding 
shortfall facing our transportation 
infrastructure.  With the passage of SB1, 
this bill be will likely be used for another 
issue if it is moved forward.   
       

ASSEMBLY  TRANS 
 
DEAD 

SUPPORT 

AB 399 
(Grayson D)  
Autonomous 
vehicles: 
Contra Costa 
Transportation 
Authority: pilot 
project. 

Last year, legislation was enacted to 
authorize the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority to conduct a 
pilot project testing the use of 
autonomous vehicles on streets that are 
open to the public, but located within a 
private business park. 
       

AB 399 extends the sunset date on the 
authority for the pilot project to operate 
according to existing law, prior to the 
requirement to then comply with 
regulations being developed by the DMV.  
Currently, this pilot program must comply 
with the DMV regulations within 180 days 
of the operative date of the regulations.  
AB 399 extends this “phase-in” period to 
12 months. 
      
 

ASSEMBLY   2 
YEAR 
 
DEAD 

SUPPORT 

AB 1454 
(Bloom D)  
Transportation 
projects: lease 
agreements. 

AB 1454 was amended to remove the 
language that deletes the sunset date on 
the authority for Caltrans and regional 
transportation agencies to enter into 
public private partnerships.  As amended, 
the bill merely states that it is the intent of 
the Legislature to reestablish the public-
private partnership process.   
     
AB 1454 has also not been set for 
hearing, and will not be moving forward.   

ASSEMBLY RULES 
COMMITTEE –  
 
DEAD 

SUPPORT 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

June 20, 2018 

195

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20399');
https://a14.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201454');
https://a50.asmdc.org/


2 

AB 1759 
(McCarty D)  
Public trust 
lands: City of 
Sacramento. 

AB 1759 has been gutted and amended 
to deal with a state tides land issue in the 
City of Sacramento.   
 
As introduced the bill would withhold a 
city’s or county’s share of local street and 
road maintenance funds if that city or 
county fails to meet its minimum housing 
production goals as certified by the 
Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 
 

SENATE RULES WATCH 

AB 1866 
(Fong R)  
Transportation 
funding. 

This new measure makes numerous 
changes to transportation funding 
programs.  These changes largely reflect 
the transportation funding proposal 
pushed by the Assembly Republican 
Caucus last year.   
 

ASSEMBLY   TRANS WATCH 

AB 1901 
(Obernolte R)  
California 
Environmental 
Quality Act: 
exemption: 
roadway 
projects. 

This bill would extend to January 1, 2023, 
an existing CEQA exemption for counties 
or cities with a population of less than 
100,000.  The existing program provides 
a limited exemption from CEQA for 
maintenance projects within the existing 
right-of-way if specified conditions are 
met. 
 

SENATE EQ SUPPORT 

AB 2851 
(Grayson D)  
Regional 
transportation 
plans: traffic 
signal 
optimization 
plans. 

The Assembly Appropriations Committee 
amended AB 2851 to delete the 
appropriation of Cap & Trade funds, and 
would make it permissive for cities within 
the Bay Area to develop a traffic signal 
optimization plan. 
 
Specifically, the bill would authorize each 
city within the jurisdiction of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) to develop and implement a traffic 
signal optimization plan.  In addition, the 
amendments direct Caltrans to ensure its 
traffic signals within these cities are 
adjusted and maintained in accordance 
with the plan. 
 
 

SENATE RULES SUPPORT & 
SEEK 
AMENDMENTS 

196

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201759');
https://a07.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201866');
https://ad34.asmrc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201901');
https://ad33.asmrc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202851');
https://a14.asmdc.org/


3 

AB 3124 
(Bloom D)  
Vehicles: 
length 
limitations: 
buses: bicycle 
transportation 
devices. 

AB 3124 makes a small change with a 
big impact.  This measure amends 
existing law to authorize an operator to 
equip a 60-foot articulated transit bus or 
trolley with a front-mounted bicycle rack 
that extends up to 40 inches from the 
front body of the bus when fully deployed 
and limits the handlebars of a bicycle that 
is being transported on such a rack from 
extending more than 46 inches from the 
front of the bus. 
 

Signed Into law 
Chapter 22, Statutes 
of 2018 

SUPPORT 

AB 3201 
(Daly D)  
California 
Clean Truck, 
Bus, and Off-
Road Vehicle 
and Equipment 
Technology 
Program. 

The California Transit Association (CTA) 
is sponsoring AB 3201 in an effort to 
secure a funding stream to transition to 
zero emission transit buses.   
 
AB 3201 as currently drafted would 
amend the California Clean Truck, Bus, 
and Off-Road Vehicle and Equipment 
Technology Program (Program) to 
require CARB to establish a funding 
program for large-scale deployments that 
meet current and future regulatory 
obligations.  The bill would also clarify 
that infrastructure needs are also an 
eligible expense.  While the content of 
AB 3201 will evolve, the intent of this bill 
is to create a dedicated funding stream to 
assist transit operators in transitioning to 
zero emission fleets. 
 

ASSEMBLY APPR 
Held on Suspense -- 
DEAD 

SUPPORT 

ACA 4 
(Aguiar-
Curry D)  
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter approval. 
 
 
 
 
ACA 4 
(Aguiar-

ACA 4 would generally lower the voter 
threshold to 55% for imposing the 
following taxes or issuing debt:    
 

• Creates an additional exception to 
the 1% limit that would authorize a 
city or county, to levy an ad 
valorem tax to service bonded 
indebtedness incurred to fund the 
construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, or replacement of 
public infrastructure or affordable 
housing. 
 

• Authorizes a local government to 
impose, extend, or increase a 

ASSEMBLY L. GOV SUPPORT 

197

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%203124');
https://a50.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%203201');
https://a69.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%204');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%204');
https://a04.asmdc.org/


4 

Curry D) 
(Cont.) 

special tax for the purposes of 
funding the construction, 
rehabilitation or replacement of 
public infrastructure or affordable 
housing. 

Regional 
Measure 
3/Senate Bill 
595 (Beall) 

SB 595 authored by Senator Jim Beall 
was passed by the Legislature and 
signed into law by Governor brown in the 
fall of 2017.  The bill authorizes the Bay 
Area Toll Authority to place Regional 
Measure 3 on the ballot.  At its February 
27th meeting, the County Board of 
Supervisors approved adding Regional 
Measure 3 to the June 5, 2018 ballot.  If 
approved Regional Measure 3 will allow 
the Bay Area Toll Authority to increase 
tolls on the seven (7) state owned 
bridges, as follows:  $1 January 1, 2019, 
$1 January 1, 2022, and $1 January 1, 
2025.  Revenues raised will fund 
transportation projects on the 
expenditure plan to relieve congestion in 
the bridge corridors. 

June 5, 2018 
Statewide Primary 
Election 

SUPPORT 

SB 760 
(Wiener D)  
Bikeways: 
design guides. 

As approved by the Senate, SB 760 was 
scaled back.  As currently drafted, SB 
760 would simply allow Caltrans and 
local entities responsible for the 
development or operation of bikeways or 
roadways where bicycles are permitted, 
to consider additional street design 
guides such as the National Association 
of City Transportation Officials’ (NACTO) 
Urban Street Design Guide. 

Prior versions of this bill would have 
placed new restrictions on Caltrans when 
programming funds in the State Highway 
Operation and Protection Program 
(SHOPP). 

ASSEMBLY TRANS 
– June 11th

WATCH 

SB 827 
(Wiener D)  
Planning and 
zoning: transit-

SB 827 would authorize a “transit-rich 
housing project” to be eligible for a 
“transit-rich housing bonus.”  A transit-
rich housing project is a housing project 
that is located within ½ mile of a “major 

SENATE   T. & H. – 
FAILED PASSAGE -- 
DEAD 

WATCH 

198

https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20760');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20827');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/


5 

rich housing 
bonus 

transit stop” or ¼ mile from a “high-
quality transit corridor.”  If the housing 
project meets these requirements then it 
would be exempt from local controls on 
residential density or floor area ratio, 
parking restrictions, and some height 
restrictions. 

SB 1434 
(Leyva D)  
Transportation 
electrification: 
electricity rate 
design. 

The CTA is also sponsoring SB 1434 
(Leyva).  This bill aims to address the 
volatility with electricity rates when 
charging battery electric buses.  
Specifically, SB 1434 directs the 
California Public Utilities Commission to 
initiate a new rate making proceeding for 
the cost of electricity that is used as a 
fuel.  The fluctuation of electricity rates is 
a key obstacle in scaling up the use 
battery electric buses.   
 

ASSEMBLY DESK SUPPORT 

SCA 2 
(Newman D)  
Motor vehicle 
fees and taxes: 
restriction on 
expenditures. 

With the passage of ACA 5, SCA 2 was 
placed on the Inactive File.  SCA 2 and 
ACA 5 are identical and would 
prospectively prohibit the use of truck 
weight fees to pay for transportation 
bonds approved after January 1, 2017.  
The bill would also expand the 
protections for Public Transportation 
Account revenues to also include the 
1.75% increase to the diesel fuel sales 
tax that was enacted as part of the gas 
tax swap.  The ban on borrowing fees 
and taxes would also apply to any vehicle 
fees or taxes dedicated to transportation 
accounts. 
  

SENATE INACTIVE 
FILE 

SUPPORT 

SCA 6 
(Wiener D)  
Local 
transportation 
measures: 
special taxes: 
voter approval. 

SCA 6 would allow a local government to 
impose any special tax with a 55% 
approval of the voters if the special tax 
dedicates 100% of the revenues, not 
including collection and administrative 
expenses, to transportation programs 
and projects. 

SENATE APPR – 
SUSPENSE FILE 

SUPPORT 

199

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%201434');
http://sd20.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SCA%202');
http://sd29.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SCA%206');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/

	0000_Agenda
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 11-2017
	0001_1_Draft Minutes
	0002_1_Staff Report
	9.2_Lifeline Cycle 5 Projects_kes-KM changes
	9.2_Lifeline Cycle 5 Projects Attch 1 Resolution 18-14_kes-KM no changes dg
	RESOLUTION No. 18-14

	9.2_Lifeline Cycle 5 Projects Attch 2 Application_kes-KM no changes

	0003_1_Staff Report
	9.3_ADA Self-Evaluation Plan_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE

	9.3_ADA Self-Evaluation Attch 1 ADA Self Evaluation & Transition Plan Outline 4-25-18-KM no changes
	1.1 Introduction
	1.2 General Nondiscrimination Provisions
	5.3 Program and Facility Accessibility
	1.4 Summary of Facility Checklist Findings
	1.5 Employment Review
	2
	2.1 Modifying Policies and Practices
	2.1.1 General Policies and Practices
	2.1.2 Communication Access Assessment

	2.2 Future Policies and Practices
	2.3 Creating Program and Facility Access
	Appendix A:  ADA Self Evaluation Questionnaires
	Appendix B:  Napa Valley Transportation Authority ADA Disability Access or Title 24 Accessibility Complaint Form
	Appendix C:  Public Meeting Minutes
	Appendix D:  ADA Coordinator Public Notice
	Appendix E:  Facility Checklist
	Appendix F: Excerpts NVTA Policies and Procedures Manual Chapter 3: Personnel Policies



	0004_1_Staff Report
	9.4_TDA-3 Countywide Claim DM_kes-KM no changes
	9.4_TDA-3 Countywide Claim Attch 1 Resolution No 18-15 dm_kes-KM no changes dg
	9.4_TDA-3 Countywide Claim Attch 2 TDA-3 Three Year Project List_kes
	9.4_TDA-3 Countywide Claim Attch 3 Napa County TDA Fund Estimates_kes

	0005_1_Staff Report
	9.5_Imola Ave Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Plan dm_kes-KM
	9.5_Imola Ave Complete Streets Corridor Improvement Plan Attch 1 Resolution 18-16 dm_kes-KM no changes dg

	0006_1_Staff Report
	0007_1_Staff Report
	10.2_Amendment No. 11 JPA ao update 5-31-18_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.2_Amendment No. 11 JPA Attch 1 Draft JPA

	0008_1_Staff Reort
	10.3_Credit Rating ao_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.3_Credit Rating Attch 1 S&P Ltr and Rpt
	NapaValleyTransportationAuthority_ICR_RL
	NVTA - SP Global Ratings Report - 5-30-18
	Research:
	Rationale
	Outlook
	Upside scenario
	Downside scenario




	10.3_Credit Rating Attch 2 Moody's RA and CO Rpts
	Moody's Press Release Napa Valley Transportation Authority Issue Rating April 2018.docx
	Moody's Credit Opinion Napa Valley Transportation Authority April 2018


	0009_1_Staff Report
	10.4_FY 2017-18 Q3 Financials 5 Year Forecast_kes-KM changes
	RECOMMENDATION

	10.4_FY 2017-18 Q3 Financials 5 Year Forecast Attch 1 Budget_kes
	NVTA Consolidated
	830 CMA
	83020 Public Transit


	0010_1_Staff Report
	0011_1_Staff Report
	10.6_Legislative Update_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.6_Legislative Update Attch 1 Federal Legislative Reportp-KM changes
	10.6_Legislative Update Attch 2 State Leg report
	10.6_legislative Update Attch 3 State Matrix




